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ASA YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT Special Meeting of Members
AMEM HOLDI!\%%O?A!’%’ YOU MAY VOTE BY C?n August 31, 2005 :
INTERNET / TELEPHONE / MAIL 10:00 a.m. Central Time
24 HOURS A DAY / 7 DAYS A WEEK

http//www.dfking.com/ameritasacacia 1-800-992-2856 2’":3';3 K‘:miﬂc':"t:ﬂ' Holding Company
LF. . InC.
+ Go to the web site address listed * Usa any touch-tone telephone. Wall s“,.,“s"m;,.. - p_co_ Box 1163
above. OR « Have your proxy card ready. OR New York, NY 10269-0070
» Have your proxy card ready. ) ¢ Follow the simple recorded » Mark, sign and date your proxy card
» Follow the simpie instructions that instructions. + Detach your proxy card. '
appear on your computer screen, « Return your proxy card in the

postage-paid envelope provided.

Your telephone or Internet vote authorizes the named proxies to vote your membership interest
in the same manner as if you marked, signed and returned the proxy card.
if you have submitted your proxy by telephone or the Internet, there is no need for you to mail back your proxy.

If you have any questions regarding the proxy information or about voting, you may call the Ameritas Acacia Merger
Information Center at 1-877-667-6368. The center will be open from 7:45 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. {(centrai time) Monday
through Friday, August 1 through August 31, 2005.

¥ (PLEASE DETACH HERE AND RETAIN THE UPPER PORTION.) ¥

£__ERITASACACIA.,

MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY FOR AGAINST SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR
ADDITIONAL PROXY
INFORMATION

(Nota: Please mark only one box, sign and date to validly cormplete your proxy.)

The following proposals:

1. o consider and vole upon a proposal to approve and adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger between Amaritas Acacia Mutual Holding
Company (AAMHC) and The Union Central Life Insurance Company (Union Central) dated January 28, 2005, providing for the merger of
Union Central with and into AAMHC, and the transactions contemplated thereby.

2. To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve and adopt the Amendments to the Articles of Incorporation of Ameritas Acacia Mutual
Holding Company providing for (i) the change of name of the surviving company to “UNIFI Mutuai Holding Company,” and (i) the inclusion
of Union Central's members as members of UNIFI Mutual Holding Company,

3. To transact such other businass, if any, as may properly come before the Special Meeting.

Control No. PIN

Signature(s)

Signature(s)
{Please sign exactly as your name(s) appear above. When signing in a
capacity other than as an individual person, pleass refer to items 4 and 5
on rovarse side prior to completion,)

Title(s) Date




RULES AND PROCEDURES FOR VOTING

In order for your proxy to be counted, there are certain rules and procedures that should be followed so your proxy can be validated and
counted when it is received.

Under the terms of the Merger/Consolidation Statutes in Nebraska and the Plan of Merger, you are entitled to one vote without regard
to the nurmber of policies or amount of insurance held. Ownership is determined based on the policyholder name and address as
maintained in the administrative systems of Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. as of July 15, 2005.
The signature on the proxy card can be printed, written or a facsimile can be used.
A proxy that is properly submitted, but is not marked “FOR” or “AGAINST. will be assumed to be a vote “FOR" adoption of the Plan of
Marger. A proxy showing a vote “FOR” and “AGAINST" shall not be counted as a proxy cast.
4. If you are signing or submitting the proxy in an official capacity for a corporation; association; or religious, educationai, charitable or
social entity, you should indicate your capacity te sign or submit. The proxy should be signed or submitted by an officer of the entity.
5. If there is more than one owner listed on the proxy, all must sign or submit uniess one has a power of attorney. In that case, please
indicate POA on the proxy.
6. A proxy can be revoked by:
a) casting a vole in person at the Special Member's Meeting
b} sending a second proxy

c) written request to revoke proxy
7. it a member wishes to designate a proxy agent other than the ones listed on the proxy, the member can request a “FORM OF PROXY"

from the Ameritas Acacia Merger Information Center. The member can then designate the individual to serve as proxy agent.

©P

After you have reviewed the enclosed materials, please cast your vote by telaphone, Internet or mail. Your vote must be recaived by
§:00 p.m. (central time) on August 26, 2005 to be effective. Please use the enclosed envelope # you wish to return your proxy by mail. If
the envelope is damaged or missing, please use this address for mailing your completed proxy:

Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company
C/O D.F. King & Co., Inc.

Wall Strest Station - P. Q. Box 1163

New York, NY 10268-0070

- he Board of Directors has adopted the Plan of Merger and the Director of the Nebraska Department of Insurance has
approved the Plan of Merger.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote “FOR” the proposals.

By submitting a proxy, you appoint Donaid R. Stading, an officer of the Company, and JoAnn M. Martin, an officer of the
Company, or either of them, as my lawful attorneys and agents for me to vote as my proxy, with full power of substitution
for the Special Member's Meeting to be held on August 31, 2005 at 10:00 a.m. (central time) at the home office of Ameritas
Acacia Mutual Hoiding Company, 5900 O Street, Lincoln, Nebraska, regarding the proposals and any
adjournment(s) thereof, with all powers the member(s) would possess if personally present, and to vote the proxy at the
meeting as indicated above.

if neither box is checked and a signature is affixed, the proxy will be voted “FOR” If both boxes are checked or not signed
as indicated, the proxy will not be counted. The proxy is provided to you pursuant to Nebraska Law.



AMERITASACACIA..

MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY

July 25, 2005
Dear Mutual Holding Company Member:

On January 26 and 28, 2005, respectively, the Boards of Directors of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company
(AAMHC) and The Union Central Life Insurance Company (Union Central) adopted a Plan of Merger to combine
their mutual holding companies. The AAMHC Plan has been filed with the Nebraska Department of Insurance. This
plan is now being submitted for a vote by mutual holding company members.

You are invited to attend a Special Members Meeting on August 31, 2005 at 10:00 a.m. central time at the Ameritas
Life home office, 5900 O Street, Lincoln, Neb. Included in this communication is the official meeting notice.

Union Central, currently a mutual insurance company, will form a mutual holding company and simultaneousty
merge with Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company. AAMHC will remain a Nebraska-domiciled company and
change its name to UNIFI Mutual Holding Company. The intermediate holding company, Ameritas Holding
Company, will continue with the same name and remain under the laws of the State of Nebraska.

On the effective date of the merger, Ameritas Life, Acacia Life, Union Central and all other corporate subsidiaries
will retain their identities and will continue to operate as separate companies. The outcome of the merger will add
Union Central to the mutual holding company structure, not unlike the merger of the Ameritas and Acacia mutual
holding companies in 1999. On the back page of this communication you will find organization charts depicting the
current and new corporate structure.

Joining forces under the UNIFI Mutual Holding Company umbrella presents a unique, synergistic opportunity by
peer companies that share common principles, vision and a commitment to operate together in the best possible way.
From the members’ perspective, the affiliation among Ameritas Life, Acacia Life and Union Central will better
position the companies to meet and serve your financial needs.

The merger will not reduce in any way, the benefits, values, guarantees or other terms of your policies or
contracts 2and will not change your premium. If a policy has been eligible to receive dividends, future
dividends will be payable as declared by the respective Boards of Directors, but may, as in the past, vary from
year to year. All contracts and guarantees made to policyholders will remain in force according to their
contract terms.

According to the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of AAMHC, a member may vote in person or by proxy.
Please review the material carefully. Your vote is important. Your proxy or ballot must be submitted by the time and
date indicated on your proxy for the ballot to be effective. The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote
“For” the proposals.

A merger information center has been established to respond to members’ questions about the merger. If you have
merger-related questions, call the center toll-free at 1-877-667-6368. The center will be open from 7:45 a.m. to 4:30
p.m. (central time) Monday through Friday, August 1 through August 31, 2005.

Thank you for the continued support and confidence you have placed in us.

Sincerely,

A, /A

Lawrence J. Arth, CFA
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Ameritas Acacia Mutal Holding Company



Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company
5900 O Street
Lincoln, Nebraska 68510

Notice of Special Meeting of Members
to be held Wednesday, August 31, 2005
at 10:00 a.m. central time

TO MEMBERS OF AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY (AAMHC):

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a special meeting (Special Meeting) of the members of AAMHC will be held at
the home office of Ameritas Life Insurance Corp., 5900 O Street, Lincoln, Nebraska 68510, on Wednesday, August 31,
2005, at 10:00 a.m. central time for the following purposes:

1. To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve and adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger between
AAMHC and The Union Central Life Insurance Company (Union Central) dated January 28, 2005,
providing for the merger of Union Central with and mto AAMHC, and the transactions contemplated
thereby.

2. To consider and vote upon a proposal to approve and adopt the Amendments to the Articles of
Incorporation of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company providing for (i) the change of name of the
surviving company to UNIFI Mutual Holding Company, and (ii) the inclusion of Union Central’s members
as members of UNIFI Mutual Holding Company.

3. To transact such other business, if any, as may properly come before the Special Meeting.

The Board of Directors of AAMHC unanimously approved and adopted the Plan of Merger, including the
amendments to the Articles of Incorperation, and the transactions contemplated thereby, and has determined that
the merger is fair and equitable to, and is in the best interest of, the members of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding
Company. Additionally, the Director of Insurance of the State of Nebraska has approved the Plan of Merger. The
Board, therefore, unanimously recommends that the members of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company vote
“For” approval of the Plan of Merger, including the amendments to the Articles of Incorporation, and the
transactions contemplated thereby.

All members of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company whose Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. or Acacia Life
Insurance Company policies were in effect on July 15, 2005 (Eligible Members) are cordially invited to attend the
Special Meeting. To ensure your representation at the Special Meeting, you are requested to complete and return your
proxy by mail, telephone or Internet. Proxies must be received no later than August 26, 2005 to be voted at the Special
Meeting.

Please compliete and return promptly the accompanying proxy whether or not you plan to attend the Special
Meeting. The giving of such proxy does not affect your right to vote in person in the event that you attend the Special

Meeting. Any Eligible Member giving a proxy has the power to revoke it at any time, and Eligible Members who are
present at the meeting may withdraw their proxies and vote in person.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sl

Donald R. Stading
Secretary
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Questions and Answers About the Proposed Merger

What is the proposed merger between The Ameritas Acacia Companies and The Union Central Life Insurance
Company?

Currently 2 mutual insurance company, The Union Central Life Insurance Company will form a mutual holding
company and simuitaneously merge with Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company (AAMHC). AAMHC will then
change its name to UNIFI Mutuzl Holding Company. On the effective date of the merger, Ameritas Life, Acacia Life,
Union Central and all other corporate subsidiaries will retain their identities and will continue to operate as separate
companies.

Joining forces under the UNIFI Mutual Holding Company (UNIFI) umbrella presents a unique opportunity by peer
companies that share a comrnon vision and principles. UNIFI will benefit from combined financial strength and realize
new marketplace growth opportunities. The merger will help create economies of scale. Scale is becoming
increasingly important in determining success and helps support independent insurance ratings. From a member’s
perspective, the merger will better position the companies to meet and service the financial services needs of
individuals, families and businesses.

What is the Plan of Merger?

The Plan of Merger is a document that specifies how the merger of Ameritas Acacia and Union Central mutual holding
companies will take place. It specifies how the companies will operate afier a period of transition. The important
elements of the Plan are summarized in the enclosed Member Information Statement. In addition, a copy of the Plan
can be viewed at http://www.AmeritasAcacia.com/merger.

When would the proposed merger become effective?

The merger is anticipated to become effective November 1, 2005, subject to the approval of regulators, AAMHC
members and Union Central policyholders.

How will the merger benefit me, the member?

The combined companies — Ameritas Life, Acacia Life and Union Central — will be a more diversified insurance and
financial services organization. This is an important step in continuing to maintain financially strong companies and to
support future growth, Plus, members will have a stronger organization supporting their current and future policies.
The merger will not reduce, in any way, the benefits, values, guarantees or other terms of your policies and contracts,
and will not ckange your premium. All contracts and guarantees made to policyholders will remain in force according
to their contract terms.

Why was the name UNIFI Mutual Holding Company chosen?

UNIFI was chosen because of iis broad, flexible and growth-oriented connotation. UNIFI will provide connection for
the mutual holding company and a message that “in unity there is strength and even greater opportunity.”

How does the pending merger with Union Central compare with the merger of Ameritas and Acacia in 1999?

It will be very similar. On the effective date of the merger, Union Central will join Ameritas Life and Acacia Life
within a mutual holding company structure, just as Ameritas Life and Acacia Life did in 1999. The three life insurance
companies and the other principal corporate subsidiaries will retain their identities and will continue to operate as
separate cornpanies.

Explain UNIFI Mutua! Holding Company’s corporate structure?

As a mutual holding company, UNIFI Mutual Holding Company will be the parent company and will own Ameritas
Holding Company. Ameritas Holding Company, in turn, will own 100 percent of the stock of Acacia Life Insurance
Company, Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. and The Union Central Life Insurance Company. In the special members
mailing you will find organization charts illustrating the current and proposed corporate structure.

Will the names of the operating companies change or remain the same?

All principal operating companies will continue to operate under their current names.
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Where will UNIFI Mutual Holding Company be headquartered?

The mutual holding company will be domiciled in the State of Nebraska and headquartered in Lincoln, Nebraska. The
three operating companies — Acacia Life, Ameritas Life and Union Central — will continue to have a strong presence in
their respective home office communities, Greater Washington D.C., Lincoln, Nebraska, and Cincinnati, Ohie.

Who is Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company?

On January 1, 1999, Ameritas Mutual Insurance Holding Company and Acacia Mutual Holding Corporation merged to
form Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company. In the marketplace, AAMHC is referred to as The Ameritas Acacia
Companies.

The Ameritas Acacia Companies - Ameritas Life Insurance Corp., Acacia Life Insurance Company and their affiliated
companies — are a diversified group of insurance and financial services companies offering life insurance and
annuities, group dental and eye care insurance, mutual funds, investments, retirement plans, banking, worksite benefits
and public finance. Ameritas Life and Acacia Life were founded in 1887 and 1869, respectively. For more
information, visit The Ameritas Acacia Companies’ web site at: www. AmeritasAcacia.com.

Who is The Union Central Life Insurance Company?

The Union Central Life Insurance Company and its primary subsidiaries offer individual life and disability insurance,
retirernent plans, mutual funds and investment products. Union Central is licensed in all 50 states and the District of
Columbia. Founded in 1867, the Union Central home office is located in Cincinnati, Ohio. For more information, visit
Union Central’s web site at: www.unioncentral.com.

Who is representing the interests of members in the merger process?

The State of Nebraska Insurance Department is overseeing the interests of members. In addition, the Ameritas Acacia
Mutual Holding Company Board of Directors has a responsibility to protect the interests of members.

What are the current ratings from independent ratings analysts for the life insurance operations of The
Ameritas Acacia Companies and Union Central?

The life insurance operations of The Ameritas Acacia Companies have an AA minus (Very Strong) rating for insurer
financial strength by Standard and Poor’s. This is the fourth highest of S&P’s 21 ratings. Union Central has an A
minus (Strong) rating from S&P. This is the seventh highest of S&P's 21 ratings. The Ameritas Acacia Companies’
life insurance operations have an A (Excellent) for financial strength and operating performance by A.M. Best
Company. This is the third highest of Best’s 15 ratings. Union Central bas an A minus (Excelient) by A.M. Best
Company. This is the fourth highest of Best’s 15 ratings.

What are some examples of the new organization's combined financial strength?

Upon the effective date of the merger, UNIFI Mutual Holding Company will have approximately $15 billion of assets
and $1.9 billion of equity based on GAAP. Total assets under management will exceed $25 billion.

How many members have to vote “FOR” the merger for it to be approved?

Approval of the merger requires two-thirds of those members casting valid votes to vote “FOR” the proposed merger.
The Ameritas Acacia Companies and The Union Central Life Insurance Company must each receive a two-thirds
approval vote of voting members.

With the merger, will there be shares of stock available for purchase?
There are no immediate plans to issue stock. There is no stock available for purchase.
Will I still receive subscription rights to purchase shares if there is an Initial Public Offering (IPO)?

The Plans of Reorganization and Merger provide for subscription rights to eligible members at the time of any Initial
Public Offering (IPO).

Will employees Jose their jobs at The Ameritas Acacia Companies because of the merger?

A limited number of positions will be impacted. The merger will provide for cost efficiencies by eliminating
duplicative operations. The combining of life insurance/annuity operations, retirement plans businesses and corporate
service areas will impact some positions. However, Union Central and Ameritas Acacia have agreed to share the
expense savings from any staff reductions. The number will be determined through integration planning.
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Members Information Statement
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AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY

MEMBERS INFORMATION STATEMENT

No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation inconsistent with this Information
Statement in connection with the Merger and any such information or representation, if given or made, must not be relied upon
as having been authorized by Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company.

This Members Information Statement relates to the proposed merger of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company
(“Ameritas Acacia”), 2 mutual life insurance holding company organized under the laws of the State of Nebraska, and
The Union Central Life Insurance Company (“Union Central™)!, a life insurance company organized under the laws of the State
of Ohio, anticipated to be effective on November 1, 2005, at 12:01 a.m., pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger (“Plan
of Merger'™) entered into between Ameritas Acacia and Union Central.

This Members Information Statement is furnished to members of Ameritas Acacia who are entitled to vote (“Eligible
Members”) at the Special Meeting (the “Special Meeting”) of Eligible Members. For further details as to the meaning of
“Member” see “DEFINITIONS — Members.” Ameritas Acacia'’s Eligible Members are those who are shown as members of
Ameritas Acacia according to the books and records of Ameritas Acacia at the close of business on July 15, 2005. The Special
Meeting of Ameritas Acacia Eligible Members will be held on August 31, 2005 at 10:00 a.m. Central Time at the Home Office
of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company, 5900 “O” Street, Lincoln, Nebraska 68510 and at any adjournment or
postponements thereof. Proxies for the Special Meeting are being solicited by the Board of Directors of Ameritas Acacia. At
the Ameritas Acacia Special Meeting, Ameritas Acacia Eligible Members will be asked to consider and vote upon proposals
to approve the Plan of Merger and the related Amendments to Articles of Incorporation of Ameritas Acacia, which will, if the
Merger is approved, be the surviving company to be known as UNIFI Mutual Holding Company (“UNIFI™). The Merger will
affect your member rights and is subject to, among other conditions, approvai by the Director of the Nebrasla Department of
Insurance (“Nebraska Insurance Director”™) as well as approval by a two-thirds majority of the votes cast by Ameritas Acacia
Eligible Members voting in person or by proxy at the Special Meeting. The Merger will not reduce, in any way, the benefits,
values, guarantees, or other terms of your policies or contract, and will not change your premium, If a policy has been eligible
to receive dividends, future dividends will be payable as declared by the respective Boards and may, as in the past, vary from
year to year. Your policy will remain with the insurance company that issued the policy. We urge you to read this Members
Information Statement carefully.

The Ameritas Acacia Board of Directors has unanimously approved and adopted the Plan of Merger and the transactions
contemplated thereby. Additionally, the Nebraska Insurance Director approved the Plan of Merger on July 19, 2005.

The Ameritas Acacia Board of Directors now submits the Plan of Merger to you after careful review and deliberation.
The Board believes that the Plan of Merger is in the best interests of Ameritas Acacia and is fair and equitable to and is expected
to benefit and serve the best interests of the members as well as the policyholders of the affiliated insurance companies. The
Board, therefore, recommends that Eligible Members vote “FOR” approval and adoption of the Plan of Merger and the
transactions contemplated thereby at the Special Meeting and that the Eligible Members vote “FOR” the proposed
amendments to the Articles of Incorporation. For more information regarding the Plan of Merger, you may contact the Ameritas
Acacia Merger Information Center at 1-377-667-6368 Monday through Friday from 7:45 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Central Time, or
the Nebraska Department of Insurance, 941 “Q” Street, Lincoln, Nebraska 68508, during normal business hours 9:00 a.m. to
5:00 p.m. Central Time. Additionally, you may inspect and view the Proposed Plan of Merger at the Ameritas Acacia web site
at http//www.ameritasacacia.com/merger.

YOUR VOTE 15 IMPORTANT.

PLEASE VOTE AS SOON AS POSSIBLE BY MAIL, PHONE OR INTERNET. INSTRUCTIONS ON THESE THREE
DIFFERENT WAYS TO VOTE YOUR PROXY ARE FOUND ON THE ENCLOSED PROXY FORM. YOU MAY REVOKE
YOUR PROXY AT ANY TIME BEFORE IT IS VOTED AT THE SPECIAL MEETING. YOU MAY ALSO VOTE IN
PERSON AT THE SPECIAL MEETING.

The date of the Ameritas Acacia Members Information Statement is J uly 15, 2005.

'To Consummate this merger, Union. Central will convert to a stock insurance company subsidiary of 2 mutual insurance holding company to be known as
Union Central Mutual Holding Company (“UCMHC™). UCMHC will be the entity merged with and into Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Ameritas Acacia is subject to the laws and regulations of the State of Nebraska applicable to mutual insurance holding
companies and therefore is required to file financial reports and other information with the Nebraska Department of Insurance.
The publicly available financial reports and other information regarding Ameritas Acacia can be obtained by calling the Ameritas
Acacia Merger Information Center at 1-877-667-6368 Monday through Friday from 7:45 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Central Time or are
available at the offices of the Nebraska Department of Insurance, 941 “O” Street, Lincoln, Nebraska 68508, during its normal
business hours.

The Union Central Life Insurance Company including its Subsidiaries are subject to the laws and regulations of the
State of Ohio applicable to insurance holding companies and life insurance companies and therefore are required to file
financial reports and other information with the Chic Department of Insurance. The publicly available financial reports and
other information regarding Union Central are available at the offices of the Ohio Depattment of Insurance, 2100 Stella Court,
Columbus, Ohio 43215,

Ameritas Acacia has filed the Plan of Merger with the Nebraska Department of Insurance in accordance with the laws
and regulations of the State of Nebraska applicable to mutual holding companies seeking to merge. This Plan of Merger
describes the proposed merger and contains information required by the laws of the State of Nebraska. Ameritas Acacia has
also made an information filing with the District of Columbia Department of Insurance, Securities and Banking Regulation in
accordance with the District of Columbia Department’s Order approving the merger of Ameritas Mutual Holding Company and
Acacia Mutual Holding Company effective January 1, 1999.

Union Central has also made a filing with the Ohio Department of Insurance in accordance with the laws and regulations
of the State of Ohio applicable to mutual life insurance companies seeking to reorganize into the mutual holding company form
and mutual holding companies seeking to merge, which describes the Plan of Merger and contains information required by law.

This Ameritas Acacia Members Information Statement does not contain all of the information set forth in the Plan of
Merger or exhibits attached thereto. Such additional information may be obtained as indicated in the preceding paragraphs.
Statements contained in this Members Information Statement or in any document incorporated in this Members Information
Statement by reference as to the contents of any contract or other document referred to herein or therein are not necessarily
complete and in each instance, where reference is made to the copy of such contract or other docurment filed as an exhibit to
the Plan of Merger or such other document, each such statement is qualified in all respects by such reference.

DEFINITIONS

1. Ameritas Acacia shall mean Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company.
2. Companyf(ies) shall mean Ameritas Acacia or Union Central, individually or collectively.

3. Director shall mean a member of a Board of Directors of UNIFI or Ameritas Acacia or Union Central or any Subsidiary
thereof.

4. Effective Date shall mean the date on which the Merger becomes effective.

Eligible Member shall mean a Member of Ameritas Acacia as shown on the books and records of Ameritas Acacia at the
close of business of July 15, 2005 entitled to vote on the Plan of Merger.

6. Independent Director shall mean a Director of UNIFI or Ameritas Holding Company or Union Central or any Subsidiary
or Affiliate thereof, who may also be a director of Ameritas Life or any Subsidiary thereof, Acacia Life or any Subsidiary
thereof, Union Central or any Subsidiary thereof, but who is (x) not a full-time employee of any one or more of the
foregoing and has not been such at any time during the last five (5) years from the Effective Date and (y) who is not being
paid any remuneration by any of such entities, other than customary director’s fees and expenses.

7. Inside Director shall mean a Director of UNIFI or Ameritas Holding Company or Union Central, or any Subsidiary of
Affiliate thereof, who is not an Independent Director.

8. Mandatory Period shall mean, the period of six years after the Effective Date.

9. Member shall mean, as to Ameritas Acacia, each Person who is, on July 15, 2003, a member of Amqritas Acacia and
entitled to vote in accordance with Ameritas Acacia’s articles of incorporation and by-laws, and as to Union Central, cach



Person who is, as of September 1, 2004, a Policyholder of Union Central and entitled to vote in accordance with Union
Central’s articles of incorporation and code of regulations.

10. Nebraska Department of Insurance shall mean the State of Nebraska Department of Insurance.
11. Nebraska Insurance Director shall mean the Director of Insurance, Department of Insurance, State of Nebraska.
12. Ohio Department of Insurance shall mean the State of Ohio Department of Insurance.

13. Plan of Merger shall mean the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of January 28, 2005 together with all Amendments
executed between Ameritas Acacia and Union Central,

14. Subsidiary shall mean any entity in which fifty (50%) or more of the entity is owned directly or indirectly or beneficially
by Ameritas Acacia or Union Central.

15. Supermajority Vote shall mean the affirmative vote of not less than eighty percent (80%) of all Directors eligible to vote
upon the question.

16. Union Central shall mean The Union Central Life Insurance Company. To consummate this Merger, Union Central will
convert to a stock insurance company subsidiary of a mutual insurance holding company to be known as Union Central
Mutual Holding Company, Union Central Mutual Holding Company will be the entity merged with and into Ameritas
Acacia Mutual Holding Company.

SPECIAL MEETING

Date. Time, Place
This Members Information Statement is being furnished to Eligible Members of Ameritas Acacia in connection with
the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors for use at the Special Meeting of Ameritas Acacia.

The Special meeting of Ameritas Acacia is to be held on August 31, 2005, 10:00 a.m. Central Time, at the Home
Office of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company, 5900 “O” Street, Lincoln, Nebraska 63510.

Matters to be Considered

At the Ameritas Acacia Special Meeting, Eligible Members will be asked to consider and vote upon proposals to
approve both the Plan of Merger and the related amendments to Articles of Incorporation of Ameritas Acacia, which will, if
the Merger is approved, be the surviving company to be known as UNIFI Mutual Holding Company. Also at the Ameritas
Acacia Special Meeting, Eligible Members will be asked to transact such other business, if any, as may properly come before
the Ameritag Acacia Special Meeting.

Eligibie Member.
Only Eligible Members are qualified and entitied to notice and the right to vote at the Special Meeting. Eligible

Members are those who were Members, based upon the records of the Company at the close of business on July 15, 2003,
Eligible Members may vote at the Special Meeting only in person or if represented by a valid proxy.

Yote Required

Each Eligible Member is entitled to cast one vote with Ameritas Acacia regardless of the number of policies or the
amount of insurance held by such Eligible Member with Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. or Acacia Life Insurance Company.
A group policy is entitled to cast only one vote regardless of the number of members in the group. Individuals who have
acquired membership in more than one capacity (e.g., as a trustee under separate trust) may vote in each such capacity. In
accordance with the respective acts creating the mutual insurance holding companies, and in order to approve and adopt the
Plan of Merger and to consummate the transactions contemplated thereby, including amending the Articles of Incorporation of
Ameritas Acacia by the Eligible Members, a two-thirds majority of the votes cast by Eligible Members voting at the Special
Mec.ti.ng, on the issues presented at such meeting, in person or by proxy, must be voted “FOR” such proposal. For further
details, see heading “PLAN OF MERGER - Conditions of Merger.”



Yoting: R , f Proxi

If you are an Eligible Member, a proxy for use at the Special Meeting accompanies this Members Information
Statement. An Eligible Member may use the proxy if he or she is unable to attend the Ameritas Acacia Special Meeting in
person or if he or she wishes to vote by proxy even if he or she attends the Special Meeting. A proxy that is properly completed
and returned to Ameritas Acacia via mail, phone, or Internet at or prior to the Special Meeting will be voted at the Special
Meeting in accordance with the instructions thereon, unless properly revoked prior to such vote. If an Eligible Member wishes
to designate a proxy agent other than the proxy agent on the proxy provided to the Eligible Member, the Eligible Members
must return a “form of proxy” form to the Ameritas Acacia Merger Information Center. Eligible Members must return the
proxy properly executed to Ameritas Acacia no later than August 26, 2005 in order to be counted as provided by Section 44-210
R.R.S., 1943, If a proxy is properly completed and returned and the manner of voting is not indicated on the proxy, the proxy
will be voted for the proposal to be considered at the Special Meeting. If a proxy is marked to vote both “FOR” and
“AGAINST” the proposals, such proxy will not count and will not be regarded as a vote cast at the Special Meeting.
A replacement proxy may be obtained by calling the Ameritas Acacia Merger Information Center at 1-877-667-6368 Monday
throngh Friday from 7:45 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Central Time.

Any proxy given pursuant to this solicitation may be revoked by the Eligible Member at any time prior to the voting
thetreof on the masters to be considered at the Special Meeting. An Eligible Member may revoke the proxy and vote at the
Special Meeting by appearing in person at the Special Meeting and revoking the proxy previously provided.

Member Mailing Provisi

Any Eligible Member who wishes to contact other Eligible Members regarding the Plan of Merger, may do so at his
or her own expense. Ameritas Acacia has agreed to mail or cause to be mailed any Eligible Member’s material regarding the
Plan of Merger to all Eligible Members or, if the Nebraska Department of Insurance approves, to a segment of Eligible
Members. Any Eligible Member who proposes to contact other Eligible Members should promptly contact the Nebraska
Department of Insurance for further information on applicable procedures. Eligible Members who request that Ameritas Acacia
mail materials on their behalf will be required to: (i) pay in advance the actual cost for such services at the rate paid or allocated
by Ameritas Acacia; and (i) submit such materials to the Nebraska Department of Insurance by 5:00 p.m. Central Time on
August 10, 2005. The material is not subject to review by Ameritas Acacia, but will only be mailed after the Nebraska
Department of Insurance determines the material is related to the Plan of Merger and not false or misleading in accordance
with Nebraska Department of Insurance Regulations.

The primary reason for the Merger is to seek to strengthen Ameritas Acacia and position it for future growth through
a combination with Union Central (thereby forming UNIFI) while, at the same time, preserving the separate existence, strategy
and culture of Ameritas Acacia and its subsidiaries within the UNIFI group of companies.

The Merger would result in Union Central being an indirect subsidiary of UNIFI and a direct subsidiary of Ameritas
Holding Company (“AHC"). The potential benefits of the combination with Ameritas Acacia anticipated to result from the
Merger include: .

*« revenue growth.
+ improverent in profitability.
+ enhanced financial strength.

Before voting, Members should also carefully consider potential disadvantages of the Merger, some of which are
summarized below.

+ Some or all of the anticipated benefits of the combination with Union Central referred to above may not be realized
for reasons beyond Ameritas Acacia’s control.

* Because Ameritas Acacia will be part of the larger UNIFI enterprise that includes enother insurance company,
situations could arise in transactions between such entities where the interests of the mutual insurance holding company
could conflict with the interests of one or more of its subsidiaries, or the interests of the subsidiaries could conflict.



. Failure to obtain requisite governmental and other consents to complete the Merger, may jeopardize or postpone the
completion of the Merger, resulting in additional expenditures of money and resources and/or reduction in the
anticipated benefits of the Merger.

+ The Merger could potentially result in litigation which can be both costly and time-consuming and could result in a
diversion of effort and resources by UNIFI’s management.

« The costs of Merger prior to the Effective Date, including outside legal, financial, accounting, actuanal, printing,
and other fees and expenses for Ameritas Acacia are anticipated to be significant, but are not expected to exceed
$14 million.

See “Reasons for the Merger: Considerations related to Operations and Financial Results.”

THE MERGER

Summary

The following summary is not intended to be complete and is qualified in all respects by the more detailed information and
financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Information Statement. Unless otherwise defined, capitalized terms have the
meaning ascribed to them herein or in the Plan. Members of Ameritas Acacia are urged to read this Information Statement and
the appendices in their entirety.

Qverview of Merger

The Merger, as contemplated by the Merger Agreement, has two primary components: the Union Central Conversion
and the Merger. Eligible Members are being asked to vote on the Merger, which will not occur uniess and until the Union
Central Conversion is consummated. The Conversion will result in Union Central being converted into an Ohio stock insurance
company wholly-owned by a newly formed Ohio mutual insurance holding company referred to herein as “UCMHC"
UCMHC will, immediately upon consummation of the Conversion, merge with and into Ameritas Acacia pursuant to the
Mezger Agreement. Upon consumnmation of the Merger, Ameritas Acacia will change its name to UNIFI and the capital stock
of Union Central acquired by UNIFI will be contributed by UNIFI to its subsidiary, Ameritas Holding Company, which will
result in Union Central being an indirect subsidiary of UNIF! and a direct subsidiary of AHC along with Ameritas Life and
Acacia Life. For further details see “Corporate Structure Before and After the Reorganization.”

The Effect of the Merger
if the Merger is consummated, among other things:

. Ameritas Acacia will maintain majority control of the Board. Union Central will have substantial representation
on the Board of Directors of UNIFI and AHC as well. See “Corporate Governance of UNIFI and Subsidiacies.”

+ Lawrence J. Arth, Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer of Ameritas Acacia will become the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of UNIFI and AHC on the closing date, and John H. Jacobs, the Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer of Union Central, will become the Vice-Chairman, President and Chief Operating Officer
of UNIFI and AHC on the closing date. John H. Jacobs is slated to succeed to Mr. Arth’s positions by not later than
July 31, 2008. See “Post-Merger Management.” For further details, see heading “PLAN OF MERGER - Description
of the Merger” and “The MERGER - Organization Charts”

Background of the Merger

Over the past several years, Ameritas Acacia and its Subsidiaries’ senior management and Boards have engaged in an
ongoing process of analyzing the current and future competitive challenges facing Ameritas Acacia and its respective
Subsidiaries through which it conducts certain businesses and has been evaluating various strategic alternatives for meeting
those challenges, and for advancing the interests of Ameritas Acacia Members. The Ameritas Acacia Board’s unanimous
decision to approve the Merger is the culmination of this process.

Many of the competitive challenges facing Ameritas Acacia and its Subsidiaries also face their competitors. These
chatlenges include changes in consumer demand for various types of inancial products and growing competition from banks,
mutual fund companies, and other financial services firms in traditional insurance company markets. Aiso, the benefits of scale
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are becoming increasingly important as consolidation continues in both the life insurance industry and the financial services
industry, more generaily.

Ameritas Acacia has pursued a dual strategy for protecting and enhancing competitive position and protecting the
interest of Members in the face of these challenges. The first component of this strategy has been refining and enhancing
existing businesses. The second component has been to consider carefully a variety of alternative opportunities for growth and
advancement of the interests of Ameritas Acacia Members, including, (i) decreasing the costs of life insurance and annuity
products; (ii) diversifying distribution channels and increasing the number of distributors; and (iii) various types of acquisitions
of blocks of insurance and annuity pelicies, joint ventures, strategic alliances, or similar arrangements with other companies
and proposals to merge with other mutual insurance holding companies.

In evaluating competitive challenges and strategic alternatives, Ameritas Acacia’s Board and management sought to
identify courses of action that would advance the interests of its Members and preserve and enhance existing strengths. As part
of this effort, Ameritas Acacia management had discussions with numerocus insurance company executives, including Union
Central. In the course of such discussions, it became apparent to the Ameritas Acacia and Union Central management that each
company could potentially benefit from an alliance or business combination between them. The respective lines of business of
the two companies were complementary and there were synergies that could be realized. Both Companies’ management were
aware of the insurance industry trend toward consolidation as a means of expanding product offerings, growing revenues and
achieving operating efficiencies through economies of scale to improve profitability.

Thereafter, the Chairmen and CEOs of the two companies began the process of evaluating a potential combination.
In the spring of 2004, Mr. Lawrence J. Arth and Mr. John H. Jacobs, met and discussed, on a preliminary basis, the possibility
of a business combination involving Ameritas Acacia and Union Central. At meetings held in September and December 2004,
Armeritas Acacia senior management reviewed with the Ameritas Acacia Board and the Ameritas Acacia Board discussed the
Merger and other strategic alternatives that had been considered by Ameritas Acacia during the last several years. At such
meetings, senior management specifically discussed with the Ameritas Acacia Board the relative advantages and disadvantages
of the Merger and other strategic alternatives. In Jannary 20083, the form of the Plan of Merger was finalized.

At the January 26, 2005 Meeting, the Ameritas Acacia Board unanimously approved the Merger, according to the
terms set forth, in the Plan of Merger. Likewise, at its January 28, 2005 Meeting, the Union Central Board also unanimously
approved the Plan of Merger.

Reasons for the Merger

Considerations Relating to Operations and Financial Results

The Ameritas Acacia Board believes that the proposed Merger presents the opportunity to capitalize on the relative
strengths of Ameritas Acacia and Union Cenitral in terms of product offerings, distribution capacity, management expertise,
financial resources, and diversity of revenues and earnings. At the same time, each Company will retain its separate legal
existence and a substantial presence in their respective states of domicile. In general, Ameritas Acacia’s significant financial
resources, as evidenced by strong financial strength ratings and its diversified businesses, coupled with Union Central’s One
Company Marketing capabilities (a business culture emphasizing synergy, cooperation and common interests among all
operational and functional areas) are anticipated to position UNIFI for greater future growth and improved profitability.

The Board belisves that the following ate potential advantages of the Merger:

» Anticipated Improvement in Revenue Growth. Ameritas Life, Acacia Life, and Union Central, while operating as
separate insurance company subsidiaries of UNIFI, will seek to grow by combining and building upon highly
complementary products and distribution channels, including increasing market penetration of existing and new
customers through Union Central’s One Company Marketing, all of which is expected to lead to increased sales at all
three companies. By expanding the scope of both products and distribution channels and aligning them under the
UNIFI brand name, the Board believes that Ameritas Life and Acacia Life will be better positioned io enter new
markets and capture a greater shate of its customers’ total protection and savings needs. The resulting larger and
stronger customer base should help expand Ameritas Life’s and Acacia Life’s capital position and should increase their
value to additional potential alliance partners that could help expand the scope of Ameritas Acacia’s distribution
network, product offerings and cross-selling opportunities.



» Anticipated Improvement in Profitability due to Cost Reductions and Additional Scale of Combined Operations. The
Board believes that the Merger will enable Ameritas Life and Acacia Life, once they are part of UNIFI, to reduce unit
operating expenses and cnhance its operating margins through a more efficient utilization of the combined assets,
management and personnel of Ameritas Life, Acacia Life and Union Central. Ameritas Acacia’s management believes
that UNIFI could realize cost savings for the combined companies by jointly selecting and utilizing the best practices
and most productive employees at both Ameritas Acacia and Union Central.

« Enhanced Financial Strength. Being part of a larger organization with greater financial resources and greater product
and distribution channel diversity is anticipated to enhance Ameritas Acacia’s financial strength after the Merger.
Upon completion of the Merger, UNIFI will have a pro forma combined GAAP equity of approximately $1.9 billion
and statutory capital of over $1.5 billion. Union Central GAAP equity totaled $651 million and statutory capitai was
$357 million as of December 31, 2004. The Merger Agrecment contains provisions in which Ameritas Acacia has
agreed that UNIFI and AHC will use reasonable efforts to provide capital support to Ameritas Life, Acacia Life and
Union Central, to maintain and improve their respective S&P financial strength ratings to a level equal to or better than
the S&P rating currently assigned to Ameritas Life and Acacia Life, which is expected to continue to be at least AA-.
The Ameritas Acacia Board believes that access to greater capital resources will enable UNIFI to better capitalize on
opportunities to fund internal growth, to fund new strategic initiatives, and participate in strategic alliances.

Additionally, the Companies, to a large extent, complement each other rather than compete and by bringing the two
enterprises together through the Merger each will be in a position to provide their respective customers with a full spectrum of
financial services. This should further enhance their ability to meet the needs of their customers and to grow UNIFIL

In addition to considering the factors outlined above, the Board considered the suitability of Union Central as a strategic
partner in terms of compatibility of cultures and likely degree of Union Central management’s ongoing involvement and
influence. The Board believes that entering into an alliance with a partner with a compatible strategic vision and management
style, while preserving the ability to influence the strategic direction of the combined company, would facilitate the integration
of operations. The Board has determined that Union Central is 2 good strategic fit based on the following factors:

» Compatibie Cultures. The Board believes that the alliance with Union Central is a strdng strategic fit in terms of
strategic vision and management style, and that this will faciiitate a smooth integration of the companies.

» 'CEO Role; Succession. Lawrence J. Arth, Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer of Ameritas Acacia will
become the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of UNIFI and AHC on the closing date. Ameritas Acacia took into
consideration the fact that Mr, Jacobs of Union Central will succeed Mr. Arth of Ameritas Acacia as the Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer of UNIFI no later than July 31, 2008,

« UNIFI Board Representation. The initial 25-member UNIFI Board will include 14 Ameritas Acacia designees, the
remainder of the UNIFI Board being made up of 11 designees from Union Central. Although the number of directors
may be modified from time to time pursuant to the by-laws of UNIFI and AHC, Ameritas Acacia will always have at
least one director but not more than three directors greater than Union Central on the UNIFI Board. Additionally, for
a period of six years following the Merger, (i) a ratio of 12 to 9 Independent Ameritas Acacia Designees (as defined
herein} to Independent Union Central Designees (as defined herein) must be maintained as precisely as practicable
and (ii) the AHC board will be comprised of the same persons then serving as UNIFI directors.

* Supermajority Vote Requirements. Under the UNIFI and AHC By-laws, a Supermajority Vote (as defined herein) is
required to authorize any of the following actions: amendment to or waiver of any provisions of UNIFI's By-laws; the
redomestication or change of domicile of UNIFI or AHC from the State of Nebraska; relocation of the domicile of
any of UNIFI's subsidiaries from their current state of domicile; the change of any subsidiary’s name; a material
change to UNIFI’s capital structure; the sale of any subsidiary; sale or disposition of substantially all or ail of the
assets of UNIFI or any of its subsidiaries; a corporate reorganization of UNIFL; raising of debt or equity capital by
UNIFI; the merger or consolidation, demutualization, liquidation, dissolution of UNIFI, and any modification,
amendment or waiver of certain provisions of the Merger Agreement. By reason of the Supermajority Vote
requirement, none of these significant actions may be authorized during the Mandatory Period without the
concurrence of at least some Ameritas Acacia designated directors and Union Central designated directors to the
UNIFI Board or the AHC Board, as the case may be. See “Corporate Governance of UNIFI and Subsidiaries.”

+ Other foicers. The Board shall take action to cause Haluk Ariturk and Gary T. (“Doc”) Huffiman to serve as
Executive Vice Presidents, JoAnn M. Martin to serve as Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and



Corporate Treasurer, Jan M. Connolly to serve as Senior Vice President and Corporate Secretary, Robert-John H. Sands
to serve as Senior Vice President and General Counsel, Janet L. Schmidt to serve as Senior Vice President and
Director of Human Resources, Paul J. Huebner to serve as Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer,
and Dale D. Johnson to serve as Senior Vice President and Corporate Actuary of UNIFI Mutual Holding Company
and Ameritas Holding Company. o

The board composition and internal corporate governance provisions discussed above will be effective for a period of
six years following the effective date of the Merger and may not be amended, modified or wailved without an 80%
vote of the entire UNIFI Board or the AHC Board, as the case may be, except that the requirement that Ameritas
Acacia must have at least one director but not more than three directors greater than Union Central on the UNIFI
Board and AHC Board will survive indefinitely until amended or modified (and this requirement cannot be amended
or modified without the unanimous vote of the UNIFI Board or the AHC Board, as applicable).

The Board also considered the potential disadvantages and risks of the Merger. Prior to voting, Members should
carefully consider the potential risks and disadvantages of the Merger considered by the Board, as discussed below.

Failure to Realize Anticipated Benefits. There can be no assurance that the business strategies of UNIFI following
the Merger will be successful. Ameritas Acacia and Union Central may experience difficulties in integrating their
businesses, which could cause the combined Companies to fail to realize many of the anticipated potential benefits
of the Merger.

The Companies have entered into the Plan of Merger because they believe that the Merger will be beneficial to each
of Ameritas Acacia, Union Central and their respective members and Subsidiaries’ policyholders. Achieving the
anticipated benefits of the Merger will depend in part upon whether these two Companies integrate their businesses in
an efficient and effective manner. They may not be able to accomplish this integration process smoothly or successfully.
The necessity of coordinating geographically separated organizations and addressing possible differences in corporate
cultures and management philosophies may increase the difficulties of integration, The integration of certain operations
following the Merger will require the dedication of significant management resources, which may temporarily distract
management’s attention from the day-to-day business of the combined company. Employee uncertainty and lack of
focus during the integration process may also disrupt the businesses of the combined Company and certain of its
Subsidiaries. Any inability of our management to integrate successfully the operations of Ameritas Acacia and Union
Central could have a material adverse effect on the business and results of operations of the combined company. The
Companies may not be able to achieve the anticipated cross-selling opportunities, the development and marketing of
more comprehensive insurance product offerings, cost savings, revenue growth or the consistent use of our best
practices. An inability to realize the full extent of, or any of, the anticipated benefits of the Merger, as well as any delays
encountered in the transition process, could have an adverse effect upon the revenues, level of expenses and operating
results of UNIFI and its life insurance company Subsidiaries.

The success of UNIFI after the Merger will depend in part upon the ability of Ameritas Acacia and Union Central to
tetain key employees of both companies. Competition for qualified persounel can be very intense. In addition, key
employees may depart because of issues relating to the uncertainty or difficulty of integration cr a desire not to remain
with UNIFI. Accordingly, no assurance can be given that Ameritas Acacia or Union Central will be able to retain key
employees to the same extent that they have been able to do so in the past.

Failure to Maintain Financial Strength Ratings. Ameritas Life and Acacia Life’s financial strength ratings will
depend, in patt, on the performance and financial condition of UNIFI and its subsidiaries. If the results of operations
and financial condition of UNIFI and its insutance subsidiaries do not improve as anticipated for any reason,
including any of the risks identified in this Information Statement, the financial strength ratings of UNIFI and
Ameritas Life and Acacia Life may not be maintained and could decline. A decline in UNIFI's or Ameritas Life and
Acacia Life’s financial strength rating may damage its business prospects.

Failure to Obtain Requisite Governmental and Other Consents. The Companies must obtain many governmental and
other consents to compiete the Merger, which, if delayed, not granted or granted with unacceptable conditions, may
jeopardize or postpone the completion of the Merger, result in additional expenditures of money and resources and/or
reduce the anticipated benefits of the Merger.

The Companies must obtain certain approvals and consents in a timely manner from federal and state agencies prior
to the completion of the Merger. If these approvals are not received, or do not meet the terms that satisfy the conditions



set forth in the Merger Agreement, then the Companies are not obligated to complete the Merger. The governmental
agencies from which approvals are required have broad discretion in administering the governing regulations. As a
condition to approval of the Merger, agencies may impose requirements, limitations or costs that could negatively
affect the way the combined Company and certain Subsidiaries conduct business. These requirements, limitations or
costs could jeopardize or delay the completion of the Merger. If the Companies agree to any material requirements,
limitations or costs in order to obtain any approvals required to complete the Merger, these requirements, limitations
or additional costs could adversely affect Ameritas Acacia’s and Union Central’s ability to integrate their operations
or reduce the anticipated benefits of the Merger. This could result in a material adverse effect on the business and
results of operations of the combined companies.

« Potential Litigation. The Merger could result in litigation which can be both costly and time-consuming and could
rasult in a diversion of effort and resources by UNIFI's management.

o Cost of Merger. Outside legal, financial, accounting, actuarial, printing, and other fees and expenses are anticipated
to be significant, but are not expectad to exceed $17 million,
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The Board of Directors of Ameritas Acacia recommends that Eligible Members vote “FOR” approval and adoption
of the Plan of Merger and “FOR” approval of the amendments to the Articles of Incorporation at its Special Meeting. The
Board believes that the Merger will result in a2 combined company that will be financially stronger and more efficient, and
therefore, more competitive than either Company would be separately. The Board further believes that the Merger is in the best
interests of Ameritas Acacia and is fair and equitable to and is expected to benefit and serve the best interest of Ameritas Acacia
Members, as well as the policyholders of the various insurance subsidiaries, because, among other things: (i) the Merger is
expected to result in significant expense savings over time through the consolidation of existing resources; (ii) the distribution
system (i.e., the agency force) of the two existing insurance companies is expected to be larger and as a consequence raore
productive than either system is prior to the Merger; and (iii) the expanded product portfolio available to each of the various
insurance companies is expected to reduce product development expenses while increasing distribution opportunities. There
can be no assutance, of course, that the benefits anticipated to arise out of the Merger will in fact be achieved. For further
details, see heading “THE MERGER - Reasons for Merger”.

rpor. tr r F t rgani;
The following diagrams depict the organization structure of (1) Ameritas Acacia and Union Central before the Merger,
and (2) UNTFI after the Merger.
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tuarial Advisor

Ameritas Acacia retained Abraham Gootzeit of the actuarial consulting firm, Aon Consulting to evaluate the actuarial
fairness of the Merger. Mr. Gootzeit delivered to Ameritas Acacia his written opinion dated as of July 15, 2005, that the Merger
is fair to the Members of Ameritas Acacia from an actuarial point of view. A copy of the opinion may be found in the Exhibits
section of this Members Information Statement, identified as Exhibit “A”.

Ameritas Acacia Members are urged to read the opinion in its entirety for information as to the procedures followed,
assumptions made, and matters considered by Abraham Gootzeit in veaching his opinion.

v n nkine jnion

Although Union Central obtained an investment banking opinion as to the fairness of the transaction to Unjon Central
from a financial point of view in addition to an actuarial opinion, the board of directors of Ameritas Acacia determined, after
considering a number of factors, that an investment banking firm opinion was not needed. Unlike Union Central, Ameritas
Acacia is the surviving company. Moreover, this is a merger of mutual insurance holding companies in which neither cash nor
stock is changing hands. The separate corporate identities of each of the constinlent insurance eompanies (Ameritas Life,
Acacia Life and Union Central) will remain intact and protections for Members’ dividend expectations ars being initiated
and/or continued for the benefit of the policyholders of subsidiaries of Ameritas Acacia. Financial information and analysis
with respect to the proposed Merger was prepared by Ameritas Acacia’s management and presented to and reviewed by the
board of directors of Ameritas Acacia. The Merger is subject to regulatory approval by the Nebraska Department of Insurance
and the Ohio Department of Insurance. Finally, the board was informed that 2 fairness opinion would be extremely costly. In
view of the nature of the transaction and these factors, Ameritas Acacia’s board determined that no investment bankers’ opinion
was needed.

r ver. an idigri
General

Ameritas Acacia and Union Central agreed to certain matters relating to the composition of the boards of directors of
UNIFI, AHC and Union Central, the composition of varicus committees of the Boards of UNIFI and AHC and certain
matters relating to the conduct of the affairs of UNIFI and its subsidiares, including Union Central. These
agreements, most of which are described below, and are reflected in the By-laws of UNIFI and AHC, will remain in
effect for a period of six years after the Effective Date of the Merger (the “Effective Time™). These agreements are
discussed below.

Board of Directors of UNIFI

At the Effective Date, the UNIFI Board will initially be comprised of 25 directors consisting of a total of 14 Ameritas
Acacia designees (“Ameritas Acacia Designees”) and 11 Union Central designees (“Union Central Designees”).
During the Mandatory Period, no more than two of the Ameritas Acacia Designees may be an “Inside Director”
(defined as a person who has been a full-time employee of Ameritas Acacia, Union Central or their respective
affiliates at any time during the past five years, or who receives remuneration from such entities other than customary
director’s fees) and no more than two of the Union Central Designees may be an Inside Director; provided, however,
that after Mr. Larry Pike (who, along with Mr. Jacobs is one of the two initial Union Central designated Inside
Directors) retires from the UNIFI Board, no more than one Union Central Designee may be an Inside Director.

The initial AHC Board at the Effective Date will be comprised of the same 25 persons that are then serving as UNIFI
directors at such time. Thereafter, during the Mandatory Period, the directors of AHC will be nominated by the two
Designation Committees of AHC and elected by UNIFIL. If the Board of Directors of UNIFI is reduced to a number
of less than 25, the AHC Board shall also be reduced to the same size.

The UNIFI Board and the AHC Board will both be “classified” into three separate classes. This means that, at any
given annual meeting of the members of UNIFI, only approximately one-third of the Directors will stand for election.
The number of Ameritas Acacia Designees serving in any single class may not exceed the number of Union Central
Designees serving in such class by more than one director for more than a reasonable period of time. See “INITIAL
UNIFI BOARD OF DIRECTORS” The members of UNIFI will elect Class III Directors whose terms expire in 2006
at the annual meeting of members in 2006 and, thereafter, af each successive annual meeting, the Directors of the class
whose term is then expiring.
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The UNIFI Board and the AHC Board will have the discretion to reduce the number of persons that constitute their
entire respective Board of Directors to not less than five, provided that (x) during the Mandatory Period, the ratio of
Independent Ameritas Acacia Designees to Independent Union Central Designees at 12 to 9 is maintained, continued
and perpetuated as precisely as practicable and (y) the number of Ameritas Acacia UNIFI Designees serving on the
Board of Directors shall always (unless and until changed by a unanimous vote of the UNIFI Board) exceed the
number of Union Central UNIFI Designees on such Board by at least one but by not more than three directors.

During the Mandatory Period, in the event of a vacancy of an Ameritas Acacia Designee on the UNIFI Board for any
reason, if the UNIFI Board determines to fill such vacancy rather than reduce the size of the UNIFI Board consistent
with the ratio requirements, the remaining Ameritas Acacia Designees have the right to designate another director to
fill the vacancy to serve in such vacating director’s stead for the remainder of the term of such vacating director,
subjecf to the proposed director being acceptable to the UNIFI Board. Such replacement director must be an
Independent Director if the person he is replacing was an Independent Director. Such replacement director may be
either an Independent Director or an Inside Director if the person he is replacing was an Inside Director. Union Central
has identical rights to fill vacancies of Union Central Designees that arise for any reason during the Mandatory Period,
with one exception. When Mr. Pike vacates his role as Inside Union Central Director, the proposed replacement

director must be a Union Central Independent Director

Vacancies in the AHC Board during the Mandatory Period are filled in the same manner.

The board composition and internal corporate governance provisions discussed above will be effective for the
Mandatory Period and may not be amended, modified or waived without an 80% vote of the entire UNIFI Board of Directors
(a “Supermajority Vote”) or the AHC Board of Directors, as the case may be (which means that they could not be amended,
modified or waived without the concurrence of at least some of the Ameritas Acacia Designees to the UNIFI or AHC Boards,
as the case may be), except that the requirement that Ameritas Acacia must have at least one director but not more than three
directors greater than Union Central on the UNIFI Board and AHC Board will survive indefinitely until amended or modified
(which such amendment or modification will require the unanimous vote of the UNIFI Board and AHC Board, as applicable}.
Finally, the UNIFI and AHC By-laws will empower the Union Central Designation Committee and the Ameritas Acacia
Designation Comrmittee to enforce these board composition and corporate governance provisions. No Union Central Designee
or Ameritas Acacia Designee will be personally liable to UNIFI or any UNIFI Member or to AHC or any stockholder thereof
for monetary damages that arise as a result of enforcing the board composition and corporate governance provisions of the
Merger Agresment or any provision in the By-laws.

Under the UNIFI By-laws, a Supermajority Vote is also required to authorize any of the following significant
corporate actions: amendment to or waiver of any provisions of UNIFI’s By-laws; the redomestication or change of domicile
of UNTFI from the State of Nebraska; relocation of the domicile of any of UNIFI's subsidiaries from their current states of
domicile; the change of any subsidiary’s name; a material change to UNIFI's capital structure; the sale of any subsidiary, sale
or disposition of substantially all or all of the assets of UNIFI or any of its subsidiaries; a corporate reorganization of UNIFI;
raising of debt or equity capital by UNIFL; the merger or consolidation, demutualization, liguidation, or dissolution of UNIFI;
and any modification, amendment or waiver of certain key provisions of the Merger Agreement. The voting requirements
described in this paragraph remain in effect for the Mandatory Period and, thereafter, automatically become null and void.
Unless a Supermajority Vote is required, the action of the majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is
present shall be sufficient to authorize corporate action on behalf of UNIFI, unless a greater vote is required by law. The AHC
by-laws also provide for this Supermajority Vote.

CEQ 3Succession

In the Merger Agreement, Ameritas Acacia and Union Central have agreed that at the Effective Date and continuing
until the earlier to occur of (x) Mr. Arth no longer serving as Chief Executive Officer of UNIFI and AHC or
(y) July 31, 2008, UNIFI and AHC shall take action to cause Lawrence J. Arth, the current Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Ameritas Acacia and AHC, to serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive
Officer of UNIFI and AHC and John H. Jacobs, the current Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Union Central,
to serve as Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Chief Operating Officer of both UNIFI and AHC.
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UNIFI and AHC shall take action to cause John H. Jacobs to be elected and appointed as Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer of both UNIFI and AHC to immediately succeed Lawrence J. Arth, such
election and appointment to occur no later than July 31, 2008. During the Mandatory Period, the employment of
Lawrence J. Arth and Jobn H. Jacobs cannot be terminated without a Supermajority Vote except in connection with
the CEO succession discussed above. In addition, after the consummation of the Merger, Lawrence J. Arth and John
H. Jacobs will promptly submit a written detailed CEO succession plan to the UNIFI Board and AHC Board for their

review and action, as applicable.

Executive Officers

The Merger Agreement provides that at least one senior executive of UNIFI and AHC will maintain a presence at each
of the Lincoln, Bethesda and Cincinnati executive office locations, provided that each of the Lincoln exacutive office
and the Cincinnati executive office will be the primary residence of at least one of the following executives; the
Chairman, CEO, President or COO of UNIFI and AHC. The Lincoln exscutive office location will continue to be
designated as the corporate domicile of UNIFI and AHC. Sez “Management.”
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THE MERGER AGREEMENT

The following is a brief summary of certain material provisions of the Merger Agreement. The descriptions of the
terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement set forth below or included elsewhere in this Information Statement are qualified
in their entirety by reference to the Merger Agreement. Members are urged to read the Merger Agreement in its entirety prior
to voting on the Plan. You may inspect and view the Proposed Plan of Merger at the Ameritas Acacia web site at
htp./fwww.ameritasacacia.com/merger.

The Merger Agreement

The Merger Agreement provides that, at the time the Merger becomes affective, UCMHC will merge with and into
Ameritas Acacia. Ameritas Acacia will be the surviving entity in the Merger, and the name of the surviving entity will be
changed to UNIFI Mutual Holding Company.

The Merger Agreement contains detailed representations, warranties and covenants by each of Ameritas Acacia and
Union Central which are customary for a transaction of this type. In particular, the Merger Agreement contains material
covenants of Ameritas Acacia that survive the Merger, including covenants regarding post-Merger corporate governance,
subsidiary operations and the determination of policyholder equity shares in the event UNIFI were to demutualize after the
Merger. In addition the Merger is subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions including the requisite approvals of
policyholders/members and the receipt of ail required regulatory approvals.

The obligations of Ameritas Acacia and Union Central to consummate the Merger are subject to the satisfaction of
the following conditions: (1) the approval of the Merger by the Ameritas Acacia Members and the approval of the
Reorganization and Merger by Union Central Policyholders; (2) the receipt of certain specified regulatory approvals and other
consents, including the approval of the Director of Insurance of the State of Nebraska, the Superintendent of the State of Ohio,
and a no-action letter from the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) or an opinion of counsel to the effect that
no registration under the Securities Act of 1933 is required; (3) the absence of any order, law or proceeding entered,
promulgated, enacted or brought by any governmental entity restraining or materially delaying the Merger; (4) Ameritas Acacia
shall have received a private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service or an opinion of counsel to the effect that the
Merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as 2 Section 368(a) reorganization; (3) Union Central shall have
received a private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service or an opinion of counsel to the effect that the Merger will
qualify as a transaction in which no gain or loss will be recognized to Union Central, Union Central Policyholders, or UCMHC
under Section 368 and/or Section 351 and that the Merger will be treated for federal income tax purposes as a Section
368(a) reorganization; (6) the termination or expiration of any waiting period applicable to the consummation of the
Reorganization under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976; (7) Union Central shall have established its
closed block; (8) the truth and accuracy of the representations and warranties of Ameritas Acacia and Union Central as if made
at the Effective Date of the Merger; (9) receipt of a certificate from each of the parties certifying each party’s compliance with
their respective obligations under the Merger Agreement; (10) receipt of actuarial fairness opinions (relating to the Merger);
and (11) Union Central shall have received a fairness opinion from Morgan Staniey relating to the Merger.

n t i j letion of the Merosr

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Ameritas Acacia and Union Central have agreed that from January 28, 2005, the
date of the Merger Agreement, until the Effective Date of the Merger, Ameritas Acacia, Union Central, and their respective
subsidiaries will conduct their businesses in the ordinary course, consistent with past practices and will use all reasonable
efforts to preserve intact their business organizations and gocdwill relationships with third parties.

Specifically, Ameritas Acacia and Union Central has each agreed, among other things, as to itself and its subsidiaries
prior to the Merger, subject to certain exceptions, to: (1) conduct its business in the ordinary course; (2) use all reasonable
efforts to preserve its relationships with its respective policyholders, members, insureds, agents, brokers, suppliers, customers,
depositors and others having business dealings with them,; (3) not make or propose any change in its premium rates, dividends,
underwriting, investment and other material insurance or business practices or policies in any material respect other than in the
ordinary course of business; {4) not amend its articles or by-laws/code of regulations; (5) except pursuant o certain disclosed
contracts, not issue or sell any shares of, ot rights of any kind to acquire any shares of or to receive any payment based on the
value of, its capital stock or any securities convertible into shares of any such capital stock; not incur any indebtedness for
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borrowed money other than in the ordinary course of business and other than borrowings less than one percent (1%) of each
party’s assets in the aggregate; (6) not make any material change in any method of accounting or accounting practice or policy,
except as required by law; (7) except as otherwise contemplated under the Merger Agreement, not agree to any merger,
consolidation, demutualization, redomestication, sale of all or substantially ail of its assets, bulk or assumption reinsurance
arrangement or similar reorganization, or business combination; (8) not enter info any contract that could materially and
adversely affect such party’s ability to perform its obligations under the Merger Agreement; (9) not enter into any contract
limiting the ability of such party or any of its subsidiaries to engage in any business, to compete with any person, to do business
with any person or in any location or to employ any person; not enter into any contract relating to the direct or indirect
guarantee (other than the endorsement of negotiable instruments for collection in the ordinary course of business) of any
obligation of any person {other than its subsidiaries or UNIFI) in respect of indebtedness for borrowed money or other financial
obligations of any person (other than its subsidiaries or ultimate parent); (10) not take any action that would be reasonably
likely to adversely affect the status of either the Merger as a reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Code; {11) not modify
any contract in existence as of the date of the Merger Agreement in such a way as would violate clauses (4) through (10) above;
(12) not increase in any manner the compensation of its directors, officers or employees, except in the ordinary course of
business or pursuant to the terms of agreements or plans as currently in effect; {(13) except as previously disciosed in writing,
not pay or agree to pay any pension, severance, retirement allowance or other employee benefit not required by any existing
employee benefit plan, agreement or arrangement to any director, officer or employee, whether past or present, except that
either party may offer a reasonable employee retention plan or program or a reasonable early retirement plan or program to
meet its business needs; (14) except as required by the terms of any existing plan or contract, not adopt or commit itself to or
enter into any additional pension, profit-sharing, bonus, incentive, deferred compensation, group insurance, severance pay,
retirement or other employee benefit plan or contract, or to any employment or consulting agreement with or for the benefit
of any person which cannot be terminated by a party to the Merger Agreement, its successor in interest or its subsidiary upon
notice of thirty (30) days or less without penalty or premium; (15) not amend any plan or contract referred to in clause
(14) above, not enter into, adopt or increase any indemnification or hold harmless arrangements with any directors, officers or
other employees or agents of any person; (16) other than in the ordinary course of business, not make any capital expenditures
or commitments for capital expenditures (other than in respect of Investment Assets as defined in the Merger Agreement)
which individually exceed $500,000 or which in the aggregate for such party and its subsidiaries, taken as whole, exceed
$5 million dollars; (17) other than in the ordinary course of business, not settle or compromise any claim in any proceeding or
investigation which could result in an expenditure in excess of $500,000; (18) not take any action that would reasonably be
expected to resuit in a reduction of a life insurance subsidiary’s financial strength or claims paying ratings; {19) and not agree,
in writing or otherwise, to take any of the actions prohibited by the foregoing clauses (1} through (18) above.

No Solicitati f Other Ti .

Ameritas Acacia and Union Central has each agreed that pending the effective Date of the Merger, it shall not, nor shall
it permit any of its subsidiaries to, without obtaining prior written consent of the other party, authorize or permit any of its
officers, directors, employees or other persons retained by it or on its behalf to: (1) solicit or take any action to pursue any
inquiries or the making of any proposal which constitutes, or is reasonably likely to lead to, any Reorganization Proposal (as
defined below); (2) participate in any discussions regarding, or furnish to any person other than the other party to the Merger
Agreement (and its representatives) any information with respect to, or otherwise cooperate in any way with, any efforts which
may lead to a Reorganization Proposal, or (3) approve any Reorganization Proposal; provided, Ameritas Acacia or Union Central
may (A) provide information in response to a request by a person who has made an unsolicited bona fide written Reorganization
Proposal; (B) engage in any discussions with any person who has made an unsolicited bona fide written Reorganization
Proposal; or (C) recommend such a Reorganization Proposal to the members or policyholders of their respective companies, if,
(1) in each such case referred to in clause (A), (B) or (C) above, the Board of Directors of the party to whom such Reorganization
Proposal is made determines in good faith that the failure to take such action is reasonably likely to result in a breach of the
Board of Directors’ fiduciary duties under applicable laws; and (2) in each case referred to in (B) or (C) above, the applicable
Board of Directors determines in good faith that such Reorganization Proposal may be a superior proposal.

The parties may engage in discussions with persons with respect to any transaction (other than a merger involving
Ameritas Acacia or Union Central) involving an acquisition or sale of assets with a fair market value, individually or in the
aggregate, of $25 million or less. Meither Ameritas Acacia nor Union Central will finalize any such transaction without the
other’s prior written approval.

A “Reorganization Proposal” for purposes of the prohibition on solicitation means, other than the transactions
contemplated by the Merger Agreement, any offer, proposal or inquiry relating to, or any Third Party indication of interest in,
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(A) any acquisition or purchase, direct or indirect, of all or a significant amount of the consolidated assets of the applicable
party and its subsidiaries (other than investment assets) or (B) a2 merger, consolidation, business combination, reorganization,
recapitalization, demutualization, bulk or assumption reinsurance arrangement involving all or a significant pertion of
insurance liabilities, liquidation, dissolution or other similar transaction involving the applicable party ot any of its subsidiaries
whose assets, individually or in the aggregate, constitutes more than 50% of the consolidated assets of the applicable party.

If either Ameritas Acacia or Union Central terminates the Merger Agreement by reason of a Reorganization Proposal,
a termination fee may be payable to the non-terminating party. The Merger Agreement provides that if a party terminates the
Merger Agreement in order to accept a Reorganization Proposal or due to the fact that its Board of Directors withdrew its
recommendation to avoid breaching its fiduciary duties, then the terminating party shall pay immediately to the other party
an amount of $30 million as liquidated damages in addition to all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the
non-terminating party in pursuit of the Reorganization.

, Vi n

Ameritas Acacia and Union Central agreed to certain matters relating to the composition of the Boards of Directors
of UNIFI, AHC and Union Central, including the number of designees of each party to such Boards, the composition of
various committees of the Boatds of UNIFI and AHC and certain matters relating to the conduct of the affairs of UNIFI and
its subsidiaries, including Union Central. Many of these agreements, some of which are reflected in the By-laws of UNIFI
and AHC, will remain in effect for a period of six years after the Effective Date. See “Corporate Governance of UNIFI
and Subsidiaries.”

Committees of the UNIFI Board of Directors

Under the Merger Agreement and the By-laws, UNIFI is required to maintain the following Board committees:
Executive; Audit; Nominating and Corporate Governance; Compensation; Intercompany Transactions; Ameritas
Acacia Designation Committee and Union Central Designation Committee.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the initial chairpersons and members of the committees (other than the
Designation Committees described below) will be determined by an eight member ad hoc Committee Designation
Committee (the “CDC"), all of the members of which shall be Independent Directors. The CDC will be comprised of
four directors selected by Ameritas Acacia and four directors selected by Union Central.

At the Effective Date and during the Mandatory Period, the Merger Agreement provides that at least onc of the
following Board committees of the UNIFI Board and the AHC Board shall be chaired by a Union Central Designee:
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, Audit Committee, Compensation Committee.

Vacancies in any committee (other than the Ameritas Acacia Designation Committee, the Union Central Designation
Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee) may be filled by action of the UNIFI Board.
In addition, the CDC'’s initial committee nominations will be subject to UNIFI Board approval.

A brief description of each UNIFI Board committee follows:

« Executive Committee. Except as limited by the laws of the State of Nebraska or by the provisions of the Articles
of Incorporation, the Executive Committee has all the powers of the UNIFI Board in the interim between meetings
of the UNIFI Board. The Executive Committee is obligated to carry into practical effect all orders and directions
of the UNIFI Board and shall in such interim decide all questions of current business policy. The Executive
Committes may elect, appoint, employ, remove or authorize the appointment, employment or removal of such
supervisory and administrative officers and employees as it shall deem necessary for the conduct of UNIFI's
business, including one or more assistant secretaries and one or more assistant treasurers, with full authority to
perform the duties of Secretary and Treasurer, respectfully, and fix and authorize payment of the compensation of
such officers and employees. It may, at its discretion, adjust the compensation of such officers and employees so
elected, appointed or employed.

«  Audit Committee. The Audit Committes is comprised of Independent Directors who shall serve until their
successors are elected and qualified. The Audit Committee assists the UNIFI Board in its oversight of the integrity
of UNIFI’s financial statements, UNIFI’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and the performance
of UNIFDs internal audit functions. The Audit Committee will also interact directly with and evaluate the
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performance of independent auditors, including determining whether to engage or dismiss such independent
auditors and will monitor their qualifications and independence.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. During the Mandatory Period, the nominees selected by the
Designation Committees as hereinafter defined to stand for election at the next Annual Meeting are required to be
submitted by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee as the management nominees to the UNIFI
Board. The UNIFI Board is required to declare them as the official nominees for director elections at the next
Annual Meeting. This committee also makes periodic recommendations to the UNIFI Board as to committee
appointments. During the Mandatory Period, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will be
comprised of an equal number of Ameritas Acacia Independent Directors and Union Central Independent Directors
{with the initial committee composition being comprised of the members of the CDC). In the event of a vacancy
on the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee during the Mandatory Peried, the Ameritas Acacia
Designation Committee (if the vacating director is an Ameritas Acacia Independent Director) and the Union
Central Designation Committee (if the vacating director is a Union Central Independent Director) will designate
another director to serve in such vacating director’s stead.

Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee is comprised of Independent Directors who shal! serve
until their successors are elected and qualified. The Compensation Committee evaluates and make
recommendations (and reports such evaluations and recommendations to the Board of Directors) with respect to
the compensation of the officers of UNIFI, and their performance relative to their compensation, to assure that they
are compensated effectively in a manner consistent with the overall objectives of UNIFI. The Board of Directors
makes all final determinations relating to the compensation of executive officers of UNIFI.

Intercompany Transactions Committee. The Intercompany Transactions Committee is comprised of six (6)

Independent Directors who shall serve until their successors are elected and qualified. During the Mandatory
Pericd, four (4) of the members of the Intercompany Transactions Commiittee shall be Ameritas Acacia Designees
(two of which Ameritas Acacia Designees shall be persons then serving as directors of Ameritas Life and two of
which shall be persons then serving as directors of Acacia Life) and two (2) shall be Union Central Designees
{which Union Central Designees shall be persons then serving as directors of Union Central). The Intercompany
Transactions Committee is required to review intercompany transactions involving potential conflicts of interest
among UNIFI and its subsidiaries, or any one of them, involving transactions between or among (a) Ameritas Life
or subsidiaries, (b) Acacia Life or any Acacia Life subsidiaries, and/or (c) Union Central or any Union Central
subsidiaries, against standards as may be imposed by the Nebraska Insurance Holding Company Systems Act,
Sections 44-2120-44-2154, the District of Columbia Insurance Holding Company System Act; Section 31-701
31-710, the Ohio Insurance Holding Company Regulatory Act, Sections 3901.32-3901.37, Sections 23 A, 238,
22(g) and 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act (FRA} through Section 10 of the Home Owners' Loan Act (HOLA) 12
USC 1468 or which in such Committee’s opinion might be applicable to & potential conflict of interest. In the event
that AHC or any of its subsidiaries shall determine to raise debt or equity capital in the future, prior to initiating
any such transaction, the Intercompany Transactions Committee will review such transaction or transactions
between the outside investor or investors and UNIFI or its subsidiaries for the purpose of ensuring that the interests
of members are protected.

Designation Committegs. During the Mandatory Period, UNIFI shall have an Ameritas Acacia Designation
Committee and a Union Central Designation Committee (together, the “Designation Committees™). Each Party’s
Designation Committee will be comprised of the Ameritas Acacia Designees and the Union Central Designees then
serving as directors of UNIFL During the Mandatory Period, the Ameritas Acacia Designation Committee will
select and designate the Ameritas Acacia Designees and the Union Central Designation Committee will select and
designate the Union Central Designees to be nominated to stand for election as management nominees at each
annual meeting of the UNIFI Members (“Annual Meeting™). Each Party’s Designation Committee will provide a
list of its designees to be so nominated to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Cormmittee prior to the next
Annual Meeting. The nominees so designated are all management nominees on whose behalf proxies are required
to be solicited by UNIFI or AHC. Members shall be permitted to nominate candidates for election to the UNIF]
Board in accordance with the Amended and Restated UNTFI Articles. In additien, the By-laws empower the Union
Central Designation Committee to enforce the corporate governance provisions in the Merger Agreement and the
UNIFI By-laws.
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+ Nominations by Members. Nominations for candidates to stand for election to the UNIFI Board of Directors may also
be made by qualified voting members by petition filed with the Secretary of the Corporation at least five (5) months
prior to the meeting at which the election is to be held. Each such petition is required to carry, in addition to the
name, address, date of signing, and policy number of each signer, the name, address, occupation, and state of

~ qualifications of each nominee. The minimum aumber of valid signatures required for nomination is three percent
(3%) of the total number of qualified voters. No signatures affixed to the petition more than sixty (60) days before
the filing are counted. Upon receipt of proper nomination by petition, the Secretary of UNIFI is required to forward
to the Nebraska Director notice of such nomination and to include the names of such nominees on the ballot with
nominees of the Board of Directors, both with appropriate designations.

Committees of AHC Board of Directors

AHC, during the Mandatory Period, is required to have the same Board Committees as does UNIFL. For the
Mandatory Period, the Union Central Designation Committee of AHC will have the ability to elect all of the members of the
Union Central Board.

The Merger Agreement contemplates that each of the three principal operating subsidiaries of UNIFI (i.e., Ameritas
Life, Acacia Life and Union Central) will continue to exist as a separate corporate entity. With respect to Union Central, UNIFI
and AHC have agreed in the Merger Agreement to use their reasonable efforts to ensure that Union Central will be in a position
to pursue its strategic business objectives (including One Company Marketing) and develop its products. This principle is
supported by a covenant to allocate capital fairly among the operating insurance subsidiaries. Specifically, the Merger
Agreement contemplates that UNIFI and AHC will use their reasonable efforts to maintain or invest additional capital in each
subsidiary or take such other action to ensure that each subsidiary’s separate S&P financial strength rating (or equivalent rating
from another rating agency of national reputation) is at least equal to the combined rating, i.e., UNIFI's rating, it being
understood that UNIFI and AHC cannot control the actual ratings assigned by any rating agency to any insurer). The obligation
of UNIFI and AHC to so maintain or invest capital in any subsidiary is subject to (i) the applicable insurance subsidiary
submitting a business proposal demonstrating a satisfactory retumn on the requested additional capital or such other action to
maintain ot ensure financial strength ratings and (ii) approval of such plan by the UNIFI Board and AHC Beard.
ration a idigri wing th
It is contemplated that following the Merger, each of the various subsidiary companies, including Ameritas Life
Insurance Corp. and Acacia Life Insurance Company, will continue to operate independently as they did prior to the Merger.
The principal exception will be that each life insurance company will be afforded the opportunity of cross selling products and
utilizing shared services of the other life insurance company. The strategic planning of the various independent life insurance
companies will be supervised and managed by an executive team from AHC, who will then strategically plan for all of the
various insurance companies in an effort to coordinate their activities, better utilize their resources, and reduce costs by
eliminating duplication of effort. The Executive Vice President, Individual Insurance, will be responsible and accountable for
the financial and management operations supporting all individual insurance and annuity products issued by Ameritas Life,
Acacia Life and Union Centra! and their respective insurance company subsidiaries. Each of the three principal operating
subsidiaries of UNIFI will continue to exist as separate corporate entities. With respect to Union Central, UNIFI and AHC will
use reasonable efforts to ensure that Union Central will be in a position to pursue its strategic business objectives and develop
its products. Union Central operates on a One Company Marketing philosophy, which emphasizes synergy, cooperation and
common interests to meet the needs of target customers. It is anticipated that Union Central will work with Ameritas Life and
Acacia Life to assist with the implementation of the One Company Marketing culture and principles, including but not limited
to working to identify key marketing opportunities, including product packaging, UNIFI branding, promotion and service
support initiatives critical to clients and to target markets. Additionally, Ameritas Life, Acacia Life and Union Central are
expected to provide ongoing training, as necessary, to agents and customer service representatives, and all other persons ina
position to advise clients on cross selling strategies and techniques. Additionally, the Merger Agreement provides that UNIFI
and AHC will use reasonable efforts to cause Ameritas Life, Acacia Life and Union Central to have the same stand alone
Standard & Poors financial strength ratings (or equivalent rating from another rating agency of national reputation) at least
equal_ to the consolidated rating assigned to the combined enterprise, subject to (i) the applicable insurance subsidiary
submitting a business proposal demonstrating a satisfactory return on the requested additional capital or such other action to

19



maintain or ensure financial strength ratings and (ii) approval of such plan by UNIFI and AHC, as applicable. See “Plan of
Merger — Subsidiary Arrangements; Capital Commitments.”

Ameritas Acacia and Union Central agreed upon a non-binding statement of operating principles (the “Statement of
Operating Principles”™) to realize the competitive advantages of linking the businesses of Ameritas Acacia and Union Central
as contemplated by the Merger Agreement. The parties intend to work together as affiliates in the UNIFI mutual holding
company structure to, and cause UNIFI and its subsidiaries to, carry out in good faith the post-Merger integration plan based
on the principles set forth in the Statement of Operating Principles. The parties acknowledge that there will be deviations from
the post-Merger integration principles set forth in the Statement of Operating Principles which may need to be made from time
to time to allow the parties the maximum flexibility they need in order to achieve an efficient integration. The focal points of
the Statement of Operating Principles include maintaining the operating independence of Ameritas Life, Acacia Life, Union
Central, and their subsidiaries, implementing the integration plan, implementing the One Company Marketing philosophy, and
increasing economies of scale and reducing overhead costs. The Statement of Operating Principles is attached to the Merger
Agreement as Exhibit 1.9(d).

: Jermingtion

The Merger Agreement provides, generally, that each of Ameritas Acacia and Union Central will bear its own expenses,
and jointly incurred expenses shall be borne equally by the parties. However, if a party terminates the Merger Agreement in order
to accept a Reorganization Proposal or due to the fact that its Board of Directors withdrew its recommendation to avoid
breaching its fiduciary duties, then the terminating party shall pay immediately to the other party an amount of $30 millior as
liquidated damages in addition to all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses iricurred by the non-terminating party in pursuit of the
Reorganization.

The amount of the Termination Fee was determined by negotiations between the parties to the Merger Agreement, The
Termination Fee is approximately 5% of the consolidated net worth of Union Central and its consolidated. subsidiaries at
December 31, 2003, and 3% of the consolidated net worth of Ameritas Acacia at such date, in such case as determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Ameritas Acacia Board believes that a termination fee of this
size is within the range of termination fees for transactions of the size and complexity of the Reorganization and provides
reasonable compensation to the non-terminating party for its time, effort and opportunity costs, especially in light of the
comparatively long period of time between execution of the Merger Agreement and the likely consummation of the transaction.

nd. i jon

« The Plan of Merger provides comnprehensive indemnification protection for current and former directors, officers and
employees of Union Central or its Subsidiaries (“Indemnified Parties™):

UNIFI Mutual Holding Company and Ameritas Holding Company agtee to jointly and severally indemnify and hold
harmless the Indemnified Parties against Liabilities (including advancement of reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses)
arising in connection with (x) such person’s actions as a current or former director, officer or employee of Union Central or its
Subsidiaries and (y) the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby.

After the Merger, UNIFI Mutual Holding Company and Ameritas Holding Company will honor and assume
responsibility for existing indemnification provisions in Union Central's Organizational Documents and any Union Central
indemnification agreements in favor of the Indemnified Parties, in each case subject to the limitations on liability
provided therein.

With respect to any acts or omissions occurring after the Merger, UNIFI Mutuai Holding Company and Ameritas
Holding Company will provide D&O insurance to directors, officers and employees comparable to other mutual life holding
companies of similar asset size and premiums.

Amendments

The Merger Agreement may be amended in writing by the parties at any time before or after the approval of the
Reorganization by the Union Central Policyholders or by the Ameritas Acacia Members, but after either such approval, no
amendment or modification may be made which in any way materially adversely affects the rights of such persons without the
further approval of such persons. Ameritas Acacia and Union Central have agreed to amend the Merger Agreement to the extent
necessary to obtain the regulatory approvals and other consents, including the approval of the Nebraska and Ohio Departments
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of Insurance, required to consummate the Metger, provided that the Ameritas Acacia Board and the Union Central Board each
may withdraw the authorization to enter into any such amendment if such board determines that the amendment materially
detracts from the value of the transaction to the respective company’s policyholders. Any amendments, modifications or
material waivers by the parties to the Merger Agreement shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Insurance of the
State of Nebraska and the Insurance Superintendent of the State of Ohio.

Terminati

The Merger Agreement may be terminated prior to the Effective Date of the Merger, whether before or after approval
of the Merger or by the Ameritas Acacia Members, as follows: (1) by mutual consent of the Ameritas Acacia Board and the
Union Central Board; 2) by either of the Ameritas Acacia Board or the Union Central Board if the Merger has not been
consummated on or before December 31, 2005, provided, a party may not terminate the Merger Agreement if its own failure
to fulfill e closing obligation is the reason for the Merger not yet having been consummated; (3) by either of the Ameritas
Acacia Board or the Union Central Board if the requisite policyholder and member approvals were not obtained; (4) by either
of the Ameritas Acacia Board or the Union Central Board if either party enters into a definitive binding agreement with a third
party for the transactions contemplated by a Reorganization Proposal, provided, that prior to any such termination, the party
seeking to terminate and enter into another agreement () complies in all respects with certain other provisions of the Merger
Agreement, (ii) provides five (5) business days prior written notice to the other party of its intention to enter into such other
agreement, and (iii) makes the payments contemplated by the Merger Agreement; (5) by either of the Ameritas Acacia Board
or the Union Central Board, if the Board of Directors of such other party changes, withdraws or adversely modifies its
recommendations from those set forth in the Merger Agreement to avoid breaching its fiduciary duties under applicable law
due to a Reorganization Proposal having been made; or (6) by either of the Ameritas Acacia Board or the Union Central Board
(provided that the terminating party is not then in material breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or other agrecment
contained in the Merger Agreement which would be reasonably expected to have an Ameritas Acacia Material Adverse Effect
or Union Central Material Adverse Effect (as defined in the Merger Agreement), as the case may be, on such terminating
party), if there has been a material breach on the part of the other party of any representation, warranty or agreement contained
in the Merger Agreement and such breach would be reasonably expected to have an Ameritas Acacia Material Adverse Effect
or a Union Central Material Adverse Effect, and such breach cannot be or has not been cured within sixty (60) days after

written notice.
For further details, see “*PLAN OF MERGER — Indemnifications”.
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REGULATORY MATTERS

General

Upon Union Central's Reorganization?, UCMHC will be merged with and into Ameritas Acacia, which will then be
renarmned UNIFI. UNIFL, a mutual insurance helding company, and AHC, an intermediate holding company and UNIFI's direct
subsidiary, both organized under the Nebraska Mutual Insurance Holding Company Act, will continue to be subject to the
supervision of the Nebraska Director to ensure that both member and policyholder interests of the policyholders are protected,
Neither UNIFI nor AHC is a licensed insurance company and therefore neither has the authority to directly engage in the business
of insurance; however, as mutual insurance holding companies, UNIFI and AHC will continue to be subject to regulation by the
Nebraska Department of Insurance pursuant to the provisions of the Nebraska Mutual Insurance Holding Company Act.

After the Merger, Ameritas Life will continue to be a Nebraska-domiciled insurer subject to ongoing insurance
regutation by the Nebraska Director. Acacia Life will continue to be a District of Columbia-domiciled insurer subject to
ongoing insurance regulation by the District of Columbia Insurance Commissioner. And, Union Central will continue to be an
Ohio-domiciled insurer subject to ongoing insurance regulation by the Ohio Superintendent, with the exception that it will be
subject to those provisions of the Ohio law relating to stock, as opposed to mutual, insurance companies.

Mutual Holding C l Satisfy Claims of Policvholder

UNIFI and AHC would automatically be parties in the event of any insolvency or delinquency proceeding brought
against (i) Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. under the Nebraska Insurers Supervision, Rehabilitation and Liquidation Act, Neb.
Rev. Stat. Sections 44-4803 to 4862, (ii) Acacia Life Insurance Company under the District of Columbia Insurers
Rehabilitation and Liquidation Act of 1993, Title 35, Sections 2801-2857, D.C. Code Ann,, or (iii) Union Central under the
Ohio Insurers Supervision, Rehabilitation and Liquidation Act, Ohio Rev. Code Sections 3093.01 to 3903.59. If necessary, the
assets of UNIFI and AHC may be deemed to be assets of Ameritas Life Insurance Corp., Acacia Life Insurance Company, or
Union Central for purposes of satisfying the claims of their policyholders, This means that in the unlikely event that Ameritas
Life Insurance Corp., Acacia Life Insurance Company, and Union Central could not satisfy the claims of their policyholders,
the assets of UNIF] and AHC could be used to satisfy such claims. These assets might in the future include the stock of other
subsidiaries and/or funds or securities held at the AHC or UNIFI level.

jon iquidati u

UNIFI and AHC may not dissolve or liquidate without the approval of the Nebraska Director or as ordered by a court
of law pursuant to Nebraska law. In the event of the ultimate dissolution or liquidation of UNIFI, any surplus which remains
at the time of such dissolution or liquidation after payment of the liabilities of UNIFI would be distributed to the members of

UNIFI (which would include policyholders of Ameritas Life, Acacia Life, and Union Central) in a manner determined by the
Board of Directors of UNIFI and as approved by the Nebraska Insurance Director.

\(iliated T p

UNIF] will continue to be subject to regulatory limitations on acquiring or operating subsidiaries under the Nebraska
law to the same extent as prior to the Reorganization. The life insurance subsidiaries of UNIFI that entsr into affiliated
transactions may also be required to provide prior notice to their respeciive state insurance regulators according to relevant
insurance regulations of their respective domiciliary states.

Dividend
Neither Ameritas Life, Acacia Life, nor Union Central may pay any extraordinary dividend or make any other
extraordinary distribution to its sole sharsholder, AHC, until 30 days after its respective insurance regulator has received notice

2Union Central, a mutual life insurance company organized under Ohio law, is subject to the regulation and supervision of, the State of Ohio. The
Reorganization is subject to review by, and the approval of the Ohio Superintendent pursuant to the requirements of Sections 3913.25 to 3913.38 of the Chio
Revised Code. The Reorganization is further subject to the review by, and approval of, the Nebraska Insurance Director because Ameritas Acacia, the
company with and into which UCMHC will be merged, is a mutual insurance holding company organized under Nebragka law. In addition, the New York
Superintendent of [nsurance is entitled under Section 1106(i) of the New York Insurance Law to review the Plan for fairness of the Reorganization to Union
Central's New York policyholders and to lodge any objections with the Ohio Superintendent and Union Central; other than satisfactory resolution of the
objections (if any), no approval by the New York Superintendent is required.
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of the declaration thereof and has not within such period disapproved such paymeént (or the payment has been approved within
such 30-day period). An extraordinary dividend or distribution, for the foregoing purposes, includes any dividend or
distribution of cash or other property, whose fair market value, together with that of other dividends or distributions made
within the preceding 12 months, exceeds the greater of 10% of Ameritas Life, Acacia Life, or Union Central's surplus as
applicable as of the preceding December 31 or the net income of Ameritas Life, Acacia Life, or Union Central as applicable
for the 12-month period ending the preceding December 31, but shall not include pro rata distributions of any class of Ameritas
Life, Acacia Life; or Union Central’s own securities as applicable. Any dividend or distribution paid from other than earned
surplus is also considered an extraordinary dividend or extraordinary distribution for these purposes. “Earned Surplus” in this
context means an amount equal to an insurer’s unassigned funds as set forth in its most recent statutory financial statement
submitted to applicable life insurance subsidiary’s insurance regulator, including net unrealized capital gains and losses on
revaluation of assets. _

Under Nebraska law, any distribution to UNIFT’s members will require prior written approval of the Nebraska Director
and may be made only upon the Director’s satisfaction that such distribution is fair and equitable to policyholders as members
of UNTFL In addition, UNIFI will not, under its Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, be permitted to make any
direct payment of dividends or any other distributions or payments of income, dividends or profits directly to members, except
as provided for in the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation in the event of the ultimate dissclution or liquidation
of UNIFI or as otherwise approved by the Nebraska Director,

Certain Jax Conseguences
Union Central has received a Private Letter Ruling from the Internal Revenue Service that the Union Central
Reorganization will be tax free to Ameritas Acacia, AHC, and UCMHC.

1t is a condition of closing the Merger that Ameritas Acacia shall have received an opinion from Sidley Austin
Brown & Wood LLP, special tax counsel to Ameritas Acacia, that the consummation of the Merger will qualify as a tax-free
reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of the United States, and that no gain or
ioss will be recognized by either Company to the respective Merger, or by the Members of sither Company as a result of
the Merger.

ula Qv
The following regulatory approvals are required for the Merger to be effective:
Hart-Scott-Rodino Act

Under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act and the rules promulgated thereunder by the Federal Trade Commission, the Merger
may not be consummated until notification has been given and certain information has been furnished to the Federal
Trade Commission and the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice, and specific waiting period requirements
have been satisfied. Both Companies filed notification report forms under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act with the Federal
Trade Commission and the Antitrust Division of the Justice Department on the February 17, 2005, and the 30 day
notification period has expired.

Office of Thrift Supervision

Ameritas Acacia filed written notification of the Plan of Merger with the Office of Thrift Supervision (*“OTS™) on
January 31, 2005. The filing of an OTS Change of Controi Application and prior OTS approval of this transaction is
not required, as the transaction does not give rise to a change of control of Ameritas Acacia.

Nebraska Department of Insurance

The Plan of Merger and the proposed Amendments to the Articles of Incorporation must be approved by the Nebraska
Insurance Director who has now reviewed the Plan of Merger and such other documents as determined to be relevant
and has issued an Order dated July 19, 2005, determining that the Plan of Merger, including Amendments to the
Articles of Incorporation, meets the statutory requirements and is approved.

DC Notification

Ameritas Acacia filed written notification of the Plan of Merger with the District of Columbia Department of
Insurance, Securities & Banking Regulation (the “Department”) on March 10, 2005. This notice was filed pursuant
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to Condition 11(F) of the Department’s Decision and Order dated December 28, 1998 (Case Number A-MHC-98-01)
approving the merger of the Acacia Mutual Holdmg Company into Ameritas Mutual Holding Company. Condition 11
provides in pertinent part: .

Ameritas Acacia and Ameritas Holding shall file with the Commissioner, for his review and

comment, any and all of the following plans or proposals:

F. Any merger of Ameritas Acacia or Ameritas Holding with any other mutual holding
company or intermediate stock holding company.

Ohio Department of Insurance

The Ohie Insurance Commissioner is reviewing the Plan of Merger and such other documents as determined to be
relevant. He has also scheduled a Public Hearing for September 27, 2005. Following the Hearing, the Ohio Insurance
Commissioner will issue an Order either approving or disapproving the Plan of Merger.

UNIFI, AHC, and Union Central may adopt undertakings or enter into agreements with the Superintendent of the
Ohio Department of Insurance covering such matters as he may require in connection with his approval of the Union
Central Plan of Reorganization and the Plan of Merger. These undertakings may be amended by agreement between
UNTF1, AHC, Union Central and the Superintendent at a future time without a vote of UNIFI Members or Union
Central Policyholders.

New York Department of Insurance

Although Union Central is domiciled in the State of Ohio, the New York State Insurance Department (“New York
Department™) has conducted a review of the Plan pursuant to Section 1106(i) of the New York Insurance Law.
Ameritas Acacia (on behalf of itself and after the Effective Date, UNIFI), AHC and Union Central, as well as any
party that subsequently acquires control of Union Central (the “Bound Parties”) have agreed to comply with certain
terms that the New York Superintendent has requested. These terms are set forth in a stipulation that will be entered
into by Ameritas Acacia (on behalf of itself and after the Effective Date, UNIFI), AHC, Union Central and the
New York Department {(“Stipulation”). The Stipulation is summarized below.

Any application seeking the demutualization, conversion or any other change in corporate form of UNIFI, or other
transaction, which is reasonably expected to permit or cause the members of UNIFI to realize all or part of the
economic value of their membership interests in UNIFI, will be subject to review by the New York Department. Prior
to the issuance or sale of any securities by a Bound Party that is subject to the review of the Ohio Superintendent or the
Nebraska Director or any other insurance regulatory body, certain information will be filed with the New York
Superintendent relating to such securities offering. Prior notification of the New York Superintendent will also be
required for each Affiliate Transaction (as defined in the Stipulation), that involves payments, transfers, value or
property in an amount equal to or exceeding 5% (five percent) of the consolidated net worth of UNIFI as of the
preceding December 31. If the New York Superintendent finds that any of these transactions will not be fair or equitable
to New York policyholders of Union Central, the New York Superintendent will set forth the reasons for such findings
and notify the primary regulators and the Bound Parties, advising them of any requirements necessary for the protection
of New York policyholders of Union Central in order to permit Union Central to continue to do business in New York.

The Bound Parties also have agreed not to interfere with any efforts made by the New York Superintendent to assert
standing in any rehabilitation or liquidation proceeding of UNIFI, or to which UNIFI is a party.

In addition, the Stipulation includes several provisions relating to the Closed Block. If Union Central declares or pays,
with respect to any class of policies other than Closed Block policies, policy dividends that are based on the overall
financial experience (as defined in the Stipulation) of Union Central rather than on the financial experience of such
class of policies, Union Central agrees to pay a reasonably proportionate amount with respect to Closed Block policies,
and such amount paid with respect to Closed Block policies will not be charged to the Closed Block. Also, the New York
Superintendent is required to be notified with respect to various other matters concerning the Closed Block.

Securities Laws
Under date of June 30, 2005, Ameritas Acacia received an opinion from the Sidley Austin Brown & Wood LLP,

opining that the Merger and related conversion of membership interest does not constitute the offering of securities and
accordingly, no registration was required under the Securities Act of 1933.
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vestimen m 4

Pursuant to the Plan of Merger, the Companies were required to obtain, if necessary, the consent of trustees and
shareholders. Ameritas Acacia has received an opinior: from the law firm of Kirkpatrick & Lockhart Nicholson Graham, LLE,
to the effect that the proposed Merger does not cause a requirement under the Investment Company Act of 1940 or the
Investment Advisors Act of 1940 to obtain trustee and shareholder approvals with regard to Ameritas Acacia Subsidiaries®
investment advisory contracts entered into before the Effective Date.

UNIF], as a mutual insurance holding company, and Ameritas Holding Company, as an intermediate holding
company, organized under the Nebraska Mutual Insurance Holding Company Act, will be subject to the supervision of the
Nebraska Insurance Director to ensure that both Member and policyholder interests are protected. Neither UNIFI nor Ameritas
Holding Company will, however, have the authority to engage in the business of insurance. UNIFI will be subject to the
regulations of the Nebraska Department of Insurance pursuant to the provisions of the Nebraska Mutual Insurance Holding
Company Act. Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. will continue to be subject to ongoing insurance regulation by the Nebraska
Insurance Director, Acacia Life Insurance Company will continue to be subject to ongoing insurance regulation by the
D.C. Insurance Commissioner, and Union Central Life Insurance Company will continue to be subject to ongoing insurance
regulation by the Ohio Insurance Commissioner. Ameritas Life Insurance Corp., Acacia Life Insurance Company, and Union
Central Life Insurance Company will retain their current respective domiciles of Nebraska, the District of Columbia, and Ohio.

UNIF], as a mutual insurance holding company, and Ameritas Holding Company, as an intermediate Holding
Company will be treated as a domestic life insurance companies subject to the Insurers Demutualization Act; the Nebraska
Supervision Rehabilitation and Liquidation Act, Chapter 44, Article 2 and Sections 44-301 Neb. Rev. Stat. Except with the
approval of the Nebraska Director, UNIFI may not encumber more than 49% of UNIFI’s stock in Ameritas Holding Company
(or any other intermediate stock holding company) or any reorganized stock insurer. At least 50% of UNIFI's net worth, as
determined by generally accepted accounting practices, is required to be invested in insurance companies. UNIFI may not
demutualize without the approval of the Nebraska Insurance Director. In addition, UNIFI and Ameritas Holding Company will,
except as otherwise limited by the insurance laws of the State of Nebraska, have all the powers granted to corporations
organized pursuant to the Nebraska Business Corporation Act. UNIFI and Ameritas Holding Compeny will, under their
Amended Articles of Incorporation, have the power to conduct any lawful business and will have perpetual existence, unless

sooner dissolved as provided by law.

UNIFI and Ameritas Holding Company may be parties to any proceeding brought against Ameritas Life, Acacia Life,
or Union Central Life under the Nebraska Insurers Supervision, Rehabilitation and Liquidation Act, Neb. Rev, Stat Sections
44-4803 to 4862 or the District of Columbia Insurers Rehabilitation and Liquidation Act of 1993, Title 33, Sections 2801-2857,
D.C. Code Ann. (1996 Supp.), or the Chio Reserve Valuation; Rehabilitation and Liquidation Act; R.C. Sections 3903 01 to
3903.76 for the purpose of liquidating, rehabilitating, conserving or otherwise reorganizing Ameritas Life, Acacia Life, or
Union Central Life and the assets of UNIFI and Ameritas Holding Company may be available to satisfy claims against
Ameritas Life, Acacia Life or Union Central Life.

In addition, UNIFI may be required to contribute capital to Acacia Federal Savings Bank pursuant to a federal
banking statute.

UNIFI may not dissolve or liquidate without the approval of the Nebraska Insurance Director or as ordered by a court
of law as provided by statute. In the event of a dissolution of liquidation of UNIFI, any surplus which remains at the time of
such dissolution ot liquidation after payment of the liabilities of UNIFI would be distributed to the Members of UNIFlin a
manner determined by the Board of Directors of UNIFI and as approved by the Nebraska Insurance Director. Ameritas Holding
Company would have no dissolution, liquidation or other rights with respect to UNIFL

n ision Vi,

Any company that controls a savings and loan is a savings and loan holding company. Upon the Effective Date of the
Merger, UNIFi and Ameritas Holding Company will continue to be savings and loan holding companies subject to statutory
and regulatory requirements imposed upon savings and loan holding companies. Acacia Life Insurance Company, Acacia
Financial Corporation, and Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. will also continue to be savings and loan holding companies subject
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to regulation by the Office of Thrift Supervision. A savings and loan holding company is subject to registration with the Office
of Thrift Supervision and must provide data about the financial condition, ownership, operations, management, and
intercompany relationships of itself and its Subsidiaries. Savings and loan holding companies, ameng other requirements, must
maintain books and records, must file periodic reports with the Office of Thrift Supervision, and are subject to Office of Thrift
Supervision examination.

EMPLOYMENT MATTERS

The Severance Policy of each-of Ameritas Acacia and its Subsidiaries and Union Central and its Subsidiaries shall
apply to their respective employees terminated as a result of the Merger (and for “Merger-related” position eliminations
occurring within 1 year after the Effective Date).

As soon as practicable after the Effective Date, the Surviving Mutual Holding Company shall, if desmed appropriate in
the judgment of the Board of Directors of the Surviving Mutual Holding Company, take appropriate action to cause the existing
benefit plans of each of its Subsidiaries to be amended, consolidated, conformed or terminated, if redundant or unnecessary.

COSTS OF MERGER

All costs and expenses incurred in connection with the Plan of Merger shall be paid by the party incurring such costs
or expenses except that the expenses incurred jointly shall be borne fifty percent (50%) by Ameritas Acacia and fifty percent
(50%) by Union Central. Union Central shall be responsible for all expenses relating to its conversion into the mutual holding
company form and for formation of any closed block. It is estimated that the transitional costs of the Merger, including all of the
printing and mailing, costs of outside consuitants, and special counse! to the Ohio Department of Insurance, and the New Yori
State Insurance Department should not exceed $12 million.

Additionally, it is estimated that the one-time costs of consolidating admmlstranve servrces, paying of retention
bonuses, severance costs, may be as much as $26 million. It is, however, anticipated that the savings to be realized by
consolidating administrative services alone will exceed the one-time cost of consolidating administrative services, For further
details, see heading “PLAN OF MERGER - Fees and Expenses™.

RATINGS

Subsequent to the announcement of the transaction with Union Central, AM. Best, Standard & Peor’s (5&P), and
Moody's Ratings Services announced the following rating actions with respect to the Ameritas Acacia life companies they rate:

o AM. Best: affirmed Ameritas Life Insurance Corp.’s, Acacia Life Insurance Company’s, and First Ameritas Life
Insurance Corp. of New York’s financial strength and operating performance ratings of Ag* (Excellent), the third
highest rating of A.M. Best’s fifteen ratings.

+ S&P: affirmed Ameritas Life Insurance Corp.’s, Acacia Life Insurance Company’s, Ameritas Variable Life Insurance
Company's, and First Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. of New York’s financial strength ratings of AA- (Very Strong),
the fourth highest rating of S & P’s twenty-one ratings.

+ Moody’s: affirmed Ameritas Life Insurance Corp.'s long-term insurance financial strength rating of Al (Good), the
seventh highest rating of Moody's twenty-seven ratings.

A.M. Best and S&P likewise annovnced the following rating actions with respect to Union Central:

o A.M. Best: Placed Union Central’s financial strength rating of A- (Excellent), the fourth highest rating out of A.M.
Best’s fifteen ratings, under review with positive implications. A.M. Best believes the Merger will improve the
financial flexibility of Union Central while providing opportunities to broaden its product portfolios, expand its
distribution network, and leverage cross-selling opportunities.

» S&P: affirmed Union Central’s financial strength ratings of A- (Strong), the seventh highest rating out of S&P’s
twenty-one ratings. It also revised its outlook on Union Central to positive from stable based on the Merger.

Ratings are not in any way a measure of protection afforded to investors and should not be relied upon in making a
voting decision.
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DIVIDEND RIGHTS OF POLICYHOLDERS

Ameritas Life. Following its reorganization and formation as a mutual holding company effective January I, 1998
(the “1998 Ameritas Plan of Reorganization™), Ameritas Life established a Closed Block for Ameritas Life participating
policies for the exclusive benefit of the Closed Block business. Ameritas Life allocated assets to the Closed Block in an amount
that produces cash flows that, together with anticipated revenues from the Closed Block business, are expected to be sufficient
to support the Closed Block business including provisions for payment of claims and certain expenses and taxes, and to provide
for continuation of dividend scale payable for 1998 if the experience underlying such scale (including the portfolio interest
rate) continues, and for appropriate adjustments in such scale if the experience changes.

Acacia Life. As part of its plan to reorganize and form a mutual holding company effective June 30, 1997 (the *1997
Acacia Plan of Reorganization”), Acacia Mutual Life Insurance Company, the predecessor of Acacia Life, committed to certain
dividend undertakings regarding future dividend apportionment practices with respect to participating individual life insurance
policies issued prior to its reorganization. These undertakings are designed to maintain policy dividend policies and practices
in place prior to the reorganization for the benefit of all qualifying policyholders of pre-reorganization participating policies.
Specifically, they are intended to assure that future dividends on such policies are determined in a manner consistent with
Acacia Mutual's historical practices. Acacia Life intends to seek regulatory approval to establish the Acacia Life Closed Block
following the Effective Date of this Merger. The Acacia Life Closed Block is intended to assure that future dividends on
policies included therein will be determined in a manner consistent with Acacia Life's historical practices.

Upion Central, Pursuant to the Plan of Reorganization, Union Central shall establish a Closed Block for Union
Central’s individual, dividend-paying, participating policies in force on the Effective Date for the exclusive benefit of the
Closed Block business. Union Central will aliocate assets to the Closed Block in an amount that produces cash flows that,
together with anticipated revenues from the Closed Block business, are expected to be sufficient to support the Closed Block
business including provisions for payment of claims and certain expenses and taxes, and to provide for continuation of the 20035
dividend scale in aggregate if the experience underlying such scale continues, and for appropriate adjustments in such scaie if
the experience changes.

Paymeut of Dividends, Ameritas Life, Acacia Life and Union Central agree that following the Merger, policy
dividends on participating policies, whether issued before or after each company's reorganization, will continue to be paid in
accordance with the terms and provisions of such policies, when, if, and as declared by the Board of Directors of Ameritas
Life, Acacia Life, or Union Central, as the case may be, in accordance with the terms of such policies, although the amounts
of such dividends may vary from year to year.

MEMBERS RIGHTS

The Plan of Merger specifically provides that immediately following the Merger, each Member of UNIFI shall
possess identical member rights. Members of UNIFI will be entitled to vote in the election of directors of UNIFI and to vote
on such other matters as may be presented to them from time-to-time by the Board of Directors of UNIFI in accordance with
the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of UNIFT or as otherwise provided by law. The voting rights of Members will be equal
and each Member will be entitled to only one (1) vote irrespective of the number of policies or amount of insurance owned by
such Member provided that the persons who or entities which own policies in more than one capacity (e.g. individually as
trustee under separate trusts), will be entitled to vote in each such capacity. A Member otherwise eligible to vote loses all such
rights upon termination of the policy which gave rise to the Member’s interest in UNIFI. Furthermore, after the Merger, an
Eligible Member is entitled to only one (1) vote as a Member of UNIFI even though such Member may own one or mote
policies with Ameritas Life Insurance Corp., Acacia Life Insurance Company, or Union Central Life Insurance Compary.

Under its Articles of Incorporation, UNIFI will not be permitted to make any direct payment of dividends or any other
distributions or payments of income or of profit to its Members except as provided for in the Articles of Incorporation in the
event of a dissolution or liquidation of UNIFI or as otherwise directed by the Nebraska Insurance Director. In the case of
dividends paid to UNIFI by Ameritas Holding Company, except as directed by the Director, UNIFI will invest such dividends
and other income it receives on its other permitted investments, net of applicable taxes and expenses, in additional common
stock or other equity or debt securities of Ameritas Holding Company, whether by original issue by Ameritas Holding
Company or by purchase in the open market or of a type authorized for investment by a domestic life insurer.

Each Member of UNIFI will be prohibited from transferring such Members’ membership interest in UNIFI (and any
right arising from such membership) except in conjunction with permitted transfers of the underlying policics, and a

27



membership interest in UNIFL will automatically terminate and cease (and no distribution or compensation will be received
from UNIFI in exchange for such membership interest) upon the lapse or termination of the policy from which such
membership interest in UNIFI is derived. No Member of UNIF], in his or her capacity as a Member, will be personally liable
for debts, liabilities, or obligations of UNIFI or subject to assessments of any kind. .

Consistent with the provisions of Section 3.1 of the Plan of Merger, UNIFI Mutual Holding Company shall take action
to ensure that the terms of the 1998 Ameritas Plan of Reorganization, the terms of the 1997 Acacia Plan of Reorganization,
and the terms of Exhibit 3.2 to the Plan of Merger with respect to Union Central’'s Members’ “participation rights” to subscribe
for stock in the event of any initial public offering (“IPO") are honored and implemented. Ameritas Acacia and Union Central
agree that the 1998 Ameritas Plan of Reorganization, the 1997 Acacia Plan of Reorganization, and Exhibit 3.2 to the Plan of
Merger, all regarding Members® “participation rights,” shall survive the Merger, and be honored in the event of any IPO of
common stock as provided in said plans of reorganization and Exhibit 3.2. Neither Ameritas Acacia nor Union Central has any
present intent or plans to take the Intermediate Holding Company public.

In the event UNIFI Mutual Holding Company should in the future decide to adopt a plan to demutualize, the
allocation of consideration among its Members shall be calculated on a fair and equitabie basis, consistent with Actuarial
Standard of Practice No. 37 (or any successor standard), which shall include, if and as appropriate, taking into account relevant
extraordinary corporate events, if any, of each of Ameritas Life, Acacia Life and Union Central and their respective
subsidiaries. The Parties have no present intent or plan to demutualize the Surviving Muteal Holding Company. '

CAPITAL RESOURCES

The capital resources of UNIFT after the Merger will include the shares of Ameritas Holding Company held as weil
as the shares of all of the Subsidiaries of Ameritas Holding Company held indirectly through Ameritas Holding Company and
may also include proceeds from borrowing, management fees, and dividends resulting from the operations of Subsidiary
companies, including the life insurance Subsidiaries. Dividends payable by the life insurance companies or any of the other
Subsidiaries with respect to its capital stock will be subject to applicable statutory restrictions.

In the future, UNIFI could sell to the public or other parties capital stock of Ameritas Holding Company owned by it
or Ametitas Holding Company could sell newly issued shares of its capital stock, both commen or preferred. Alternatively,
Ameritas Holding Company or any of its Subsidiaries could issue debt. Any such efforts to raise capital could be made without
further consent or approval of the Members of UNIFI either in a capacity as such or as policyholders of the life Subsidiaries
although the approval of the Nebraska Insurance Director is required. The Nebraska Mutual Insurance Holding Company Act,
however, provides, that UNIFI must at all times, directly or indirectly, control all of the stock of the life insurance Subsidiaries
through the ownership of at least a majority of the voting capital stock of Ameritas Holding Company. Although no plans have
been formulated to sell any shares of capital stock or to incur debt, management of Ameritas Acacia believes that such
enhanced financial and strategic flexibility is an important benefit of the proposed merger.

Additionally financial resources may also be available to UNIFI through borrowing from unaffiliated lenders, In
connection with any such borrowing, UNIFI could grant the security interest in the assets of UNIFI, including, except as
provided by law or regulation, a portion of the capital stock of Ameritas Holding Company held by UNIFIL. Any payments of
principal or interest on any borrowing of UNIFI would need to be made from available f inancial resources of UNIF], which
initially may consist of dividends if any from Ameritas Holding Company.

Dividends with respect to capital stock and management fees payable by the various Subsidiaries will be subject to
determination and declaration by its Board of Directors. It is anticipated that the principal factors affecting any such
determination and declaration would include among other factors, the Subsidiary’s financial condition and results of
operations, tax considerations, industry standards, economic conditions, and regulatory restrictions affecting the payment of
dividends by any such Subsidiary.

UNIFI and Ameritas Holding Company shall, under the plan of Merger, use reasonable efforts to maintain at least a
AA- Standard & Poors (“S&P™) financial strength rating {or equivalent rating from another rating agency of national
reputation) of the Life Insurance Subsidiaries as a consolidated entity (the “Consolidated Rating”). UNIF] and Ameritas
Holding Comparny further agree to use reasonable efforts to maintain or invest additional capital in each Life Insurance
Subsidiary or take such other action to ensure that each separate Life Insurance Subsidiary's S&P financial strength rating (or
equivalent rating from another rating agency of national reputation) is at least equal to the Consolidated Rating (it being
understood that the UNIEFT Mutual Holding Company and Ameritas Holding Compacy cannot control the actual ratings

28



assigned by any rating agency to any insurer). In the event that for any given period there is no Consolidated Rating, UNIFI
Mutual Holding Company and Ameritas Holding Company, until such time as a Consolidated Rating is assigned, will use
reasonable efforts to maintain capital in each Life Insurance Subsidiary at a level sufficient to maintain such Life Insurance
Subsidiary’s S&P financial strength rating (or equivalent rating from another rating agency of national reputation) at its then
current level. Any investment of additional capital or such other action to maintain or ensure financial strength rating(s) at
levels set forth above shall be subject to: (1) submission by Ameritas Life or Acacia Life or Union Central, as the case may be,
of a business proposal(s) or plan(s) demonstrating a satisfactory return on the requested additional capital or such other action;
and (2) approval of such business proposal(s) or plan(s) by the Boards of Directots of UNIFI Mutual Holding Company and

Ameritas Holding Company.
POSSIBLE RE-ALIGNMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries of Ameritas Life Insurance Corp., Acacia Lifs Insurance Company, cr Union Central Life Insurance
Company may be re-aligned to become Subsidiaries of Ameritas Holding Company. The ability to re-align Subsidiaries of any
life insurance company following the Merger, as.permitted by law should provide the resulting organization with added
flexibility to simplify its operations, clarify management and regulatory responsibilities, and increase the recognition of such
companies as independent businesses. No specific plans have been formulated as of this time with respect to the possible
re-alignment of any direct or indirect Subsidiaries of Ameritas Acacia or Union Central following the Merger, although
management of both Ameritas Acacia and Union Central considers such organizational flexibility to be an important benefit
of the proposed Merger. See also “THE MERGER — Operations After the Merger”. Any such re-alignment, if pursued in the
future, may be accomplished without further consent or approval of the Members of UNIFI either in their capacity as such or
as policyholders, although the Intercompany Transaction Comunittee previously described under Committees would be asked
to review any such transactions for possible conflicts of interest or related issues. [t is possible that the merger of one UNIFI
life insurance company subsidiary into another UNIFI life insurance company subsidiary might result in the vesting of UNIFI
membership interests in policyholders who previously did not possess UNIFI membership interests, in which case such a result
could be dilutive to the membership interests of existing UNIFI Members. The Ameritas Acacia Board of Directors does not
presently anticipate that there will be a merger of any life insurance subsidiary or subsidiaries or any other transaction or
transactions that might result in dilution of members interests of existing Members.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANIES

Ameritas Acacis Mutual Holding Company

Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company was formed effective January 1, 1999, as a result of the merger of Acacia
Mutual Holding Company into Ameritas Mutual Insurance Holding Company. This merger represented the first merger of
mutual insurance holding companies. Below is some information regarding Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company and
The Union Central Life Insurance Company.

Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company owns 100% of Ameritas Holding Company. Ameritas Holding Company
owns 100% of the stock of both Ameritas Life Insurance Corp., and Acacia Life Insurance Company.

Ameritas Life msurance Corp.

Ameritas Life Insurance Corp., formerly known as Bankers Life Insurance Company of Nebraska, was originally
incorporated as a stock insurance company under the laws of Nebraska in 1887. The company began its operations as
mutual life insurance company in 1949. It became the fifth mutual life insurance company in the United States to
reorganize under the mutual insurance holding company laws, compieting its reorganization effective January 1, 1998.
The company with its subsidiaries, reported in excess of $5.5 billion 1 consolidated assets and equity in excess of
$239 million as of December 31, 2004.

Ameritas Life and its Subsidiaries provide a broad range of individual life and annuity products for individuals and
businesses. Principal products inciude term life, variable life and annuity contracts and a low load series of universal
and variable life and variable annuity products. As of December 31, 2004, 131,371 individual life policies were in
force with a face amount in excess of $21.2 billion and 49,043 individual annuities were in force.
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Ameritas Life markets variable life and annuity products primarily through its affiliate, Ameritas Variable Life
Insurance Company (AVLIC). AVLIC also markets fixed annuity products. In 1996, Ameritas Life Insurance Corp.
entered into a Joint Venture with AmerUs Life Insurance Company to form AMAL Corporation. AMAL Corporation
owns 100 percent (100%) of AVLIC and Ameritas Investment Corp (AIC), a full service broker-dealer. Ameritas Life
Insurance Corp. currently owns fifty-two point four percent (52.4%) of AMAL Corporation, Acacia Life and
subsidiaries currently owns fourteen percent (14%) of AMAL Corporation, and the remaining thirty-three point six
percent (33.6%) is owned by AmerUS, an unaffiliated Life Insurance Company.

Individual insurance operations are conducted through diversified distribution systems that inclode career agencies,
special marketing agencies, a low-[oad distribution system, and a broker-dealer distribution system for variable products.

Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. is well known for its group dental and eyecare products and services. Group dental
products include trust plans; tailored indemnity programs; high quality and competitively priced programs in a
participating provider panel setting, Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. also provides administration and claims services
only business for other companies. In 2004, total premium income for this line of business exceeded $425 million.
Group products and services in New York are marketed by First Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. of New York.

The Ameritas Life Retirement Line of business offers a wide range of investment products for qualified pension plans.
The Retirement Line also provides administrative services for qualified plans. The Pension Line has over 51 billion
of assets under management.

Tnvestment products and services are marketed through Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. affiliated companies. Ameritas
Investment Corp. (“AIC™), the full service securities broker-dealer, offers a wide spectrum of investment products,
including stocks, bonds, mutual funds, and fee based advisory setvices, as well as serving as the principal underwriter
for variable contracts issued by Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. and Ameritas Variable Life Insurance Company. The
Public Finance Division of AIC specializes in developing and marketing bond offerings for corporations,
municipalities, and school districts.

Ameritas Investment Advisors, Inc (“AIA™) provides investment advisory services to Ameritas Life Insurance Corp.,
Acacia Life Insurance Company, and to other affiliated insurance companies. AIA also offers an investiment management
account, giving non-affiliated, non-insurance clients the opportunity to obtain professional investment advisory services,

Pathmark Administrators, Inc. distributes and administers worksite products and services.

Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. consistently earns high ratings from independent industry analysts. Iis financial
strength and operating performance is rated Ag* (Excellent) by A.M. Best Company, Inc., the third highest rating of
fifteen ratings. Upon announcement of the Merger, this rating was affirmed. Standard & Poor’s rates Ameritas Life
Insurance Corp. as AA- (Very Strong), the fourth highest of Standard & Poor’s twenty-one ratings for its financial
strength. Upon announcement of the Merger, this rating was affirmed. Moody’s rates Ameritas Life Insurance Corp.
as Al, which is the seventh highest of twenty-seven ratings for long term insurance financial strength. Upon
announcement of the Merger, this rating was affirmed.

Acacia Life Insurance Company

Acacia Mutual Life Insurance Company (“Acacia Mutual”), chartered by a Special Act of Congress in 1869, was the
third mutual life insurance company in the United States to reorganize into the mutual holding company form. The
reorganization, completed effective June 30, 1997, simultaneously created a mutual insurance holding company and
reorganized Acacia Mutual as a stock life insurance company (“Acacia Life”) of the new mutwal holding company.
The company with its subsidiaries, reported in excess of 52.6 billion in consolidated assets and equity in excess of
$359 million as of December 31, 2004

Acacia Life provides a broad range of fixed life insurance products for individuals and businesses. These products
include traditional whole life, universal life, and fixed annuities. As of December 31, 2004, 102,474 individual life
policies were in force with a face amount in excess of §5.7 billion and 13,996 individual annuities were in force.

Individual insurance operations are conducted through diversified distribution systems that include career agencies,
special marketing agencies, personal producing general agents, and a broker-dealer distribution system for
variable products.
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Diversified Financial Services

Acacia Life owns all of the outstanding stock of the Acacia Financial Corporation, a holding company, which owns
all of the stock of various other subsidiaries including:

The Calvert Group, Ltd., 2 wholly-owned subsidiary of Acacia Financial Corporation, through its subsidiaries and
affiliates, offers a broad range of investment products and services, including the nation’s largest family of socially
responsible mutual funds. With Calvert funds, investors don’t have to choose between investment returns and personal
goals. Calvert offers a full family of mutual funds designed to help investors achieve financial security while helping
to build a sustainable future. With over twenty-five years of expertise, Calvert offers a diversified range of fixed
income funds including corporate bond, tax-free and money market funds. Calvert employs their unique, time-tested
investment strategies to achieve competitive performance. For the year ended December 31, 2004, total revenue for
The Calvert Group was $93.3 million, and total assets under management were $10.3 billion.

The Acacia Federal Savings Bank (“Acacia Federal™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Acacia Financial Corporation,
offers its customers a wide range of banking products and services. Acacia Federal offers certificates of deposit,
money market accounts, and IRA's. Acacia Federal also offers unsecured credit lines, secured and unsecurad personal
loans, residential mortgage loans, including fixed and adjustable rate first trust mortgages, second trust loans, home
equity lines of credit, and residential construction and commercial loans. For the year ended December 31, 2004,
Acacia Federal had assets of $957.6 million and total revenues were $47.4 million.

The Acacia Realty Corp. is an owner of commercial real estate properties.
i ¥ jes - i . rmati
Employees and Sales Representatives

As of June 30, 2005, Ameritas Life and Acacia Life employed approximately 1550 employees and contracted with
approximately 1700 sales representatives. Ameritas Life and Acacia Life have good relations with their employees and
sales representatives.

Underwriting and Pricing

Individual insurance underwriting involves the selection of risks consistent with product pricing. The Ameritas Life
and Acacia Life Underwriting Department is responsible for reviewing and underwriting applications for coverage.
The underwriters are expected to comply with Ameritas Life and Acacia Life established practices and procedures that
are designed to appropriately assess and quantify all manners of risk. The underwriting of these risks may take into
account multiple factors, including, an applicant’s medical history, alcohol, drug and tobacco use, driving record,
occupation and financial profile. A policy is not issued until recognized risk factors have been evaluated and the
extent of the risks has besn resolved.

Ameritas Life and Acacia Life base underwriting primarily on the mortality experience and criteria of our reinsurers,
in addition to comparing our underwriting against industry standards. This process is consistently evaluated and
updated based upon industry experience and advances in medical science.

Product pricing reflects Ameritas Life and Acacia Life underwriting standards. Factors considered in setting
premiums and charges for insurance products include assumptions as to future investment retwns, expenses,
persistency, mortality, morbidity, taxes and certain macroeconomic factors such as inflation. Product specifications
and underwriting are designed to produce actual experience, which Ameritas Life and Acacia Life periodically
monitor, that is equal to or more favorable than pricing assumptions. The long term prof; itability of Ameritas Life and
Acacia Life is affected by the degree to which future experience deviates from these assumptions.

Competition

Competition among life insurance companies is intense and many of Ameritas Life's and Acacia Life’s competitors
have substantially more resources than Ameritas Life and Acacia Life. Ameritas Life and Acacia Life compete on the
basis of product offerings and customer service. Ameritas Life and Acacia Life management believe that
consolidation within the insurance industry will continue as companies seek to reduce unit costs and overhead
expenses. Such consolidation could result in more formidable competition.
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In recent years, there has been a trend in the industry away from products that protect against the uncertainties of death
to products that allow customers to accumulate assets so as to maintain an acceptable standard of living during their
retirement years. This change has resuited in the infroduction of new insurance and financial products and has
increased competition with non-insurance company rivals, such as mutual funds. In addition, insurance and annuity
products may now be purchased through banks, broker/dealers, financial planners, and the Internet, which also
increases competition.

The life insurance industry enjoys favorable tax treatment for several of its life and annuity products. The attractive-
ness of these products hinges on the continued existence of such favorable tax treatment including tax deferral fea-
tures. Recently, however, some legislators and politicians have indicated that the tax-favored treatment of these prod-
ucts is unnecessary and should therefore be lessened, if not eliminated. Ameritas Life and Acacia Life believe that if
Congress were to repeal this favorable tax treatment, the overall competitiveness of insurers, including Ameritas Life
and Acacia Life, and their products compared to substitute products would be adversely affected in the long term.

Legal Proceedings

Like other U.S. insurers, Ameritas Life and Acacia Life are respondents in a number of legal proceedings. Ameritas
Life and Acacia Life are defendants in actions arising out of their business and are, from time to time involved as par-
ties in various governmental and administrative proceedings. Ameritas Life and Acacia Life do not believe that any
liability that may result from these actions is likely to have a material adverse effect on their business, financial posi-
tion or results of operations.

Reserves

Information related to reserve calculations is contained in Footnote 1, pages 9-17, Footnote 3, pages 19-21, and
Footnote 11, page 35 of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Ameritas Acacia. For further details see
“FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Ameritas Acacia.”

Reinsurance

Reinsurance calculations are contained in Footnote 10, page 34 of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of
Ameritas Acacia. For further details see “FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Ameritas Acacia.”

Investment portfolio

Information related to investments is contained in Footnote 1, pagés 9-17, Footnote 4, pages 21-27, and Footnote 13,
pages 37-39 of the Audited Consolidated Finarcial Statements of Ameritas Acacia. For further details sz=e “FINAN-
CIAL STATEMENTS - Ameritas Acacia.”

al Life [n ne mpan
General

Established in 1867, Union Central is an Ohio domiciled mutual life insurance company that provides insurance and
finaneial products and services to assist individual, group and pension policyholders in achieving their financial
goals. Union Central subsidiaries offer other services including securities brokerage, mutual fund management, asset
management, mortgage banking and pension administration. Union Central offers life and disability insurance,
annuities and retirement plans through a network of field associates including general agents, brokerage general
agents, disability income centers and retirement plan sales consultants. Union Central is licensed in all 50 states and
the District of Columbia, and is one of the 10 largest mutual life insurance companies in the United States in terms
of assets.

In 2004, Union Central’s statutory capital grew to $323 million, an increase of more than 17% from 2003, and
statutory assets under management reached $6.5 billion,

Union Central’s corporate objectives continue to follow the overal! strategic direction it began in 1995. Through its
corporate objectives, Union Central strives to deliver value to its customers, sustain managed financial growth and
expand One Company Marketing.

Union Central’s field representatives and home office associates remain commitied to the corporate goals it has
embraced throughout its 138-year history: to assure Union Central’s financial strength and stability are in the best,
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long-term interest of its policyholders. Union Central strives not only to provide its clients with financial solutions
that meat their individual needs, but also to exceed their expectations of what an insurance company can do for them.

Union Central is rated “Secure” by three major independent rating agencies. Fitch as of March, 2005, rated Union
Central “A (Strong)”, the third highest rating out of Fitch's twelve ratings, viewing it as possessing a strong capacity
to meet policyholder and contract obligations. Standard & Poor’s rated Union Central “A-(Strong)”, the seventh
highest rating out of S&P’s twenty-one ratings, as of February, 2005, stating that the Company has strong financial
security characteristics, but noting that it is somewhat more likely to be affected by adverse business conditions than
are insurers with higher ratings. A.M. Best rated Union Central “A-(Excellent)”, the fourth highest rating out of A.M.
Best's fifteen ratings, as of February, 2003, '

Products and Services

Union Central offers a wide variety of annuities, individual insurance and financial products designed to serve the
needs of its customers. Annuity products consist of fixed, variable and equity indexed annuities. Individual insurance
products consist of term insurance, traditional whole life insurance, universal life insurance, variable universal life
insurance and disability income insurance. Financial products consist of mutual funds.

As of December 31, 2004, the number of contracts issued by Union Central, and in force, were as follows: individual
life insurance, 198,175; individual annuities, 33,328; individual health insurance, 49,017; group life insurance, 83;
group disability insurance, 564; and group annuities, 2,582.

Life Insurance. Union Central provides a wide range of individual life and disability income products focused
on meeting the needs of its target markets — small to medium size business owners and upwardly mobile and
affluent individuals.

Union Central’s lifs insurance products include:

+ Whole life insurance that has guaranteed death benefits and guaranteed cash values paid for through periodic
fixed premiums. Several options and riders are offered in connection with these policies to provide such
benefits as waiver of premium, accidental death, paid up additions, additional term and accelerated benefits.

« Universal life insurance that has flexible premiums and adjustable death benefits. Premiums in excess of
specified charges are credited to the account value of the policy, which is credited with interest at a rate that
is set periodically, subject to minimum guarantced contract credit rates. The cost of insurance and certain
administrative charges are deducted from the account value. Union Central also offers “second-to-die”
universal life policies, and “indexed” universal life policies.

« Variable universal life insurance that has flexible premiums and adjustable death benefits. Premiums in excess
of specified charges are credited to the account value of the policy and may be invested in one or more variable
account investment options of the Carillon Life Account, an investment company under the Investment Act of
1940, or to the guaranteed account, or to both, All or a portion of policy values vary with the performance of
a separate account.

+ Term life insurance that provides life insurance coverage for a fixed period and has no cash value. Union Central
offers the following types: term insurance with 10, 15, 20 and 30 year guaranteed level premiums and annually
renewable term insurance. :

» Disability income insurance that provides income payments to an insured who is unable to work because of
sickness or injury. Individual disability income insurance is generally issued by Union Central on a non-cancelable
long term basis. Union Central also issues Business Overhead Insurance, which covers the costs of running a
business in the event the owner is disabled.

Annuity. Union Central’s Annuity line of business provides a wide range of individual and group annuity
products for individuals, cotporations and other institutions.

Union Central's principal annuity preducts are:

+ Deferred annuity contracts that accumulate funds in a fixed account and permit the election of periodic income
benefits beginning at a specified future date and continuing for the life of the annuitant, the lives of two or
more persons or for a specified period of time. Union Central offers several varieties.
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. Immediate annuities, i.¢., single premium products with benefit payments commencing immediately or shortly
after issue.

+ Deferred fixed annuities on an individual or group basis that may be single premium or flexible (periodic)
premium products. The premium is deposited in a fixed interest account and credited with interest at a rate
that is periodically set by Union Central, but not less than the rate guaranteed in the contract.

« Equity Index annuities: Deferred, flexible premium fixed index annuities (i.e., non-variable) annuities. The
premium is deposited, per the policyholder’s instructions, into either a fixed interest account or an indexed
account. In the fixed interest account, the funds are credited with interest at a rate that is periodically set by
Union Central, but not less than the rate guaranteed in the contract. Funds in the indexed account are credited
interest at a rate that is based upon the movement of the S&P 500 index, subject to & maximum (*cap”) and
subject to a participation rate set by Union Central; however, the credited interest rate on the indexed account
cannot be less than zero,

o Variable annuities, both individual and group. Individual annuities include contract values that may be invested
in one or more variable account investment options of the Carillon Life Account, an investment company
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, or to the guaranteed account, or to both.

. Union Central provides an Employee Savings Plan product primarily to employers with 23 to
250 employees in the 401(k) market. This product is offered on a bundled investments-anty basis.

Marketing and Distribution

Union Central uses two sustainable competitive strategies with its customers and distribution partners. It refers to its
customer strategy as “One Company Marketing” and its distribution partner strategy as “Trusted Relationships.” Both
are difficult for competitors to duplicate because they are derived from Union Central’s unique culture, values and
management expertise.

Union Central’s One Company Marketing business culture emphasizes synergy, cooperation and common interests
among all operational and functional areas to better meet the needs of its customers. A diverse portfolio of products
and services provide customers and producers with a wide range of choices. From a corporate standpoint, it also
minimizes the risks of market shifts and legislative or tax changes. One Company Marketing is intended to result in
Union Central gaining a larger share of its clients’ financial planning needs, while at the same time providing
dependable services. One Company Marketing has encouraged producers to sell multiple products from different
product lines in order to enhance producer productivity and client service,

Union Central’s Trusted Relationships is its practice of associating with preducers that have a shared customer focus
to that of Union Central. Through association with like-minded producers, both Union Central and the producers are
positioned to achieve their respective long-term goals. These producers share Union Central’s vision, values, and
target markets. Union Central believes it is an attractive partner to high quality producers who successfully build long-
term relationships with their clients. Past experience demonstrates that these partners are dedicated, loyal and
productive.

Trusted Relationships are embodied in Union Central’s Field Advisory Cabinet (“FAC"™), established in 1959. FAC
members are more than business partners - they also serve as strategic partners, providing input on key business
decisions that impact Union Central’s direction in the marketplace, and playing an integral role in developing
products, programs and procedures.

Union Central distributes its products in all 50 states and the District of Columbia. Union Central’s product portfolio
is sold through a diverse and synergistic muitiple charinel distribution system with these main distribution avenues:
General Agencies, Brokerage General Agencies, Disability Income (DI) Centers and Retirement Plans Sales
Consultants. Union Central has successfully grown and maintained multiple channels of distribution, A significant
number of conference-qualifying producers sell multiple Union Centrai products. Multiple channel distribution
benefits all involved: it offers Union Central diversity in distribution; it offers producers diversity in access to Union
Central, its products and services; and it offers customers choices in how they interact with the agent.

General Agency Channel. The core GA system consists of offices with demonstrated expertise in Union
Central’s target markets: upwardly mobile and affluent individuals, and small- to medium-sized businesses. Those
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with Million Dollar Round Table-level producers are Union Central's target. These agencies appreciate strong
home office support and relationships. They also share Union Central’s company culture and values.

Brokerage General Agency Channel. Brokerage General Agencies, while generally product specific in focus,
effectively differentiate themselves beyond product or price. Union Central is particularly interested in partnering
with BGAs who are relationship driven, as they offer value added advanced underwriting expertise or other
specialized services to the independent representative.

Disability Income Center Channel. Disability Income Centers are company-owned brokerage offices whose
primary customers are brokers within specific geographical regions. As the name implies, Disability Income
Centers focus primarily on generating disability income premium, although some life and annuity premium
comes from this channel as well. As a result of their emphasis and expertise in Disability Income, Disability
Incoma Centers show strong underwriting profitability.

Retirement Plans Sales Consultants. Retirement Plans Sales Consultants are specialized staff, located around the
country, who support retirement plans sales. Retirement Plans Sales Consultants worlk with GAs and independent
producers to drive retirement plans sales through multiple charmels.

Subsidiaries and Affiliates

Other financial products and services ars offered through Union Central’s wholly-owned non life insurance
subsidiaries and affiliates. Carillon Investments Inc. is a wholly-owned retail securities broker-dealer, operating on a
fully disclosed basis, registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and an investment advisor registered
under the Investment Advisors Act of 1940. Carillon markets securities through its registered representatives, almost
all of whom are insurance agents of Union Central. Carillon Investments Inc. serves as a distributor for affiliated
mutual funds, variable annuity and variable universal life contracts issued by Carillon Account and Carillon Life
Account, respectively, and Employee Saving Plan group annuity contracts of Union Central.

Diversified Financial Services
The Summit Group is comprised of the three entities listed below.

Summit Investment Partners, Inc. provides investment advisory services to institutional clients and is the advisor to
Summit Mutual Funds, Inc.

Summit Investment Partners, LLC provides investment advisory services to Union Central in addition to the special
purpose entities.

Union Central Mortgage Funding, Inc. originates and places commercial mortgages. In addition, this group services
in excess of $1 billion in leans.

Underwriting and Pricing

Individual insurance underwriting involves the selection of risks consistent with product pricing. Union Central’s
Underwriting Department is responsible for reviewing and underwriting applications for coverage. The underwriters are
expected to comply with Union Central’s established practices and procedures that are designed to appropriately assess
and quantify all manners of risk. The underwriting of these risks may take into account multiple factors, including, an
applicant’s medical history, alcohol, drug and tobacco use, driving record, occupation and financial profile. A policy is
not issued until recognized risk factors have been evaluated and the extent of the risks has been resolved.

Unicn Central bases underwriting primarily on its own mortality and morbidity experience, in addition to comparing
its underwriting against industry standards. This process is consistently evaluated and updated based upon industry
experience and advances in medical science.

Product pricing reflects Union Central’s underwriting standards. Factors considered in setting premiums and charges
for insurance products include assumptions as to future investment returns, expenses, persistency, mortality,
morbidity, taxes and certain macreaconomic factors such as inflation. Product specifications and underwriting are
designed to produce actual expetience, which Union Central periodically monitors, that is equal to or more favorable
than pricing assumptions. The long term profitability of Union Central is affected by the degree to which future
experience deviates from these assumptions.



Reserves

Like other insurance companies, Union Central establishes and carries liabilities for actuarially determined statutory
reserves that are calculated to meet the payment of future policy benefits and obligations. Rescrves are based on
actuarially recognized methods that employ prescribed mortality and morbidity tables in general use, which are
modified to reflect actual experience when appropriate. These reserves are computed at amounts that, with additions
from future premiums and interest on such reserves compounded at specified assumed rates, are expected to be
sufficient to meet an insurer’s future policy obligations. Reserves for assumed reinsurance are computed on a basis
comparable to direct insurance reserves.

The GAAP reserves that appear in Union Central’s audited consolidated financial statements may vary from those
established based on statutory accounting practices. Statutory accounting practices are specified by the various state
insurance departments through statute or regulation. GAAP accounting is governed by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board.

Reinsurance

Union Central follows the standard industry practice of reinsuring (“ceding”) certain portions of its insurance risks
with other insurance companies under traditional indemnity reinsurance agreements. Union Central uses reinsurance
in this manner to limit the mortality risk on its individual life and disability insurance business.

Reinsurance does not discharge an insurer from its obligations to pay policy claims on the reinsured business.
Accordingly, Union Central remains fully responsible for claims on policies it has ceded even if the reinsurer should
fail to pay its portion of the claims. For this reason, Union Central only enters into reinsurance treaties with highly
rated reinsurers who have passed an internal due diligence review.

Conventional teinsurance, or indemnity reinsurance, is obtained on doubtful risks or when the automatic retention
limits are exceeded. Automatic retention limits vary by issue age and underwriting rating. Maximum retention for
Union Central is $1 million on any one life. At December 31, 2004, reinsurance premium ceded by Union Central was
$18.9 million, representing 57%, of in force business.

Maximum retention for Union Central is $4,000 per month on any one disability risk. In 2004, 515 million, or 28%
of direct premiums had been ceded by Union Central.

Investment Portfolio

Summit Investment Partners, Inc. manages Union Central’s investment operations. In consultation with product
actuaries, Summit is responsible for determining, within specified risi tolerances and investment guidelines, the asset
atlocation, duration, and other characteristics of Union Central’s investment portfolio.

The aggregate aliocation of Union Central’s assets is shown in the table below.

Statutory Basis Owned Assets as of December 31,2004
As of December 31,

2083 2004
Carrying Amount % of Total Carrytag Amount % of Total
FixedIncome . ......cvuirnii it nannes $3,373,203,000 80.6% $3,372,694,000 79.5%
Equity securities . ... 90,594,000 2.2% 37,160,000 0.9%
Mortgage loans ... ... .. ool 508,655,000 12.1% 512,292,000 12.1%

PolicyLOoans ......c.vvcvieiiiinionronnenen 144,037,000 34% 142,611,000 3.4%
Cash and short-term investments ................ .. (2,066,000) 0.0% 9,856,000 0.2%
Real BStAE . .. vt ien it ie i 30,384,000 0.7% 28,601,000 0.7%
OhEI AS58E5 - v v v v v ts it 42,165,000 1.0% 137,975,000 3.3%
Total statutory-basis assets . ... ..., 4,186,972,000 4,241,189,000

The fixed income portion of Union Central’s assets has an overall quality rating of A2 with 2 concentration of 97.4%
of the securities in the top three rating classes, which was in excess of the industry average of 96.7% according to a
December 31, 2003 survey assembled by the American Council of Life Insurers. The average life of this portfolio was
approximately 9.2 years with a 6.1 1% yield. The table below illustrates the performance of Union Central as compared to the

Lehman Aggregate Bond Index.
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Fixed Income Performance Comparisons

Lehman

Union Central Agaregate

Group (a) Bond Index
One-Year REMUITL . . oo ot inr ot 6.26% 4.34%
Three-Year REMUIT . .. o oo ae vt im st aa i ma e 1.33% 6.20%
Five-Year Retwrm . ... ovceevvvnnvs R PR 8.31% T.71%

Standard and

Union Central Poor’'s 500
Group (a) Index
OnE-Year REIUIT . .« oo vv vt s s e e n e s e s aa s s 16.48% 10.87%
Three-Year REDUTIL - « « « o+« vt e e ee et ee e e e a e e e 6.76% 3.58%
Five-Year REMUIT ... v vvvvvineee oo snnre e nes e e 9.57% (2.30)%

The other investments owned by Union Central include the Separate Account investments which support the variable
products sold by Union Central.

Competition

Competition among life insurance companies is intense and many of Union Central’s competitors have substantially
more resources than Union Central. Union Central competes on the basis of product offerings and customer service.
Union Central management believes that consolidation within the insurance industry will continue as companies seek
to reduce unit costs and overhead expenses. Such consolidation could result in more formidable competition.

In recent years, there has been a trend in the industry away from products that protect against the uncertainties of death
to products that allow customers to accumulate assets so as to maintain an acceptable standard of living during their
retirement years. This change has resulted in the introduction of new insurance and financial products and has
increased competition with non-insurance company rivals, such as mutual funds. In addition, insurance and annuity
products may now be purchased through panks, broker/dealers, financial planners, and the Internet, which also
increases competition.

The life insurance industry enjoys favorable tax treatment for several of its life and annuity products. The
attractiveness of these products hinges on the continued existence of such favorable tax treatment including tax
deferral features. Recently, however, some legislators and politicians have indicated that the tax-favored treatment of
_these products is unnecessary and should therefore be lessened, if not eliminated. Union Central believes that if
Congress were to repeal this favorable tax treatment, the overall competitiveness of insurers, including Union Central,
and their products compared to substitute products would be adversely affected in the long term.

Legal Proceedings

Like other U.S. insurers, Union Central is a respondent in a number of legal proceedings. Union Central is a defendant
in actions arising out of its business and is, from time to time, involved as a party in various governmental and
administrative proceedings. Union Central does not believe that any liability which may result from these actions is
likely to have a material adverse effect on its business, financial position or results of operations.

Employees and Agents
As of December 31, 2004, Union Central employed a total of 891 employees.



CURRENT DIRECTORS OF AMERITAS ACACIA AND UNION CENTRAL

All of the current Directors of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company, which was formed on January 1, 1999,
were previously Directors of Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. or Acacia Life Insurance Company. The dates below indicate how
long they have been associated with Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. or Acacia Life Insurance Company.

The names, ages (as of June 30, 2005), and positions of each of the current Dirsctors of Ameritas Acacia Mutua!
Holding Company and Ameritas Holding Company are set forth below:

NAME

AGE

DIRECTOR
SINCE

PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION

Abel, James B

Ariturk, Haluk

Arth, Lawrence J.

Cook, Jr., William W,

Getz, Bert A.

Knapp, James R.

McGuire, Patricia A.

McKenzie, Floretta D.

Ostergard, Tonn M.

Quinn, Jr., Edward 1.

Schorr, 111, Paul C.

Sitby, D. Wayn

Wade, Winston J.

Willis, Robert M.

54

56
61
68
.
69
52

69

45 -

" 64

68

56

66

6l

1993

2002

1989

1983

1990

1972

1993

1989

2002

1985

1970

1985

1986

1997

(¥
oo

Chief Executive Officer
NEBCO, Inc. Lincoln, Nebraska

Executive Vice President
Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company
Bethesda, Maryland

Chairman, President, & Chief Executive Officer
Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company
Lincoln, Nebraska

President and Chief Executive Officer
Cook Investment, Inc.
Beatrice, Nebraska

Chairman
Globe Corporation
Scottsdale, Arizona |

Chairman
The Brookhollow Group
Costa Mesa, California

President

Trinity University

Washington, D.C.

Senior Advisor

American Institute for Research
Washington, D.C.

President & CEO
Crete Carrier Corporation
Lificoin, Nebraska

Chairman & CEO
T. W. Perry
Chevy Chase, Maryland

President & Chief Executive Officer

ComCor Holding, Inc
Lincoln, Nebraska

Co-Chairman

Calvert Social Investment Foundation
Bethesda, Maryland

Retired Chief Executive Officer
Media One — Mataysia

Vice President

Media Ore

Aurora, Colorado

President & CCO

McCarran Ferguson Captive Management, Inc.
‘Washington, D.C.



All of the current Directors of Union Central, which is being reorganized into a Mutual Holding Company system,
will serve as Directors of the Union Central Mutual Holding Company. The dates below indicate how long they have been
associated with Union Central Life Insurance Company.

_ DIRECTOR
NAME AGE SINCE PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION

Anderson, James M. 63 1999 President & CEO
Children’s Hospital Medical Center
Cincinnati, OH 45229

Cambron, Michael 3. 61 2004 Senior Portfelio Manager
Bartlett & Company
Cincinnati, OH 45202

Finan, Richard H. 70 2001 Cincinnati, OH 45241

Fisher, Michael A. 45 2004 President & CEQO

Greater Cincinnatt Chamber of Commerce
Cincinnati, OH 45202-2812
Jacobs, John H. 58 1998 Chairman, President & CEO
Union Central Life Insurance
Cincinnati, Ohio
Kagler, William G. 73 1984 18 Hampton Lane
Cincinnati, OH 45208-1957
{We understand that Mr. Kagler will be
retiring prior to the Effective Date)

Leser, Lawrence A, 69 1688 Retired Chairman & CEO
The E.W. Scripps Company
Cincinnati, OH 45202
(We understand Mr. Leser will be retiring
prior to the Effective Date)

Mastrianna, Ph.D., Francis V. 64 1986 Milford, OH 435150
Petry, Thomas E. 64 1981 Cincinnati, OH 45202
Pike, Larry R, 69 1989 Cincinnati, OH 45241
Powell, PhD., Myrtis H. Powell 66 1996 Cincinnati, OH 45236
Taft, Dudley 5. 65 1977 President

Taft Broadcasting Company
Cincinnati, OH 45202

Tew, Jr, M.D., John M. 69 1985 Medical Director
The Neuroscience Institute (University Hospital)
Cincinnati, OH 45219-0724

39



INITIAL UNIFI BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At the Effective Date, the Board of Directors of UNIFI and AHC shall be comprised of all 14 of the current directors
of Ameritas Acacia listed above. The remaining 11 board seats will be comprised of the current directors of Union Central
listed zbove, excluding William G. Kagler and Lawrence A. Leser who will resign prior to the Effective Date. The Board of
Directors of UNIFI and AHC will further be divided into.three classes comprised as follows:

ClassI (initial term expires 2008) —
James M. Anderson, Lawrence J. Arth, Bert A. Getz, John H. Jacobs, Floretta D. McKenzie, Larry R. Pike,
Dudley S. Taft, Winston J. Wade, and Robert M. Willis.

Class 11 (initial term expires 2007) —
James P. Abel, Haluk Ariturk, Micbael 8. Cambron, Richard H. Finan, Michael A. Fisher, Francis V. Mastrianna,
Tonn M. Ostergard, and Wayne D. Silby.

Class XII (initial term expires 2006) -~
William W. Cook, James R. Knapp, Patricia A. McGuire, Thomas E. Petry, Myrtis H. Powell, Ph.D,,
Edward J. Quinn, Jr.,, Paul C. Schorr, III, and John M. Tew, Jr., M.D.

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Boatd of Directors of Ameritas Acacia unanimously recommends that Eligible Members vote “FOR” approval
and adoption of the Plan of Merger and “FOR” approval of the amendments to the Articles of Incorporation at its Special
Mezeting. The Board believes that the Merger will result in a combined company that will be financially stronger and more
efficient, and therefore, more competitive than either Company would be separately. The Board further believes that the Merger
is in the best interests of Ameritas Acacia and is fair and equitable to and is expected to benefit and serve the best interest of
Ameritas Acacia Members, as well as the policyholders of the various insurance subsidiaries, because, among other things:
(i) the Merger is expected to result in significant expense savings over time through the consolidation of existing resources;
(ii) the distribution system (i.e., the agency force) of the two existing insurance companies is expected to be larger and as a
consequence more productive than either systern is prior to the Merger; and (iii} the expanded product portfolio available to each
of the various insurance companies is expected to reduce product development expenses while increasing distribution
opportunities. There can be no assurance, of course, that the benefits anticipated to arise out of the Merger will in fact be achieved.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL
HOLDING COMPANY
AND SUESIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
AND FOR THE YEARS THEN ENDED
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company
tincoln, Nebraska :

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ameritas Acacia Mutuat
Holding Company and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, equity, and cash flows
for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of tha Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements basad
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
Unitad States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial raporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
raporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on &
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financiai statement prasentation. Wa believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements prasent fairly, in ali matarial respects, the
financial position of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the
years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Dttt J T,

Lincoln, Mebraska
parch 1, 2005



investmants:

Fixed maturity securities heid to maturity

AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

{in thousands)

{fair value $389,635 - 2004, $437,106 - 2003)

Fixed maturity securities available for sale

{amortized cost $2,452,072 - 2004, $2,425,705 — 2003)
Fixed maturity securitias trading
Equity securities available for sale

(cost $126,071 - 2004, $115,296 - 2003)

Equity securities trading
Loans recelivable, net
Raal estate, less accumulated depraciation

($18,044 - 2004, $34,230 - 2003)
Cther Investments

Totai investments

Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued investment income
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Property and equipment, less accumulated depreciation

($61,396 - 2004, $57,045 - 2003)
Reinsurance racaivable - affiliate
Current income taxes

Other assels

Separate accounts

Total assets

Decembar 31

2004 2003
$ 388347 3§ 407,358
2,555,274 2,528,562
20,624 -
155,459 135,520
7,020 1,796
1,930,388 1,410,736
40,815 76,104
118,998 102,645
4,794,925 4,662,721
184,540 186,109
57,078 61,305
282,253 200,349
47,246 42,770
135 "7
8,482 -
118,267 114,296
2,666,204 2,487,043
$ 8,159,128 § 7.844.710

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of thesa statements.
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AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOL‘DIN.G COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{in thousands)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Policy and contract raserves
Policy and contract claims
Accumulated contract values
Unearned policy charges
Dividends payable to policyowners
Savings deposits
Note payabie — affiliate
Borrowings
Cutrent income taxes
Defsrred income taxes
Other liabilities
Separate accounts

Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Minority interest in subsidiary

Retained earmings

Accumulated other comprehensive Income

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

December 31

2004 2003
3 849,887 $ 863,275
47,012 54,586
2,248,017 2,227,929
14,000 13,109
17,120 17,687
577,511 583,231
3,359 3,359
290,689 295,842
- 4,254
44,404 29,771
163,546 158,267
2,668,204 2,487,043
8,921,749 6,743,153
58,294 53,235
1,123,764 993,284
55,321 49,438
1,179,085 4,043,322
$ 8150128 $ 7844710

The accompanying notes to the consclidaled financial statamants ara an intagral part of these statements.



AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

{in thousands[
INCOME:
Insurance revenuas:
Pramiums;

Life insurance
Accident and health insurancea
Contract charges
Reinsurance, net
Reinsuranca cedad allowance
Mutual fund managemaent and related feas
Broker dealer revenues
Investment revenues:
Net investment income
Realizad gains (losses), net
Other

BENEFITS AND EXPENSES:
Policy benefits:
Death benefits
Surrander banefits
Accident and health benefits
Interast credited
Change in pollcy and contract reserves
Pollcyowner dividends
Other
Sales and operating expenses
Interest expense
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs

Income baefora income taxas, minority intarest in earnings of subsidiary
and cumuiative effect of change in accounting principle

Income taxas — current
income taxas — defarrad
Total income taxas

Income befora minority interest in 2arnings of subsidiary and

cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Minority interast in sarnings of subsidiary

Income befara cumulative sffact of change in accounting principle
Cumulative sffact of changs in accounting principle (Mote 1)

Mat income

The accompanying notes to the consclidated financial stataments ara an integral part of thess statements.

Years Ended Dacember 31

2004 2003
$ 86971 § 65935
350,154 351,507
140,739 135,349
23532 24,592
11,928 12,638
90,807 78,273
45,834 46,322
272,129 259,249
74,203 (24,156)
27,548 26,799
1,103,845 976,508
50,170 48,457
27,038 25,493
296,648 300,106
100,197 108,366
(11,988) (14,512)
24,514 25,639
17,160 18,082
333,395 320,200
22,847 19,969
45,512 34,983
905,493 886,783
198,352 89,725
50,763 32,623
11,995 1,245
62,758 33,868
135,594 55,857
(5,108) (5,781)
130,486 50,076
(506) -
$ 120880 5 50,078




AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{in thousands)

MNet income
Other comprahensive income, net of tax:

Unrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized hoiding gains arising during the period {net of deferrad

tax expense, $1,511 — 2004, $8,647 - 2003}
Raciassification adjustment for fosses included in net income
(net of deferred tax banefit, $1,807 — 2004, $6,781 - 2003)
Allocation to Closed Block policyhoider dividend obligation (PDO)
(net of deferred tax expense, $85 ~ 2004, $350 - 2003)

Minority Intarast

Minimum pension liability adjustment (net of deferred tax expense,
$0 -2004, $10,907 - 2003)
Other comprahensiva income

Comprehensive income

Tna accompanying notas to tha consolidated financial statements are an intagral part of these statements.

Years Ended Dacember 31

2004 2003

$ 129,880 50,076
3,005 12,318

2,985 12,595
(158) (651)

51 19

5,883 24,279

- 20,256

5,883 44,535

$ 135763 94,611




AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

{In thousands}
Accumulated
Other
Retained Comprehensive Total
Earnings Incoms Equity
BALANCE, January 1, 2003 $ 943,808 $ 4,903 3 948,711
Net unrealized investment activity, net - 24,911 24,911
Minority interest in net unrealized investment ‘
activity, net of tax - 19 19
Allocation to Closed Block PDO ] - (651} (851)
Minimum pension liability adjustment - 20,256 20,256
Nst income 50,075 - 50,076
BALANCE, Decambaer 31, 2003 993,884 49,438 1,043,322
Net unreatized investment activity, nat - 5,990 5,990
Minority interest in net unreaiizad investment
activity, net of tax - 51 51
Allocation 1o Closed Block PDO - (158) (158)
Net income 129,880 - 129,880
BALANCE, December 31, 2004 $ 1,123,764 $ 55,321 $ 1,179,085

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of thesa statements.



AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{in thoysands)
Years Ended Dacember 31
2004 2003
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Income $ 129880 $ 50,076
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
from operating activitias:
Depreciation and amortization 11,483 12,641
Amortization of deferrad policy acquisition costs 45512 34,983
Policy acquisition costs deferred {(39,409) {40,559)
nterest credited to accumulated contract values 100,197 108,366
Amortization of discounts or premiums (767) (5,459)
Net raalized (gains) losses on investment transactions {73,203) 24,156
Cumulative effact of change in accounting principie (Nots 1) 606 -
Unrealized (gain) loss on trading securities and equity
mathod investments (3,967) 821
Loans receivable held for sale (708) 4,497
Deferred income taxes 11,995 1,245
Minority interest in earnings of subsidiary 5,108 5,781
Changse in assats and liabillties:
Fixed maturity securities trading (19,689} -
Equity securities trading {4,751) {1,644)
Accrued investment income 4,229 {691)
Current income taxes {12,736) 13,158
Other assets {3,989) {(4,233)
Palicy and contract reserves {11,960) {13,290)
Policy and contract claims {7,574) 7,488
Uneamed policy charges 891 776
Dividends payable to policyowners (587) (505)
Other liabilities 4,511 1,803
Net cash from operating activities 135,092 189,410
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments:
Fixed maturity securities held to maturity {75,383) {25,078)
Fixed maturity securities available for sals (379,280} (936,673)
Equity sscurities available for sala (49,506) (50,664)
Loans raceivabie (97,254) {(89,018)
Real estate (2.277) {17,155)
Other investments (37,162) (18,715)
Proceads from saie of investments:
Fixad maturity sacurities available for sals 59,302 88,765
Equity securitias available for sale 41,198 51,161
Real estate 112,798 383

The accompanying notes 1o the consolidated financial statements ara an integral pent of these statements.



AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
‘ {in thousands)

Years Ended Dacember 31

2004 2003
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (continued):
Proceeds from maturities or rapayment of invesiments:
Fixaed maturity securities held to maturity $ 115,116 § 136,035
Fixed maturity securities available for sale 289,733 431,620
Loans receivable 71,607 54,4567
Other investments 20,863 18,810
Purchase of property and equipment {21,788) {26,503)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 9,486 12,759
Net change In loans on insurance policies 5,853 6,832
Neat change In loans raceivable from banking activities (99,205) {188,974)
Net cash from investing activities (35,879) {552,138)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Deposits credited to accumulated contract values 1,081,793 2,339,018
Withdrawals from accumulated contract values (1,161,902) {(2,312,483)
Net change in savings deposits {15,720) 137,297
Increasa in borrowings 513,500 503,250
Net change In repurchasa agresments (20,944) 37,333
Repayment of borrowings {487 ,509) (456,172}
Net cash from financing activities (100,782) 248,243
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,569) {104,485)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 186,108 290,504
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD $ 184540 § 186,109
Suppiemental cash flow information;
Cash paid for income taxes $ 63,791 § 19,589
Cash paid for interest 24,294 23,216

The accompanying notes to tha consolidated financial stataments are an integral part of thesa statements.



AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
(in thousands)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Effective January 1, 1899, Ameritas Mutual Insurance Hoiding Company {AMIHC) and Acacia Mutual
Holding Corporaticn (AMHC) marged to form Ameritas Acacla Mutual Holding Company (AAMHC) in a
business combination accounted for as a pooling of interasts. In addition, their two whoily owned
subsidiarles, Ameritas Holding Company and Acacia Financial Group, Ltd., were merged to form Ameritas
Holding Company (AHC). AHC wholly owns two stock life insuranca companies, Amaritas Life Insurance
Corp. (Ameritas) and Acacia Life Insurance Company (Acacia).

AAMHC is a mutual insurance holding company structure. Ownars of designated policies issued by
Ameritas and Acacia have membership Interests in AAMHC, while contractual rights remain with each
respective insurance company.

Ameritas’ insuranca operations consist of ife and health insurance and annuity and pension contracts.
Ameritas and its subsidiaries operats in all 50 statas and the District of Columbia. Ameritas wholly owns
First Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. of New York, an insurance subsidiary. Ameritas is also a majority
owner of AMAL Corporation (AMAL), which wholly owns Ameritas Variable Life tnsurance Company
(AVLIC), Amaritas Investment Corp., a broker dealer, and The Advisors Group, Inc. {TAG), a broker
dealsr. Ameritas also conducts other diversified financial service related operations through the following
wholly owned subsidiarles: Ameritas Investment Advisors, Inc., an advisor providing Investmant
management services; and Pathmarlc Administrators Inc., formerly Pathmarlc Assurance Company which
affective September 30, 2003 surrenderad its insurance license and now operates as a third-party
administrator.

Acacla's insurance operations consist of iife and annuity products. Acacia and, prior to January 1, 2004,
its wholly owned insuranca subsidiary, Acacia National Life Insurance Company (ANLIC), operate in 47
states and the District of Columbia. Effective after the close of business at December 31, 2003, ANLIC
was merged Into Acacia. Non-insurance products and services are offered by Acacla Financial
Corporation {AFCO), a wholly owned subsidiary of Acacia which is a hoiding company of saveral financial
sorvice companies. Principal subsidiaries of AFCO include: Calvert Group Ltd. {Calvert), a provider of
investment advisory, management, and administrativa services to The Calvert Group of mutual funds;
and Acacia Federal Savings Bank (AFSB), a federally chartersd savings bank. Prior to July 15, 2004,
Acacia Realiy Squars, LLC (ARS}), a wholly owned subsidiary of Acacia, owned and leasad the former
Acacia headquarters building to an unrelated party. Eifactive on July 15, 2004, ARS was dissolved as
part of a real estate transaction involving the sale of the Acacla headguarters building.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company and
subsidiaries (the Company) nave been prapared in accordance with accounting principies generally
acceptad in the United States of Amarica (GAAP). The consolidated financial statements Include the
accounts of AAMHC and its majority owned subsidiaries, but exclude the effects of all materal
intercompany transactions.



AMERITAS ACA TUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENGED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2063
. {in thousands)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
{continued)

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make astimates and assumptions that affact the repcrted amounts of assets and liabilitles and disclosure
of contingent assets and lidbilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from thosa

estimates. Material estimates susceptible to-significant change include deferrad pelicy acquisition casts,
raserves, and incoma taxes.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company operates in a business environment which Is subject to various risks and uncertainties.
Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, interast rate risk, market risk, credit risk and
legal and regulatory changes.

intarast rate risk Is the potential for interest rates to change, which can cause fluctuations in the value of
investmants, the llabilities for future policy. beneflts and the carrying amount of deferrad policy acquisition
costs. Markat risk is the potential for market values to change, which can causs fluctuations in certain
future policy benefits and contract charges. Credit risk is the risk that issuers of investments owned by
the Company may dafault or that other parties may not be abie to pay amounts dus to the Company. The
Company is also subject to various Siate and Federal regulatory authorities. The potential exists for
changes in ragulatory initiatives which can rasuft in additional, unanticipated impacts to the Company.

RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain items on the prior year financial statements have been raclassified to conform to current year
presantation.

INVESTMENTS

The Company classifies its securities into categories basad upon the Company's intent relative to the
eventual disposition of the securities. The first category, held to maturity, is for fixad maturity securities
which the Company has the positive Intant and ability to hold to maturity. These securities are carried at
amortized cost. The second category, avallable for sale, is for fixed maturity securities and equity
securities that may be sold to address the liquidity and other needs of the Company. Securities classified
as available for sale are carried at fair value on the balance siweet with unrealized gains and losses
excluded from operations and reported as a componant of accumulated other comprehensive income, net
of related deferred policy acquisition costs and Incoma tax effacts. The third category, trading, is for fixed
maturity sacurities and equity sacurities acquirad for the purposa of seiling them in the near term and ars
carrled at falr valuz. Unrealized gains and losses on trading sscurities are reflected in net investment
Income. Raealized invesimant gains and losses on salas of sacurities are determined on the specific
identification method.

For mertgage-cacked and asset-backed securities, the Company recognizes Income using a constant
effactive vield basad on anticipated prapayments and the estimated aconomic life of the securities. When
estimates of prepayments changs, the sffactive vield is recalculated to reflect actual payments to date
and anticipated future payments and any rasulting adjustment Is included in net investment incoma.
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AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
{in thousands)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
{continugd)

INVESTMENTS, {continued)

Loans receivabie includes mortgage loans on real estate which are carried at amorized cost less an allowance
for estimated uncollectible amounts, except impaired loans, which ars measured at the prasent value of
expected future cash flows, or alternatively, the loan's observable market prica or the fair valua of the
coliateral, Total impaired loans as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the associated interest incoma were:
not material. Management's periodic avaiuation of the adequacy of the allowance Is based on past loan loss
experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to
repay, tha estimated value of any underlying collateral, and the current aconomic conditions. Loans on
insurance policies are also reported as loans recelvable, and are recorded at the unpaid principal balance.

Loans originated and Intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or astimated
fair value in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recoghized through a valuation allowance by
charges to income.

Investment real estate owned directly by the Company is carried at cost less accurnulated depraciation. Real
estate acquired through foreciosure Is camied at the lower of cost or fair value minus estimatad costs {o sell.

Other investments primarily include investments in ventura capital partnerships accounted for using the cost or
aquity method, depending on ownership percentages, and investments in real estate limited partnerships and
vaal astate limited Habllity companies accountad for on the squity method.

The Company racords write-downs or allowances for its investments based upon an evaluation of specific
investments. The Company reviews, on a continual basis, all invested assets to identlfy Investrments whera
the Company may have a dacling in fair value below cost.

CASH EQUIVALENTS
The Campany considers all highly liquid debt securities purchased with a ramaining maturity of iess than
thrae months to be cash equivalents.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had investments classified as cash equlvalenté of
$43,256 and $35,029 respectively, in various monay market mutual funds to which Caivert s the advisor.
These investments ara recordad at their fair value based on nat assat values.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depraciation. Property and equipment
includes properties occupied by the Company, electronic data processing equipment, software, and
furniture and equipment. The Company provides for depreciation of property and equipment using
straight-line and accalsrated methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets, Depreciation
axpensa for property and equipment is included in sales and operating axpenses on the statament of
operations at $7,825 and $8,530 in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

SEPARATE ACCOUNTS

The Company operates saparats accounts on which the eamings or losses accrue exclusively 1o
policyowners, The assets (principally investments) and liabilities of each account are clearly sagregated
from other assets and liabilities of the Company. The separate accounts ars an investmant option for
pension, varabla life, and variable annuity products which the Company markats. Amounts ara reported
at fair value.
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AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2002
‘ {in thousands)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
{continued)

SEPARATE ACCOUNTS, {continuad)

AVLIC has a variable insurance trust {(ViT). The Company offers the VIT as an investment aption fo
policyowners through their separate accounts. The Company had separate account investments of
$573,720 and $625,429 in the VIT as of Dacamber 31, 2004 and 2003, raspectively. Affiliates of the
Company provide Investment advisory and administrative services {o the VIT on-a fee basis.

The Company offers Calvert Variable Series, Inc. (CVS) mutual- funds, which are affiliates, to
policyowners through the separate accounts. Separate account investments in mutual funds offerad
through CVS wera $184,232 and $137,633 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

PREMIUM REYVENUE AND BENEFITS TO POLICYOWNERS

PARTICIPATING AND TERM LIFE, ACCIDENT AND HEALTH AND ANNUITY

Participating life insurance products include those products with fixed and guaranteed premiums and
benefits on which dividends are paid by the Company. Premiums on participating and term kfe products
and cartain annuities with life contingencles (immediate annuitles) are recognized as premium ravenue
when due. Accident and heaith insurance premiums ara recognizad as premium revenue over the time
pariod to which the premiums relate. Benefits and expenses are associated with eamed premiums so as
to result in recognition of profits over the premium-paying period of the contracts. This association s
accomplished by means of the provision for liabilities for futura policy benefits and the amortization of
deferred policy acquisition costs.

UNIVERSAL LIFE-TYPE CONTRACTS

Universal lifa-type policies are insurance contracts with terms that are not fixad and not guaranteed. The
terms that may be changed Include one or more of the amounts assessed to the policyownsr, pramiums
paid by the policyowner or interest accrued to the policyowner's balanca. Amounts received as payments
for such contracts are reflected as deposits in accumulated contract values and are not reported as
pramium ravenues,

Revenues for universal lifa-typa policies consist of charges assessad against policy account values for
daferred policy charges, mortality risk expense, the cost of insuranca and policy administration. Policy
benefits and claims that are charged fo expense includae interast cradited to contracts and benefit claims
incurred in the period In excass of related palley account balancas.

INVESTMENT CONTRACTS

Contracts that do not subject the Company to risks arising from pelicyowner mortality or morbidity are
referred to as investment coniracts. Deposit administration plans and certain deferred annuities are
considerad investmaent contracts. Amounts received as payments for such contracts ara raflected as
daposits in accumulated contract values and are rot raported as premium revenues.

Ravenues for investment products consist of invastment income and policy administration charges.

Confract bensfits that are charged to sxpans2 include benelit claims incurrad in the period in excass of
relatad contract balances, and interast credited to contract balances,
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AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
{in thousands}

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES,
{centinyed)

RECOGNITION OF MUTUAL FUND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED FEES

Mutual fund management and related fees are accrued daily and consist of advisory, transfer agency,
sharehalder account servicing, distribution, and fees for services. Fees for advisory and administrative
sarvicas provided to mutual funds ars datermined based cn the nat assets of the funds, tha number of
shareholder accounts and transactions, and sales, as contractually datermined with the specific mutual
fund. Fees for brokerage of depository accounts are negotiated with the respective banks andfor savings
institutions and are accrued daily.

RECOGNITION OF BROKER DEALER REVENUES

Broker dealer revenues consist of commissions, underwriting income and sarvice and advisory fees.
Commissions ara based on sat rates and are recognized at the time the trade is executed. Underwriting
income 1s recognized at the time the underwriting is completed and the income is reasonably
determinable. Fees for general financial servicas and personal Investment advisory services are
ragognized as they are gamed.

DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS

Those costs of acguiring new business, which vary with and ars directly ralated to the production of new
pusiness, have been deferrad to the extent that such costs are deemed recoverable from future
premiums. Such costs includa commissions, certain costs of policy issuance and undsrwriting, and
certain agency axpenses.

Costs deferred related to term life insuranca ara amortized over the pramium-paying period of the relatad
policies, in proportion to the ratio of annual premium revenues to total anticipated pramium revenues.
Such anticipated pramium revenues are estimated using the same assumptions used for computing
liabilities for future policy benefits.

Costs deferred ralated to participating life, universal life-type policies and investment contracts ara
generally amortizad over the lives of the policles, in reiation to the present value of estimated gross profits
from mortality, investment and expense margins. The estimated gross profits are reviewed and adjusted
periodically based on actual experienca and changes In assumptions.

A roil-forward of the amounts reflacted in the consolidated balance shests as defarred policy acquisition
costs is as foliows:

Years Endad December 31
2004 2003
Beginning balance § 290,249 § 284,225
Change In accounting principle (Note 1) {2,360) -
Acquisition costs dafarrad 39,409 40,558
Amortization of dafarrad policy acquisition cosis (45,512) {34,983)
Adjustment for unrealized investment loss 387 548
Ending balance $ 282253 § 290,349

To the sxtent that unrealized gains or losses on available for sale securities would result in an adjusimant
of daferrad policy acquisition costs had those gaing or losses actually been realized, the relatad
unamortizad deferred policy acquisition costs are recerded as an adjusiment fo the unrsalized invastment
gains or losses included in accumulated other comprahensive incoma.
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AMERITAS ACAGIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES YO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
{in thousands)

i, B};\SIS :gF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
(continue

FUTURE POLICY AND CONTRACT BENEFITS

Liabilities for futurz policy and centract benafits for participating and tarm life contracts and additicnal
coverages offared under policy riders are calculated using the net level premium method and
assumptions as to Investment ylelds, mortality, withdrawals and dividends. The assumptions ara based
on projections of past experience and inciude provisions for possibiz unfavorable deviation. These
assumptions are made at the time the contract is issued. These liabilities ara shown as policy and
contract reserves.

Liabilities for future policy and contract benafits on universal life-type and investmant contracts ars basad
on the policy account balance, and are shown as acsumulated contract values.

DIVIDENDS PAYABLE TO PCLICYOWNERS

A portlon of the Company's business has been issued on a participating basis. The amount of
policyowners’ dividends to be paid is determined annually by the respectiva insurance subsidiaries’ Board
of Directors.

INCOME TAXES

Beginning In 2004, AAMHC and its subsidiaries, with the exception of AMAL and its subsidiaries, will join
in the filing of a life/non-iife consolldated federal Income tax return. Prior o 2004, AAMHC, AHC and the
former AMIMC, with the axception of AMAL and its subsidiaries, joired in the flling of a consolidated
federal incoma tax return with their common parent, Acacla and #ts wholly owned subsidiary, ANLIC, filed
a lifa consolidated income tax retum and AFCO and its wholly owned subsidiaries flled a non-life
consolidatsd return. '

An agresment among the members of each consolidated group gensrally provides for distribution of
consolldated income tax rasults as If filed on a separate incoms tax return basis. The provision for
incorne taxes includes amounts currently payable and deferrad income taxes resulting from the
cumulative differances in assets and liabilities determinad on a tax return and financial statement basis at
the current enacted tax rates.

The Company is subject to tax-related audits in the normal course cf operations. In accordancs with
Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 5, Accounting for Contingencias (FAS 5), the
Company records a contingency for thesa tax-ralated matters when it is probable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount of the loss can be raasonably estimated. The Company reviews its loss
contingencies on an ongoing basis to ensure that the Company has appropriata reserves recorded on the
balance sheet. Thess reserves ara basad an judgment made by management with respect to the likaly
outcome of these matters. The Company's judgment could change based on new information, Intarnal
Revanug Sarvica gxaminations and changes in laws or ragulations.

Faderal tax raturns have besn examinad by the intemal Revanue Service {IRS) for the former AMIMG
group, with the axception of AMAL and it subsidiaries, through 1958. The federal tax retumns of AMAL
and Its subsidiaries hava been examined by the IRS through 1985, Federal tax retums have been
axamined by tha IRS for the former AMMC group through 1995, The IRS has notified AAMHC and its
subsidiaries they pfan to begin an examination for tax years 2002 and 2003 beginning in 2005.
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AMERITAS ACACIA MUT UAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE QQN§OLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
{in thousands)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{continued) AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUITRES 22

CREDIT RELATED FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the crdinary coursa of business, AFSB has enterad Into commitments to axtand credlit, Including
commitments under commaercial letters of credit, standby letters of credit, and forward sales commitments
of residential mortgages to varlous investors. Such financial instruments are racorded when they ars
funded. :

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company engages In various transactions with related parties. Transactions with related partias are
not necassarily indicative of revenues and expenses which would have occurrad had the parties not been
ralated. .

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES AND IMPLEMENTATION GF INTERPRETATION NO. 48

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 48,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entitles (FIN 48). FIN 46 defines a variable interest antity (VIE) as an
antity where the (1) equity investment at risk is not sufficient for the entity to finance its activities without
subardinated financial support or (2) equity hoiders do not have the characteristics of a controlling
financial interest. It requires that the primary beneficiary consolidata the VIE. The primary beneficiary Is
identified as the party that absorbs the majority of the expected losses, receives a majority of the
expected residual returns, or both, as a result of holding variable interests. FIN 46 also raquires
disclosure about variable interest entities that a company Is not required to consolfidate but in which it nas
a significant variable Intarest. The FASS lssued a revised FIN 45 (FIN 46R) in December 2003 that,
among other changes, deferred the effective data for applying the provisions of this interpratation. The
consolidation requirements of FIN 48 apply immediately to varlable- interast entities creatad aftar
Decsmber 31, 2003 for non-public companies. The consolidation raquirements of FIN 46R for non-public
companies apply to existing entities in the first annual period beginning after December 15, 2004.

The Company has evaluated its invastments and other intarests in entities that may be VIEs under the
provisions of FIN 46R. The Company holds limited partnership interasts and member intarasts in various
raal estate limited partnerships and real estate limited fiability companies (LLCs) that engage in the
acquisition, development, managament and disposal of raal estate investments. Soma of thess
invastments ara considered VIEs howevar, the Company is not required to consolidate any of these
interests as It is not the primary beneficiary. At Dacember 31, 2004 the total assats and fiabilities of tha
entitles identified as VIEs ara approximately $76,800 and $45,500, respectively. The craditors of these
antities hava no recourse to the assets of the Company. The maximum exposura to loss reprasents tha
racordad invastment in these real estate limited partnerships and LLCs totaling approximately $28,400.

The Company holds interasts in limited partnerships that invest in low income housing orojects that
qualify for tax credits under the intarnal Ravenue Code. Thase housing projects are VIEs but the
Campany will noi consolidate these partnerships as it is not the primary beneficlary. As of Dacsmber 31,
2004, the fotal assets and liabilities of the partnerships are approximately $132,000 and $87,000,
raspectively. The craditors of these antities have no recourss io the assets of the Cempany. Ths
maximum exposura to loss is the carrying value of $2,9800 in these type of investmants.
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AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDJARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

{in thousands) :

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
{continuad)

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS, {continued)

GUARANTEED MINIMUM DEATH BENEFITS AND SEPARATE ACCOUNTS AND IMPLEMENTATION
OF STATEMENT OF POSITION 03-1

On January 1, 2004, the Company adopted Statement of Position 03-1, Accounting and Reporting by
Insurance Enterprises for Certain Nontraditional Long-Duration Contracts and for Separate Accounts
{SOP 03-1). SOP 03-1 addresses a number of topics; one of which is the accounting for contracts with
guaranteed minimum death benefits (GMDB). As a rasuit, the cumulative effect of tha change in
accounting principle from implamenting SOP 03-1 was a loss of $606, after-tax ($832 pre-tax). It was
comprised of a reduction of $1,428 (pre-tax) to policy and contract reserves and a decreass of $2,360
(pre-tax) to deferred policy acquisition costs. Prior period has not been restated as it Is not permitted by
SOP 03-1.

SOP 03-1 requires consideration of a range of potential results to estimate the cost of variable annuity
death benefits and income benefits, which generally necessitates the use of stochastic modeling
tachniques. To maintain consistency with the assumptions used In the establishment of reserves for
variable annuity guarantees, the Company utilized the results of this stochastic modeling to estimate
axpected gross profits, which form the basis for determining the amertization of deferred policy acquisition
costs. This new modeling approach resulted in a lower estimate of expected gross profits, and therefore
rasults In a write-down of deferred policy acquisition costs.

PENSION AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT DISCLOSURES AND IMPLEMENTATION OF REVISED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARD NO. 132(R)

in December 2003, the FASB issued ravised Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 132,
Employsrs’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postrefirement Benefits ("SFAS No. 132(R)"), that
changes existing financiat statement disclosure raquirementis for pension plans and for other
postretirement benailt plans. It requires additional disciosures about the assets, obligations, cash flows,
and net pericdic benefit cost of defined benefit pension plans and other defined benefit postretirement
plans. The required Information is to be provided separately for pension plans and for other
postratirement benefit plans. SFAS No. 132(R) has been adopted by the Company In 2004.

MEDICARE PRESCRIPTION DRUG, IMPROVEMENT AND MODERNIZATION ACT AND FASB STAFF
POSITION NOQ. 106-1 and 106-2

In January 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 106-1 (FSP No. 106-1}, Accounting and
Disclosure Requiraments Related to the Medicare Prascription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act
of 2003 ("Act’). The Act was signed into law in December 2003 and introduces a prescription drug benefit
undsr Medicare {(Medicare Part D) as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit
plans that provids a benaft that Is at least actuarially equivalant to Medicare Part D. The post-retirament
benefit obligation and net periodic post-retirement benefit cost in the flnanclal statements and
accompanying notes do not reflact the effects of the Act on the Ameritas and Acacia plans. In
accordance with the provisions of FSP No. 106-1, the Cempany elected to defer the recognition of the
accounting impact of the Act as specific authoritative guidance on the accounting for the federal subsidy
was pending and that guidance, when issued, could require-tha Company o change previously raported
information.



AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
-‘FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

in thousands

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
{gontinyed)

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS, (contlnued)

MEDICARE PRESCRIPTION DRUG, IMPROVEMENT AND MODERNIZATIOM ACT AMD FASB STAFF
POSITION NO. 106-1 and 108-2, (continued)

In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 106-2 (FSP No. 106-2), which supercades F3P
No. 106-1, to provide guidanca on accounting for the effects of the Act to sponsars of postratirament
health care plans that provide prescription drug benefits. FSP No. 106-2 requires reporting entities that 1)
alactad deferral under ESP No. 106-1 and 2) are able to determine If their plans are actuariaily equivalent
to recognize the impact of the Act no later than the first annual reporting pefiod beginning after June 15,
2004. The measuras of benefit obligations and net periodic postretirament benefit cost included In these
financial statements do not raflect the effects of the Act. The Company does not expect the adoption of
FSP No. 106-2 to have a material impact on tha results of operations or balance sheet of the Company.

2. CLOSED BLOCK

Effactive October 1, 1998 (the Effactive Date) Ameritas formed a closed block {the Closed Block) of
policies, under an arrangement approved by the Insurance ‘Department of the State of Nebraska, to
provide for dividends on policies that were in forcs on the Effactive Date and which wers within the
classas of individual policies, for which Ameritas had a dividend scale in effect at the Effective Data. The
Closad Block was designed to give raasonable assurance to owners of affected policies that the assets
will be avallable to support such poficies, including maintaining dividend scales in effect at the Effactive
Date, if the experienca underlying such scales continues. The assets, including income thereon, will
accrue solely to the benefit of the owners of pelicies included in the bloclc until the biock is no longer in
effect.

The financial rasults of the Glosed Block, while prepared in accordance with GAAP, reflact the provisions
of the approved arangement and not the actual results of operations and financial position. The
arrangement provides for the leve! of axpenses charged to the Closed Block, actual expenses relaied o
the Closed Block operations are charged outside of the Closed Block; therafora, the contribution or loss
from the Closed Block does not represent the actual operations of the Closed Block.
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AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
{in thousands}

2. C D K, {continued

Summarizad financial information for the Closad Block included in the consolidated financial. statements
as of and for tha years sndad Dacambar 31, 2004 and 2003 is as follows:

Dacember 31
2004 2003
Liabilities:
Pailcy and contract reserves $ 255226 § 254,835
Policy and contract claims 1,837 1,591
Accumutatad: contract vaiues 57,709 58,040
Dividends payabie o policyowners " 10,455 10,3689
Other liabilities (including PDO $8,002 - 2004, $8,571 - 2003) 10,693 11,047
Total Closed Block liabilitias 335,920 335,882
Assets:
Fixed maturity securities held to maturity
(fair value $53,439 - 2004; $78,800 - 2003) 50,242 67,466
Fixed maturity securities available for sale
{amortized cost $162,045 - 2004; $143,949 - 2003) 168,555 151,216
Mortgage ioans on real estate 43,311 41,384
Loans on insurance policies 32,981 34,598
Cash and cash squivalents 4,478 4,938
Accruad investmant income 4,891 4,851
Defarred policy acquisition costs 7,878 8,289
Other assets 3.594 3,121
Total Closed Block assets 316,930 315,881
Excass of reported Closed Block liabilities over Closed Block assets - 18,990 20,021
Increasa in unrealized investment gains, net of tax 158 651
Allocation to policyowner dividend obligation, net of tax (158} {651)
Maximum future earmings to be recognized from Closad Block assats
and liabilities $ 18,990 $ 20,021
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2. CLOSED BLOCK, {continued)

Years Ended Decamber 31

2004 2003

Change in policyowner dividend obligation:

Salanca at beginning of period $ 8571 3§ 7,888

Impact on net income before income taxes (812) (318)

Unrealizad investment gains 243 1,001

Balance at end of period $ 8002 § 8,571

Yaars Ended Dacamber 31
2004 2003

Income:

Pramiums $ 14,537 § 14,775

Net investment income 18,268 19,024

Total Closed Block incoma 32,805 33,799
Benefits and expenses:

Palicy benefits 18,110 18,002

Policyowner dividends 10,788 10,425

Sales and operating expenses 2,154 2,259

Armnortization of defarred policy acgquisition costs 411 726

Total Closed Block beneflts and expenses 31,463 32,412

Closad Block ravenues, net of closed block benefits and

expenses, before income taxes 1,342 1,387

Income taxas 31 592

Ciosed Block revenuas, net of closed block benefits and

axpanses and Income taxes $ 1,01 § 795

3, LIABILITIE R CONTRACT GUARANTEES

Tine Company offers various guarantsed death benefiis to variable annuily policyowners including a
return of no less than {1) the account value at death; (2) the sum of all premium payments less prior
withdrawals; (3} the sum of all premium. payments less prior withdrawals plus a minimum return minus &
partial withdrawal adjustment; or (4} the highest account value on a specifiad anniversary date plus any
premium payments since the anniversary minus any withdrawals following the anniversary and, in most
cases, minus a partial withdrawal adjustment. The Company currently reinsures those death bensfits
graater than the sum of all pramium payments less prior withdrawals.

The table below presents information regarding the Company's variable annuity contracts with
gudraritees. The Company's variable annuity contfacs may offer more than one type of guarantee In
aach contract: therefora, the amounts listed are not mutually exclusive. For guaranteas of amounts in the
svent of death, the net amount at sk is defined as the current guaranteed minimum death benefit in
axcass of the currant account value at the balanca sheet date.

19



AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
{in thousands)

3. LIABILITIES FOR CONTRACT GUARANTEES, (continued)
Pecamber 31, 2004

Return of Net Deposits

Account value $ 1,761,326
Net amount at risk 3 69,175
Average attained age of policyowners 81
Retumn of Net Deposits Plus a Minimum Return
Account valus ) 31,297
Net amount at risk $ 404
Average attained age of policyowners 59
Highest Specified Anniversary Account Value Minus
Withdrawals Post Anniversary
Account value 5 1,170,855
Net amount at risk 3 4,704
Average attainad age of policyowners 61

The following table summarizas the Habilities for guarantees on variable annuity contracts:

Minimum Guaranteed
Death Benefit

Balance at January 1, 2004 5 1,160
Less reinsurance recoverable {53)
Net balanca at January 1, 2004 1,107
Incurred guarantse benefits 1,507
Paid guarantee benefits : (1,593)
Net balarnce at December 31, 2004 1,021
Plus reinsuranca recoverabie 34
Balance at December 31, 2004 5 1,055

The liability for variable annuity death benefit guarantees is established equal to a benefit ratio multiplied
by the cumulative contract charges earnad, pius, accrued Interest less contract benafit payments. The
benefit ratio is calculated as the estimated present value of all expected cantract benefits divided by the
pressnt valua of all expected coniract charges. For guarantses in the event of death, benefits represent
the current guarantzed minimum daath payments in excess of the currant account halance.

Projectad banefits and contract charges used in determining the lability ars pased on models that invelve
a range of scenarios and assumptions, including those regarding expected market rates of return and
volatility. The assumptions used ara consistent with those used in determining estimated gross profits for
purposas of amortizing deferred policy acquisition cests. The Company regularly evaluates estimates
used and adjusts tha additional liabllity balance, with a related charge or credit io benefit expensa, if
actual experlence or other svidenca suggests that sarlier assumptions should be revisad.
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3, LIABILITIES FOR CONTRACT GLA TEES, {continued
Assumptlons used in determining the GMDB Hability included:

» Data used wars 50 deterministic scenarios derivad from actual histarical experience of the 207
century. For each 15 year period beginning with even numbered calendar yaars, historical returns
raflacted a 50% investment in equitias (S&P 500 as the proxy), 35% in fixed Income (Ibbotson LT
Corporate Total Return) and 15% in cash {T-bills).

s Mortality was assumed to be 50% of the 1980 CSO table.
» Lapse rates varlad by contract type and duration and range from 7.5% to 45%.

Variable and non-variable universal life-type contracts are sold with sacondary guarantees that guarantee
that the policy will not lapse, even if the account value Is reduced to zero, as long as the policyowner
maites scheduled pramium payments. Although thers was no method prascribed under GAAP for
universal fife secondary guarantee reserving until the issuance of SOP 03-1, the Company had baen
racording a reserve for these guarantees. At Dacember 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company's estimated
raserve for thess guarantges was $1,335 and $1,750, respectively. Mortality assumptions reflect actual
Company expertence.

The Company has no defarred sales inducaments at this time.

4, INVESTMENTS

Investment income summarizad by type of investment is as follows:

Yaars Ended December 31
2004 2003
Fixed maturity securities held to maturity L 28,032 § 33,206
Fixed maturity securities avafilable for sale 138,584 138,803
Fixed maturity securities trading 1,188 -
Equity securities available for sale 3.279 2,544
Equity securtties trading 555 174
Loans raceivable 90,345 81,158
Real estata 14,038 21,743
Other investmants and cash and cash equivaients 16,741 11,322
Gross investment income 292,782 288,950
Invastment axpensas 20,833 29,701
Net invastment incoma $ 272129 5§ 259249

The gain racognized during 2004 and 2003 on aquity securities trading stiil hald at Decamber 31, 2004
and 2003 was $136 and $218, respectively. There wers no losses recognized on aquity sscurities trading
still hald at December 31, 2004 or 2003.
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4, INVESTMENTS, (continued)

Net pretax realized investment gains (losses) wera as follows:

Years Ended Decsmber 31
2004 2003
Met gains {losses) on disposals, including calls and
writadowns, of investments
Fixed maturity securities held to maturity $ {909) § {341}
Fixed maturity securities available for sale (2,587) (17,761)
Equity securlties available for sale 2,475 {1,369)
Real estate 78,742 203
Other investments (3,438) {4,831)
74,283 (24,099)
Provisions for losses on investments
Loans receivable {62) (88}
Other investments {18) 32
Nat pretax reatizad Investment gains {losses) $ 74203 % (24,158)

The Company recorded other than temporary impairments on fixed maturity securities and equity
sacurities of $8,824 in 2004 and $18,148 in 2003. In acdition, the Company recorded othar than
temporary impairments on other investments of $4,220 in 2004 and $6,431in 2003.

On July 15, 2004, Acacia sold real estats property located at 51 Louislana Avenus NW in the District of
Cotumbia, which served as its former home office, to an unaffiiiated third party. This property had been
develcped and leased to an unaffiliated third party by Acacia’s subsidiary, ARS. Concurrent with the real
estate sale In Acacia, ARS was dissolved, as thare was no other activity In this limited liability corporation.
The realized gain from the sale was $73,073. ’

Procaeds from sales of securities and gross gains and losses realized on those sales were as folfows:

Year Ended December 31, 2004

Proceeds Gains Losses
Fixed maturity sacurities available for sale $ 59302 $ 3107 § 3,814
Equity securitias available for sale 41,198 5,123 2,636
Year Endad Decembar 31, 2003
Proceeds Gains {osses
Fixed maturity securities available for sale 5 83785 $ 3,200 3 6,487
Equity sacurities available for sale 51,181 9,813 8,274
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4. INVESTMENTS, (continued)

The amortized cost and fair vafue of investments in securities by type of investmant ware as follows:

Decamber 31, 2004

Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Fixed maturity securities heid to maturity
\J.S. corporate $ 163225 § 11,322 % 256 § 174,291
Mortgage-backed 58,387 2,042 - 60,429
U.S. Treasury securities and obilgations of

U.S. government agencies 24,287 3,168 21 27,434
Foreign 122,448 5,690 657 127 481

Total fixed maturity securities held to maturity $ 368347 § 22222 § 5§34 $ 389,635
Fixed maturity securities availabie for sale

U.8. corporate $1,319863 $ 80,798 $§ 5,325 $1,395,336
Mortgage-backed 463,789 7,972 1,309 470,452
Asset-backad 41,531 4,168 13 45,686
U.S. Treasury sacurities and obligations of
U.S. government agencies 428,760 9,285 1,384 436,661
Foreign 198,129 10,241 1,231 207,139
Total fixed maturity securities avallable
for sale $2,452072 § 112464 § 9262 $2,555274
Equity securities available for sale $ 126,011 $ 30,529 § 1,141 § 155,459

At December 31, 2004, the Company had fixed maturity securities with a carrying amount of $24,055 on
deposit with various state insurance departments.
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4. INVESTMENTS, (continued)
Dacember 31, 2003
Amortized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Lossas Valug
Fixed maturity securities held to maturity
.S, corporate $ 205582 § 15895 § 1,620 3 219,857
Mortgage-backed 856,980 3,940 1 90,919
Asset-backed 5,682 179 18 5,843
U.8. Treasury securitles and obligations of
U.8. government agencies 30,584 4,161 ] 34,739
Faraign 78,530 7.258 40 85,748

Total fixed maturty securities held to maturity $ 407358 $§ 31,433 § 1635 § 437,106
Fixad maturity securities available for sale

U.S. corporate $1349322 3 96,130 $§ 11443 $1,434,009
Mortgage-bacied 480,441 7.555 2157 465,839
Asset-backad 56,357 2,144 6,196 52,305
1U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of
U.8. government agencies 387,770 8,582 1,864 394,488
Foreign 171,815 11,003 897 181,921
Totai fixed maturity securities available
for sale $2425705 § 125414 § 22,557 $2,528,562
Equity securities available for sale $ 115296 $ 22293 § 2,069 § 135,520

During 2000, the Company purchased $33,000 of corporate fixad maturity securitias at par value from an
affiliate. During 2001, the issuing company declared bankruptcy and the bonds were unpaid at maturity.
The fair vaiue of the fixed maturity securities availabie for sale as of December 31, 2003, was $31,048.
Curing 2004, the Company saftled these bends and were paid In full after the issuing company emerged
from bankruptcy.
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4, INVESTMENTS, (continued)

An aging of unrealizad losses on the Company's investments in fixed maturity securities classified as held
to maturity and avallable for sale and squity securitles classified as available for sals as of Decamber 31,
2004 is as follows:

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Totai
Fair  Unrealized Fair  Unrealized Fair  Unrealizad
. Value  Losses Value  Losses Valug Losses
Fixed maturity securities!
U.S. Corporate $143558% 1863 S 769555 3,718 $220513§ 5581
Martgage-backad 124,619 740 31,028 563 155,647 1,308
Assat-backed 137 - 785 13 922 13
L.S. Treasury securitles
and obligations of U.S.
government agencies 129,783 1,168 10,462 237 140,225 1,405
Foreign 84,430 1,075 17,700 813 82,130 1,888
Total fixed maturity sacurities 462,507 4,846 136,930 5,350 599,437 10,196
Equity securlties 6,183 500 4,510 641 10,693 1,141
Totat $468600 $ 5.346 51414403 50991 $610,130 $§ 11,337

The Company ragularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may Indicate that a dacline In fair
valua of an investment Is other than temporary. Based on an evaluation of the prospects of the issuers,
including, but not limited to, the company's intentions to sell or ahility to hold tha investments; the length
of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss; and the cradlt ratings of ths Issuers of the investments in
the above fixed maturity sacurities, the Company has concludad that the declines in the fair vajues of the
Company’s Investments in fixed maturity securities at Decamber 31, 2004 are temporary.

For substantially all squity securities above with an unrealized loss greater than 12 months, such
unrealized loss was less than 20% of the Company's carrying vaiue of each equity security. The
Company considers various factors when considering if a decline in the fair value of an equity secutity is
other than temporary, including but not limited to, the length of time and magnitude of the unrsalized loss;
the voiatility of the investment; analyst recommendations and prica targets; opinions of the Company's
investment managers; market liquidity; and the Company's intentions to sell or ability to hold the
Investments. Based on an evaluation of thesa factors, the Company has concluded that the declines o
the fair values of the Company's investments In equity securities at Dscember 31, 2004 are temporary.
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4, INVESTMENTS, ({continued}

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturity securities by contractual maturity at December 31,
2004 are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers
may have the right to calf or prepay obiigations with or without cail or prepayment penalties. :

Available for Sale Held to Maturity
Amortized Fair Amortizad Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Due in one year or less $ 112425 § 114074 $ 22595 $ 22,974
Due after one year through five years 567,618 597,693 101,004 107,283
Due after five years through ten years 842,195 879,121 128,986 134,891
Dus after ten years 424,514 448,248 §7,375 63,958
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed sacurities 505,320 516,138 58,387 60,429
Total $2,452,072 $2,555274 § 368,347 § 389635
Loans receivable are summarized as follows:
December 31
2004 2003
Residential mortgages $ 612,307 § 522,198
Commearcial and commercial roal astate mortgages 597,725 584,093
Construction loans 7 144,074 130,215
Consumar loans and others 26,096 38,026
Net defarrad loan costs 2,494 2236
Allowancaes for lossas on loans (5.390) (4,972)
l.oans on insurance policies 153,082 158,940

$ 1530388 $ 1410736

The majority of the Company's residential and construction loans are with customers jocated in the
Washington, D.C. metropolitan area. The ability of the Company’s debtors to honor their contracts is
dependent upon real estate valuation and general economic conditions In this area.

Commercial, commercial real astate, and construction loans are evaluated individually for impairment.

The Company requires collateral on residential real estate loans and originates loans generally with loan-
to-value ratios of no greater than 80% at the time of origination, unless appropriate privata mortgage
insurance is obtained. For commercial real estate mortgages, the Company requires collateral on original
foans with a loan-to-value ratio of no greater than 75% at the time of origination. The amount of collaterai
on non-real estate loans is basad on management's credit assessment of tha customer.

Loans held for sale at Decamber 31, 2004 and 2003, wara $2,649 and $1,941, respectively. Thasa loans
are inctuded within the rasidential mortgage loans noted above.

Loans serviced for others are not Included in the accompanylng consolidated balance sheets. The

unpaid principal balance of mortigage and other ioans sarviced for éthers was $103,738 and $85,942,
raspectively, at December 31, 2004 and 2003.
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4. INVESTMENTS, (continued]}

The activity in the allowanca for loan losses Is summarizad as follows:

Years Ended December 31
2004 2003
Balance, beginning of year $ 4972 % 4,952
Net charge-offs (35) {69)
Provision for loan losses 453 89
Balance, end of year $ 5390 % 4972

5. SAVINGS DEPOSIT

Savings deposits include demand deposits of $127,912 and $128,155 and time deposits of $449,599 and
$465,078, at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Time daposits with individual balances In
axcess of $100 totaled approximately $39,860 and $45,211, respactively, at Dacember 31, 2004 and
2003. Interest on deposits paid by the Company totaled $14,573 in 2004 and $13,035 in 2003.

The scheduled maturities of the time deposits are summarized as follows:

Decamber 31, 2004

2005 $ 243,475
2006 119,412
2007 63,649
2008 12,430
2009 10,495
Thereafter 138

$ 449,599

§. BORROWINGS

Borrowings consist of repurchase agreements and long-term debt.

The Company sells securities under agresmants to repurchass as part of its banking cperations. These
rapurchase agraements are classified as secured borrowings and generally mature within one to ninety
days from the transaction date. Sacurities sold under agreements to repurchase are raflected at the
amount of cash recaivad in connection with the transaction. The Company may be raquirad to provide
additional collateral basad on the fair value of the underlying securities. Collateral for the repurchase
agreaments consists of morigage-backed securities.

The Company's long term dabt consists of fixed and ficating rate long-term advances from the Federal
Home Loan Bank (FHLB) of Aflanta and a mortgage foan in 2003 only.

The Company's total fixad-rata FHLB advances were $249,300 and $164,200 at Decamber 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively. At Decamber 31, 2004 and 2003, the intarest rates on fixed-rats FHLB advances
ranged from 2.38% to 7.94% and from 1.21% to 7.94%, respectively. At December 31, 2004 and 2003,
the weighted average interest rate was 3.80% and 4.10%, respactively.
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3. BORROQWINGS, (continued)

The Company's total floating rate FHLB advancas weara $33,0C0 at Decamber 31, 2003. The Company
had no floating rate FHLB advances at Dacember 31, 2004, The floating rate is basad on the FHLS of
Atlanta’s overnight deposit rate. At December 31, 2003, the interast rats on floating rate, FHLB advances
was 1.15%.

Collateral for the Company's long-term FHLB advances consists of mortgage loans with principal
balances totaling approximately $569,563 and $328,131 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

In 1997, Acacia obtained a commitment to financa renovations to its headquarters bullding with a $40,000
mortgage loan from Northwestern Mutual Lifs Insurance Company (Northwestern). Interest-only
payments, at 8.35%, wera required through the completion of the renavation. In November 1999, the
loan was converted to a permanent mortgage, with the home office property serving as collateral.
Monthly principal and interest payments were due on the first day of each month until the mortgage
axpiras and a balloon payment of $14,158 was due on Juna 1, 2014. The interest rate was fixed at
8.35%. Monthly payments were due to Northwestern in the amount of $354 with scheduled increases to
3298 at November 1, 2011, This mortigage was paid off In July 2004 upon the sale of the real estats

property.

During 2000, AMAL Corporation enterad into an unsscurad loan agreement to borrow up to $20,000 from
it3 parents. The note was amended in 2002 to borrow up fo $15,000 and came due August 15, 2003, At
that time, the maturity date of the promissory note was amended to be August 13, 2004. During 2004,
the promissory note was renewed until August 11, 2005. The note carries an interest rate of LIBOR plus
0.525% (2.90625% at Decembsr 31, 2004 and 1.8125% at December 31, 2003). The note payable—
aMfiliate of $3,359 at December 31, 2004 and 2003 rspresents the amount due to AMAL Corporation's
minority owner as the portion due to the Company’s subsidiaries has been eliminated in consolidation,

Principal payments due on borrowings are as follows:

Decamber 31, 2004

Fixad : Note

Rapurchass Rale Payable-

Agraaments Advances Total Affilfate
Due In 2005 $ 41388 3 78200 $ 117589 § 3,359
Dua in 2006 - 35,400 35,400 -
Dus in 2007 - 41,400 41,400 -
Due In 2008 - 41,400 41,400 -
Duas In 2009 - 28,800 29,300 -
2010 and thersafter - 25,000 25,000 -
Total borrowings $ 41,389 3 249300 § 290889 % 3,359
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1. INCOME TAXES

The items that give rise to deferrad tax asseis and liabillties relate to the following:

Years Ended December 31

2004 2003

Net unrealized investment gains 5 37101 § 24,566
Equity in subsidiaries 23,043 22,518
Deferrad policy acguisition costs 74,718 78,906
Prapaid expenses 13,366 12,518
Other 6,416 5,400
Gross deferred tax liability 154,645 143,906
Future policy and contract benalfits 73,776 72,766
Deferred future revenues 6,756 6,888
Policyowner dividends 5,988 6,184
Pension and post-ratirement benefits 9,796 9,570
Policyholder dividend obligation 2,801 4,188
Other 10,841 9,612
Nat operating/capital losses and credits 283 4,927
Gross defarred tax asset 110,241 114,135

Net deferrad tax liabillty $ 44,404 § 29,771

The difference between the U.S. federal income tax rate and the consolidated tax provision rats Is
summarized as follows:

Years Ended Dacember 31

2004 2003
Faderal statutory tax rata 3500 % BOC %
Equity in subsidiaries 1.72 4.40
Tax credits (0.79) {2.07)
Release of federal income tax reserve {4.C0) -
Other {0.29) .42
Effactive tax rate 384 % 3775 %

AVLIC has approximately $808 of gross capital loss cairyforwards as of December 31, 2004, AVLIC's
gross capital toss camyforward of approximately $138 and $370 wiii expire in 2005 and 2009,
respectively.

The Company files income tax returns with the Internal Resvenue Service and various state iax
Jurisdictions. From tima to time, the Company is subject to routine audits by those agencies and those
audits may result in proposad adjustments. The Company has considered the altemative interpretations
that may be assurned by the various taxing agencies and believes Its positions taken regarding its filings
arg valid. Based upon review of the Company's tax contingencies, the raserve held for tax ralated
contingencles was raducad by $7,935 in 2004,
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8. EMPLOYEE AND AGENT BENEFIT PLANS

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

AHC sponsors a non-contributory defined benefit plan (the Plan or Pension Pian). The Plan was formerty
sponscored by Ameritas as a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all
amployees of Ameritas and AMAL (Ameritas Plan). During 2000, the Ameritas -Plan was merged with the
Acaciz Ratirement Plan (Acacia Plan), sponsored by Acacia.

Upon the merger of the Ameritas and Acacia Plans, accumulated beneflts of the Plan were frozen, and
AHC becama the Plan sponsor. While their pension plans wera merged, the separate benafit formuias of
the Ameritas Plan and Acacia Plan still exist within the Plan and ara used to determine the amount of
expense to allocate to the participating subsidiaries.

AHC uses a December 31 measurament date for its plans.

Obligations and Funded Status At December 31
Pension Banefits

2004 2003
Projected benefit obligation $ 108,322 § 102,848
Fair value of plan assets 102,593 97,078
Funded status {5,729) (8.770)
Employer contributions 5,000 12,000
Benefit paymants 8,008 7.341
Accumnulated banefit obligation 94 537 90,477
Net periodic beneflt cost 4,024 5,618
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of:
Prepaid benafit cost $ 34424 3 33.448

investment Policies And Strategies

The investment objective for the Plan shall be to maximize the real rate of retum {adjusted for inflation)
within prudant limits and with the diversity to which a prudent investor would adhers. At a minimum, the
investment cbjective Is to ganarate a positive raal rate of return. The targeted total agset allocation mix
between Equity and Fixed Income asset classes is 60% Equity and 40% Fixed income. This allocation
ratio should be maintained on a continuous basis with an allowable range of 45% to 65% in Equities and
35% to 55% in Fixed Income.

The long term expacted return for the plan assets is 8%. The expected return was based on 10 years of
historical data of Equity and Fixed income benchmarks. It was also based on current markst valuations
and forecasted markst returns. The allocation rangas ars determined to be the mosi consistent at
providing the expected raturn, limiting risk and covering the Plan's benefit obligation considering the sizs,
duration, and naturz of the Plan's obligations.
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8. EMPLOYEE AND AGENT BENEFIT PLANS, (continuad)

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN, (continuad)
The actual allocation ratio was:

Equities Equitles Fixed income Fixad Income

Affiliated Unaffiliatad Alfiliated - Unaffiliated
2004 37.8% . 22.3% 23.7% 16.2%
2003 40.6% 13.7% 25.5% 20.2%

A portion of the separate account assats is invested In mutual funds, which are advised by Calvert,

AHC made contributions fo the retirement plan totaling $5,000 in 2004 and $12,000 in 2003. The
Pension Plan is subjact to the minimum funding requirements of ERISA, AHC's funding policy is to
contribute annually an amount that satisfies the funding standard account requiraments of ERISA.
Contributions are intended to provide not only for benefits attributad to service to date but also for those
expected to be eamed in the future. AHC is expected to contribute $3,300 1o the plan In fiscal year 2005,
The annual funding contributions are determined by the Plan's enrolled actuary. No voluntary
contributions by participants ware permitted.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments
The following benefit payments, which reflect expected futura service, as appropriate, ars axpacted to be
paid:

Fiscal Year Amount

2005 $ 7.605
2006 9,133
2007 8,843
2008 9,408
2009 11,287
2010 - 2014 53,194

Assumptions

Waeighted-average assumpticns used to determine beneflt obligations and net periodic pension cost at
December 31:

Pansion Benefits

2004 2003
Discount rate 6.00% "6.25%
Rats of compensation increass 4.50% 4.50%
Expectad long term Rats of Raturn on Assats 8.00% 8.00%

Al Decamber 31, 2003, the accumulated bensfit obligation did not exceed the fair value of the Plan
assats. As a result, the Company reversed its 2002 recogniticn of the additional minimum pension
liability, the defarad tax asset, and the Inlangible assat. Accounting for the minimum pension llability
resultad in a cradit of $20,256 in 2003 to accumulated other comprahensiva incoma.
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AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
{in thousands)

8. EMPLOYEE AND AGENT BENEFIT PLANS, (continued)

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

Substantially all full-time employees and agents participate in defined centribution plans sponsorsd by
AHC. Company matching contributions under the defined contribution plan ranged from 0.5% to 3.0% in
2004 and 2003. In addition, AHC makes an additional contribution of 6.0% of the participants’ sligible
compensation on a quarterly basis. Confributions by AHC to the empioyee and agenis defined
contribution plans wers $5,867 and $6,018 in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The defined contribution plan's assets also include investments in a deposit administration contract with
Ameritas and investments in two pension separate accounts of Ameritas. The carrying value of the
assets of the Plan invested In Ameritas and its separate accounts ware approximatsly $170,849 and
$153,442 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. A portion of tha separate account assets is
invested in mutual funds, which are advised by Calvert.

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Ameritas provides certain health cars beneflts to retired emptoyees. For assoclates eligible to refire at
January 1, 2000, these benefits ara a specified percentage of premium until age 65 and a flat dollar
amount thereafter. For assoclates sligible for ratirement after January 1, 2000, benefits will be provided
untii the associate becomes eligible for Medicare. Employees becoms eligible for thess banefits upon the
attainment of age 55, 15 years of sarvice and parficipation in the Ameritas medical plan for the
lmmed|ataly preceding five years.

Acacia also provides certain life insurance and medical benefits to employees who retired beforz
Decamber 31, 1992,

Ameritas and Acacla use a December 31 measuresment date for their plans.

Obllgations and Funded Status

Ameritas Acacia
2004 2003 2004 2003
Benefit cbligation $ 7537 % 4179 § 14,050 $ 14,796
Fair value of plan assats 2,713 2,385 - -
Funded status {(4,823) (1,794) (14.080) {14,796}
Employer contributions 505 415 - -
Participant contributions 277 283 218 215
Benefit payments 757 725 1,301 1,217
Met periodic benefit cost 414 138 645 526
Amounts racegnizad in the balance sheat consist of:
Amaritas Acacia
2004 2003 2004 2003
Accrued bensfit cost 5 2053 § 3218 § 18,061 § 18499

Plan assets arz investad in 100% fixed income investments. Tho axpectad rats of raturn on these
investments is 6%.
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3. EMPLOYEE AND AGENT BENEFIT PLANS, {continued)

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS, (continued)

Estimated Futurs Benafit Payments

Tha following net benefit payments, which reflect axpected future service, as appropriate, are expected o
ba paid: :

Expecied Nat Benefit Payments

Fiscal Year Ameritas Acacia

2005 $ 537 $ 1,127
2006 559 1,131
2007 585 1,120
2008 804 1,094
2009 622 1,059
2010 - 2014 3,119 4,684

Assumptions
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine post retirament benefit obligations at Decamber 31:

Ameritas Acacia
2004 2003 2004 2003
Discount rate 6.00% 6.25% 8.00% 6.25%
Expected long term rate of raturn on assats 8.00% 7.50% N/A N/A
Assumed Haalth Care Trand ratas at Decamber 31
Ameritas Acacia
2004 2003 2004 2003
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 8.0% 9.0% 8.0% 9.0%
Rate to which the cost trend rate Is assumed to
decline (the ultimate trend rate) 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Yaar that rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2008 2008 2008 2008
OTHER PLANS

Separate supplemental retirement agreements totaiing approximately $22,000 and $21,000 included in
other llabllities at Dacember 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, cover certain active and ratired amployees.
Thesa plans are unfunded.

9. REGULATORY MATTERS

Combined net income of the Company's insurancs subsidiaries, as determined in accordanca with
statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the Insurance Departments of the states of
Mabrasia, Maw York and tha District of Columbia, as applicable, was $117,028 for 2004 and $46,607 for
2003 and combinad statutory surplus was $941,089 and $811,343 at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
raspectively, insuranca companies are required to maintain a certain leval of surplus to be in complianca
with stats laws and regulations. Surpius is monitorad by state regulators to ensure compliancs with risic
basad capltal requiremants.
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. REGU ORY MATTERS ntiniad

Under statutes of the Insurance Departments of Nebraska, New York, and the District of Columbia, the
amount of dividends payable to stocikholders ara limited.

AFSB Is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencias.
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additicnai
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct materal effact on AFSB. As of
September 30, 2003, the most recent notification from AFSB's bank regulator categorized AFSB as well
capitailzed under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There ara no conditions or
avents since that notification that management believes have changed AFS8'’s category.

10, REINSURANCE

The effact of reinsurance on premiums earned is as follows:
Yaars Ended Dacamber 31

2004 2003
Assumed $ 79454 § 85,213
Ceded {55,922) (60,621)
Reinsurancs, net 5 23532 § 24,592

The Company is not relleved of its primary liability in the event that a reinsurer Is unabla to meet the
obligations ceded under the rainsuranca agreement.

Amerls Life Insurance Company (AmerUs), a minority owner of AMAL, through assumption reinsuranca,
has assumed approximately 99% of AVLIC's equity indexed annuity business as of Decambar 31, 2004
and 2003. A raceivable of $135 and $117 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, from this
affiliate supports the remaining co-insurance obiigation, As a condition- to assumption reinsuranca,
cartain states have raguired that AVLIC remain contingently llable in the gvent tha assuming rainsurer is
unable to fuifill its obligations. AVLIC was contingently liable for $5,832 and $10.504 of additionat
raserves as of Dacember 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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11, POLICY ANG CONTRACT CLAIMS

The change In the liability for unpaid accident and health claims and claim adjustment expensas is
summarized as follows:

Yeaars Ended Decembar 31
2004 2003
Balance at January 1 $ 41277 § 38,023
Rainsurance reserves, net {11,372) {12,703)
29,905 26,320
Incurred related to:
Current year 261,896 262,464
Prior year {9,786) (7,943
Total incurred 252,110 254,521
Paid raiated to:
Current yaar 236,832 232,559
Prior year 20,119 18,377
Total paid 256,951 250,936
25,0864 29,905
Reinsurance reserves, nat 0,955 11,372
Balanca at December 31 35,019 41,277
Life Insurance policy and contract claims 11,993 13,309
Total policy and contract claims - $ 47012 $ 54586

As a result of favorable settlement of prlor years' estimated ciaims, the provision for claims and claim
adjustment expansas decreased by $9,786 and $7,943 for the years endad December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively, :

12. . COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

LEASES

Acacla and affiliates leass office space and equipment under operating leases that expire at various
dates through 2015, Rent expense was $6,427 for 2004 and $3,730 for 2003. Future minimum
payments under noncanczllable operating leases consist of the following:

Dacember 31, 2004

2005 [ 6,290
20086 5914
2007 5,658
2008 2,709
2009 2,625
Thereaftsr 5,396

3 28,5892

LINE OF CREDIT

At Dacember 31, 2004, Ameritas and Acacia sach have an unsacured line of credit available in the
amouni of $15,000 and $10,060, respectively. No balancs was outstanding at any time during 2004 or
2003,
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, (continued)

OFF BALANCE SHEET INSTRUMENTS
Financial Instruments - Commitments on financial instruments were as follows:

Decamber 31
2004 2003
Securities commitments $§ - 57550 $ 35,354
Loan and real estate commitments 44,903 74,020
Unfunded commitments under lines of cradit 112,687 109,120

These commitments have baen made in the normal coursa of business. The Company's exposura fo
credit loss is represented by the confractual notional amount of thase instruments. The Company uses
the same credit policles and collateral requirements in making commitments and conditional obligations
as It does for on-balance sheet instruments. .

Commitments to extend credit are agreaments to lend fo a customer based upon the customer’s fuifilling
certain conditions as established in the loan agreement. These conditions are dependent on the type of
loan. Commitments to extend credit under consumer lines of credit are generally dependent upon
payments in accordance with the loan agreement. Adherenca to the loan agresment as to prompt
payment is also required for commercial and construction lines of cradit. In addition, most of these cradit
lines require that collateral be identifled and evaluated according to the terms of the loan agrsement in
order for additicnal amounts to be advanced. Commitments generally have fixad expiration dates or
other termination clauses and may requirs payment of a fes. Commitments for lines of credit may expire
without being drawn upon. Therafore, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represant future
cash requirements .

In the normal course of business the Company's brokerage activities involve, principally through Its
clearing firm, various securities transactions. These activities may expose the Company to off balanca
shaet risk in the event the customer or clearing firm is unable to fulfill its contractual obligations.

Derivative Financial Instruments - AFSB ufilizes interest rate caps for asset liabilty manhagsment
purposes, and these transactions involve both credit and markat risk, The notional amounts are amounts
on which caiculations and payments are based. MNolionai amounts do not rapresent direct cradit
exposure. Direct credit axposure is limited to the net cifference betwaen the calculated amounts fo he
received and paid, if any.

In 2003, AFSB had an interest rate cap which expired in Juna 2003. The inferest rate cap was used to
mitigate some aspects of its Interest rate risk exposure. Interast rate caps are options contracts that
modify or reduce interast rate risk in exchange for a purchase premium when the contract is issued. The
notional amount on which the pramium and/or any intarest payments are based is not axchanged. In
particular, the cap contracts will increase in value as intarest rates Incraase, partly offsatting the market
value losses that the undarlying financial instruments would axpsrienca. There is no interast payment
dus from AFS8's counterparty unless the actual index rate exceeds the cap rate. In that case the
counterparty (tha Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta) would pay quarerly to AFSB the excess of the
actual rata over the cap rate times the noticnal amount.

Mo interast rata caps wera carried on the bocks at Decambar 31, 2004 and 2003,
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12. COMMITMEMTS AM TIM {ES ntinusd

STATE LIFE AND HEALTH GUARANTY FUNDS

As a condition of doing business, all states and jurisdictions have adopted laws requiring membersihip in
life and health insurance guaranty funds. Member companles ars subject o assessmants each ysar
based on Iifa, health or annuity premiums colleciad in ihe state. In some states these assessments may
be applied against premium taxas. The Company has estimated its costs related to past insclvancies and
has provided a raserve included in other liabilitles of $1,641 and $1,446 as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, respactively.

LITIGATION :

From time lo time, the Company and its subsidiaries are subject to iltigation in the normal course of
businass. Managsment does not balieve that the Company is party to any such pending litigation which
would have a material advarse aifact. on Its financial statemants or future operations.

13. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following disclosures ars made ragarding fair value Iinformation about certain financial instrumants for
which it is practicable to astimate fair value. in cases whers quoted marlket prices ara not available, fair
values are based on asfimates using present value or othar valuation tachniques. Those tachniquas ara
significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and astimates of fuiurs casn
flows. In that regard, the derived fair vaiue estimates, in many cases, could not be realized on Immadiats
settloment of the instrument. All nonfinancial instruments ars excluded from disclosure raguiremants.

Accordingly, the aggregata fair valua amounts presentad do not represent the underlying valua cf the
Company.

The fair value esiimates prasanted herein are basad cn pertinent information avallable to managamant as
of December 31, 2004 and 2003. Althcugh management is not aware of any factors that would
significantly affect the estimated fair value amounts, such amounts have not been compranansivaly
ravalued for purposes of these financial statemenis sinca that date; therefora, current astimatas of fair
value may differ significantly from the amounts presenied herain.

The following mathods and assumptions were usad by the Company In eslimating its falt valua
disclosuras for each class of financial instrumant for which it is practicable {o estimate a vaiue!

Fixad maturily sscurities - For publicly traded sacurities, fair value is determined using an
indapendent pricing source. For securities without a readily ascertainable fair vaius, the
value has been determined using an interest rata spraad matrix based upon quality,
waightad average maturity and U.S. Treasury yleids.

Equity sacuritias - Falr value I8 detarmined using prices from an independant pricing
source.
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13. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, {continued)

Loans receivable - For variable-rats loans that reprice frequently and with no significant
changse in credit risk, fair values are based on carrying values. Fair values for fixad rate
loans ars estimated using a discounted cash flow analyses at interast rates currently
being offered for ivans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. Fair
values for nonperforming loans ars estimated using discountad cash flow analyses or
underlying collateral values, whera appiicabie.

Other investments - Fair value for ventura capltal partnerships is estimated based on
values as last reported by the partnership and discounted for their lack of markatability.
Real estate partnerships are carried on the equity method and are excluded from the fair
value disclosura.

Cash and cash equivalents, reinsurance receivable — affifiate and accrued invesiment
income - The carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
Instrumertts.

Accumulated contract values - Funds on deposit with a fixed maturity are valued at
discounted present value using markat interast rates. Funds on deposit which do not
have fixad maturities are camied at the amount payable on demand at the reporting dats,
which approximates fair value.

Savings deposits - The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interast and non-
interest checking, passbook savings, and certain types of meney market accounts) ars,
by definition, egual to the amount payable on demand at the reporting dats (l.e., their
carrying amounts). The carrying amounts of variable-rate, fixed-term money market
accounts, and certificates of deposit approximate their fair values at the reporting date.
Fair values for fixad-rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash
flow calculation that applies interast rates currently being offered on certificates to a
schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits.

Borrowings - The carrying amounts of borrowings under repurchase agrsemaents, and
other short-term borrowings maturing within ninety days, approximate their fair values.
The fair values of long-term borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flow
analyses based on current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing
arrangemants. ’

Nots payable - affiliate - As the note payable - affiliats is a variable rate nots that raprices
fraquently, fair value is based on the carrying amount.

Saparate account asssels and fabilities - Tha fair value of saparate account assets are
pased upon guoted rmarket prices. Separate account liabilities are carried at the fair
value of tha underlying assats.

Commitments - The estimated fair valua of commitments approximates carrying amount

because the fees currently charged for thess arrangements and the underlying interast
ratas approximate markat.
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13. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, {continuad)

Estimatad fair values ars as follows:

Decambear 31
2004 2003
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets:

Fixed maturity securities:

Held to maturity $ 3688347 $ 389,835 § 407,358 $ 437106

Availabla for sale 2,555,274 2,555,274 2,528,562 2,528,562

Trading 20,624 20,624 - -
Equity securities:

Availabie for sale 155,459 155,459 135,520 135,620

Trading 7,020 7.020 1,798 1,796
Loans receivabie 1,530,388 1,559,862 1,410,738 1,438,572
Other investments 70,172 65,752 40,688 58,660
Cash and cash equivalents 184,540 184,540 186,109 188,109
Accrued Investment income 57,078 57,076 81,305 61,305
Relnsuranca raceivable - affiliate 135 135 17 117
Assets ralated to separate accounts 2,666,204 2,666,204 2,487,043 2,487,043

Financial liabilities:

Accumulated contract values axciuding

amounts hseld under Insurance contracts 1,470,654 1,479,012 1,466,409 1,478,469
Savings deposits 577.511 574,923 593,231 594,749
Borrowings 290,689 289 461 295,642 303,191
Note payable - affiliate 3,359 3,359 3,359 3,358
Liabilities related to separate accounts 2,666,204 2,668,204 2,487,043 2,437,043

4. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In January 2005, the Boards of Directors of AAMHC and Tha Union Central Life Insurance Company
Union Central) voted to merge their mutual insurance holding companies In a business combination
Accounted for as a pooling of interests. Union Central is currently organized as 2 mutual insurance
°°"“Dany. Union Cenfral will form a mutua! holding company which will simultaneously merge with
AAMHC to form UMIF! Mutual Holding Company. UNIFI Mutual Holding Company will be a Nebraska
9Miciled company located in Lincoin, Nebraska. The intermadiata holding company, AHC, will continue
With the same name and remaln under the faws of the State of Nebraska. The merger Is anticipated to be
*Mactive lats in 2005 subject to various apgrovals.
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AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{in thousands)

UNAUDITED
March 31 Daecember 31
2005 2004
ASSETS

Investments:
Fixed maturity sacurities held to maturity, at amortized cost $ 370,669 $ 368,347
Fixed maturity sacurities available for sale, at fair value 2,504,929 2,555,274
Fixad maturity securities trading, at fair value 23,807 20,624
Equity sacurities, at fair valug 182,803 162,479
Loans receivable 1,583,619 1,530,388
Raal estate, less accurmnulated depraciation 45,439 40,815
Other invesiments 124,866 116,928
Total investments 4,836,732 4,794 925
Cash and cash aquivalents 154,745 184,540
Accrued investment income 55,955 57,076
Defarrad policy aquisition costs 299,454 282,253
Other assets 167,495 174,130
Separate accounts 2,613,561 2,665,204
Tota! assets $ B,127,952 $ 8,150,128

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Future policy benafits 908,930 910,899
Accumulated contract values 2,240,219 2,248,017
Savings deposits 646,176 877,511
Note payabie - affiliate 3,359 3,358
Sorrowings 271,530 280,689
Cther fabilitles 205,847 225,070
Separate accounts 2,613,561 2,666,204
Total liabilitias 6,889,722 6,521,749
Minarity interast in subsidary 59,386 53,294
Retained eamings 1,144,134 1,123,764
Accumulated other comprahensive incoma 34,710 55,321
Total equity 1,178,844 1,179,085

Total liabilities and eguity $ 8,127,852 $ 8159128




AMERITAS ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOUIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

{in thousands)
UNAUDITED

iINCOME:
Insurance ravenues
Pramiums
Contract charges
Rainsurancs, nat
Reinsurance ceded ailowanca
Mutual fund management and related fees
Broker dealer revenues
Net investment income
Realizad gains, net
Other

BENEFITS AND EXPENSES:

Policy benafits

Sales and operating expenses

Interast expense

Amontization of deferred policy acquisition costs

income before income taxas and minority interast in
eamings of subsidiary

Income taxas

income before minority interest in earnings of subsidiary

Minority interast in earhings of subsidiary

MNat income

For the Thrae Months Ended March 31

2005 2004
$ 104,867 $ 104,233
35,371 34,119
8,153 7,339
2,479 2,712
24,031 21,908
11,573 11,870
65,255 64,585
5,944 887
8,605 . 6,678
262,078 254,427
126,618 126,663
82,622 84,880
6712 5,096
11,074 13,288
227,025 228,927
35,053 24,500
13,314 8,769
24,739 15,731
{1.367) {817)
& 20,372 3 14,814
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Baard of Dircctors of
The Union Central Life Insurance Company

We have audited the accampanying consalidated bafunce sheets of The Union Central Life [nsurance Company and
subsidiarics as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the refated comsuliduted statements of income, changes in equity,
and cash flows for the years then ended, These financial siatements are the responsibility of the Company's fianagement,
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ginancial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the
financial statements of Union Central Mortgage Funding, Inc, a wholly-owned subsidiary, which statements reficet 3%
and 9.3% of total consolidated pre-tax income for the years ended 2004 and 2003, respectively, Thoese statements were
audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for Union Central Murtgage Funding, Tnc., is bused solely on the report of uther auditors,

We conducted our audits in accardunce with auditing standards generally aceepied in the United States, Those staadards
requirs that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abont whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internad control over financial reporting s u basis for
designing audit procedures that are. appropriate in the circumstunces, but not for the purposz of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internol conteol over financial reporting. Accordingly, we exprass no such opinion.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclusures in-the finarcial starzinents,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by mittragemenr, as wekl as evaluating the averall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a rensonable basis for our epinion,

in our opinion, based on our audits and the report of ether awditors, the fnancial statements referred to above presemt
faicly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial pozition of The Union Central Life Insurunce Compuny and

subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003; and the consolidated results of their operations and their cask Rows for the
years then ended in conformity with accounting principies gencrally accepted 1 the Uniied States.

Banat + %M?LL?

Fehruary 8, 2005



Tue Unton CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

December 31,
ASSETS 2004 2003
Investments: .
Fixed maturities available-for-sale at fair value (amortized cost:

2004 - $3,365,283 and 2003 - $3,365,149) $§ 3448772 $§ 3448932
Other fixed maturities 13,236 24,260
Equity securities available-for-sale at fair value

(cost: 2004 - $15,681 and 2003 - $39,810) 17,475 63,077
Other equity securities 4,135 13,803
Cash and short-term investments i 15,840 5,958
Other invested assets 32,647 32,926
Mortgage loans held-for-investment 512,292 508,655
Mortgage loans held-for-sale 167,020 18,996
Amounts recsivable under repurchase agresment 71,730 36,457
Real estate 10,056 11,272
Policy loans 142611 144,037

Total investments 4,375,814 4,308,373

Accrued investment income 47,646 46,126
Deferred policy acquisition costs 370,223 358,632
Property, plant and equipment, at cost, less accumulated
depreciation (2004 - $94,522 and 2003 - $36,040) 37,871 41,904
Federal income 1ax recoverable 4972 -
Receivable for securities 105,709 7,904
Other assets 403,421 291,224
Separate account assets 2,095,848 1,809,545
Total assets 7241304 §.6.861.708
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Policy liabilities:
Future policy benefits 3 4,023,737 § 4,003,852
Deposit funds 114,896 119,116
Policy and contract claims 28,932 37,126
Policyholders’ dividends 8.398 9,152
Totat policy liabilities 4,181,013 4,169,246
Deferred revenue 50,990 60,902
Payable for securities 107,086 185
Warehouse line of credit 34,565 18,970
Other liabilities 133,241 99,763
Federal income tax payable -- 895
Deferred federat income tax liability 17,020 8,928
Surplus notes payable 49,810 49,801
Obligation under repurchase agreement 71,04) 36,237
Separate account liabilities 2,095,843 1,809,543
Total liabiiities 6,790,614 6,254,497
LRUITY
Policyholders' equity 630,503 606,984
Accumulated other comprehensive income 383 2227
Total equity 650,890 609,211
Tolal iabilities and equity L.2441.994 5 _£3853.708

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemenis,
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THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands)

REVENUE

Insurance revenue:
Traditional insurance premiums
Universal life policy charges
Annuities

Net investment income

Net reatized gains on investments

Fee income

Other
Total revenue

BENEFITS AND EXPENSES
Benefits
Increase in'reserves for future policy benefits
Interest expense:
Universal life
Investment products
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance sxpense
Policyholders' dividends
Total benefits and expenses

Income before federal income tax expense
Federal income tax expense

Net Income

December 31,

2004 2003
$ 113,805 $ 117,285
61,657 63,291
32,336 31,854
242,634 252,776
7,510 29,151
23,969 24,885
8,384 9,208
450,695 528,450
114,654 112,058
993 4,542
63,438 712,754
71,603 77,885
168,721 198,169
11.629 13,740
431.038 479 548
59,657 483,802
— 16,136 _ __ 15031
$...43320 5. 32851

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY .AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation and Organization

The accompanying consolidated financiat statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (GAAP) and include the accounts of The Union Central Life Insurance Company (Union Ceatral)
and the following subsidiaries: Summit [nvestment Partners, Inc., wholly-owned, a registered ‘investment advisor; Carillon
Investments, Inc., wholly-owned, a registered broker-dealer that offers investment products and refated services Ihi'ough its
registered representatives; Payday of America, LLC, whelly-owned, a payroll company (as detailed bélow, Union Central sold
the assets of Payday of America, LLC in 2004); PRBA, Inc,, wholly-owned, the holding company of a pension administration
company; Summic Investment Partners, LLC, wholly-owned, a registered investment advisor and Unien Central Mortgage
Funding, Inc, a mortgage banking business. Fee based revenues of the consolidated subsidiaries was included in “Feé Income”
in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The Company also consolidated the following mutual funds due to its level of
ownership in these funds: the Summit Apex High Yield Bond Fund; the Summit Apex T8I Fund; the Summit Pinnacle Lehman
Aggregate Bond Index Portfolic and the Summit Apex EAFE International Index Fund. The consolidated company will be
referred to as “the Company™. The holdings of the consolidated Summit mutual funds are reported at fair value in “Other fixed
maturities” and “Other equity securities” in the Balance Sheets. Al significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. In addition, Summit Mutual Funds, Inc., a registered
investment company, is an investment affiliate of Union Central. : .

On January 1, 2004, the Company adopted Statement of Position 03-1 "Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for
Certain Nontraditional Long-Duration Contracts and for Separate Accounts”, The impact of adoption was immaterial,

The Company will adopt FASB Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” ("FIN 46") on January 1,
2005. The impact of adoption is not anticipated to be material. In 1996, the Company created a collateralized bond obligation
through the formation of a trust in which the Company is the primary beneficiary. The trust issued debt securities to lenders. As
of December 31, 2004, $63,668,000 of debt securities were outstanding. Upon the adoption of FIM 46, the Company
enticipates consolidation of the coilateralized bond obligation will be required. The maximum exposura to loss to the Company
&s a result of the activities of the collateralized bond obligation was $13,348,000 as of Decernber 3 1, 2004, which representad
the Company’s investment in the collateralized bond obligation.

Duting 2004, the Company sold Family Enterprise Institute, lnc., a wholly-owned subsidiary. A $1,600 after-tax gain was
recorded as a result of the sale.

During 2004, the Company completed the sale of Payday of America, LLC's assets to Paycer, Ing., in exchenge for common
stack of Paycor, Inc. The net after-tax impact from recording the sale was a reduction in net income of $3,467,000, The
operating activities of Payday of America, LLC had ceased as of December 3 1, 2004,

The Company provides a wide spectrum of financial products and related services for the benefit of individual, group and
pension policynolders. Such products and services include insurance to provide for financial nesds resulting from loss of life or
income and management of funds accumuzlated for preretirement and retirement needs.

The Company is licensed to do business in al! 50 states.

The preparation of financial statements reqguirss management 1o make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Such estimates and assumptions could chang: in the fumrs as more
information becomes known, which could impact the amounts reported and disclosed herein.

Investmznts
Fixed maturity and equity securities classified as available-for-sale are carried at fair value with net unrealized gains and losses

reported as other comprehensive income or loss. Other fixed maturity and equity securitiss represent the underlying assets of
consotidated mutual funds and are carried at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in net investment income.



THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
LIDA FINANC TATEMENTS — CONTIN
Other investments ave reported on the following bases:

e Mortgage loans on real estate are camried at their aggregate unpaid balance less unamortized discount or plus
unamortized premium and less an allowance for possible losses. Mortgage loans held for sale are mortgages the
Compeny intends to sell. Mortgage loans held for sale are stated at lower of aggregate cost or market. The
amount, by which cost exceeds market value, if any, is accounted for as a valuation allowance. Changes in the
valuation allowance are included in the determination of net income in the period of change.

Real estate acquired through foreclosurs is carried at the jower of cost or its net realizable vaiue.

Policy loans are reported at unpaid balances.

Cash and short-term investrments consist of cash-in-bank, cash-in-transit and commercial paper that has a maturity
date of 90 days or less from the date acquired.

» Receivable for securities represents amounts due from brokers resulting from securities that were sold at the end
of the year, but the proceeds have not been received at the balance sheet date.

o Payable for securities represents amounts due to brokers resulting from securities purchased at the end of the year
for which payment has not been mads at the balance sheet date.

The Company's camrying values of investments in limited partnerships are adjusted to reflect the GAAP eamings of the
investments underlying the limited partnership portfolios.

The fair values of fixed maturity and equity securities represent quoted market values from published sources or calculated
market vaiues using the "yield method” if no quoted market values are obtainable.

Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are recognized on a specific identification basis. Realized losses due to the
recognition of declines in the value of investments judged to be other-than-temporary are recognized on a specific identification
basis.

{nterest is not accrued on mortgage loans or bonds for which principal or interest payments are determined to be uncollectible,

The Company enters into repurchase agreements to economically hedge the interest rate risk associated with funded mortgage
loans held for sale that have not yet beer sold. Based on the terms of the repurchase agreements, the transactions are considered
collateralized loans in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities”., The Company had $7(,041,000 and $36,257,000 in
outstanding repurchase agreements for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. As the Company soid the
collateral that was piedged to the Company, a liability has been recognized in “Obligation under repurchase agreement” in the
Congolidated Balance Sheets to reflect the obligation to return the collateral, Also, the Company recognized a receivable
representing the cash it lent under the terms of the repurchase agreement, which totaled $71,730,000 and $36,457,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and was reflected in “Amounts receivable under repurchase agreement”
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Company has entered into reverse repurchase agreements whereby the Company sells securities and simultaneously agrees
to repurchase the same or substantially the same securities. Reverse repurchase agreements ar¢ accounted for as collateralized
borrowed money with the amount received for the securities recorded in “Other liabilities” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
At December 31, 2004, the Company had reverse repurchase agreements outstanding with a total carrying value of $24,555,000.
There were no repurchase agreements oulstanding as of December 31, 2003,

The Company purchases and sells call options to hedge insurance contracts whose credited interest is linked to returns in
Standard & Pooi's 500 Sicek Index (Index) based on a formula which applies participation rates to the retums in the Index.
Call options are contracts, which give the option purchaser the right, but not the obligation, to buy securities at a specified
price during a specified period. The Company holds call options which eapire monthly until Decsmber 1, 2005. The
Company paid and received initial fees (the option premium} 1o enter the option contracts. The purchased Index call options
give the Company the right to receive cash al settlement if the ¢losing Tndex value is above the strike price, while the soid
index call options require the Company o pay cash at settlement if the closing Index value is above the strike price. The
Company sells call options to effectively offset the proceeds the Company would receive on its purchased call options that
represent a return above the amount that would be credited to insurance contracts electing a capped return in the Index.



THE UNI!ON CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of nonperformance by counter-parties to the call options. To
minimize this risk, the Company only enters into private options comtracts with counterparties having Standard & Poor's
credit ratings of AA- or abave or listed contracts guaranteed by the Chicago Board Options Exchange. The credit exposure
is limited to the value of the call options of $5,083,000 at December 31, 2004,

The call options are carcied at their faic value, and are reflected in “Other invested assets™ in the Consolidated Balancs
Sheets. The liabilities for the hedged insurance contracts are adjusted based on the market value of the call options, and are
reflected in “Deposit funds” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The liabilities for the hedged insurance contracts wers
adjusied based on the returns in Standard & Poor’s 500 Steck inder, and were reflected in “Deposit funds™ in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The notional amount of the call options at Decamber 31, 2004 and 2003 was $50,574,000 and
$31,128,000, respectively.

In 2004 and 2003, the Company entered into interest rate swap. agreements with a notional value of $35,000,000 and
5125,000,000, respectively, with Morgan Stanley, Bank One and Dewsche Bank. The purpose of the interest rate swap
agreements was to hedge interest rate risk associated with specifically identified bonds within the Company's investment
portfolio. The interest rate swap agreements were categorized as and met the criteria of effective fair value hedges. Under
the interest rate swap agreements, the Company paid a fixed rate and received a floating intersst rate. The objective of the
interest rate swaps was 1o offset any change in value of the bonds due to macket interest rate fluctuations. The Company is
exposed to credit-related losses in the event of nonperformance by the coumcer-parties o the interast rare swaps. To
minimize this cisk, the Company only enters into privale contracts with counterparties having Standard & Poor's credit
ratings of AA- or above or listed contracts guaranteed by the Chicago Board Options Exchange. The credit exposure is
limited to the value of the interest rate swaps of $317,000 at December 31, 2003. The Company is required to make semi-
annual interest payments based on the fixed rate inherent in the interest rate swaps. Settlement of gain or loss under the
interest rate swaps occurs upon termination. The financing cost of the interest rate swaps excluded from the assessment of
hedge effectivencss totaled $307,000 and $592,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively, and was recorded in “Net investment
income” in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The change in value of the interest rate swaps was accounted for consistently with the hedged bonds. During 2C04 and 2003,
$75,000,000 and $85,000,000, respectively, of the notional value of the- interest rate swap agreements was.terminated,
leaving no notional value as of December 31, 2004. In 2004 and 2003, respectively, a pre-tax gain of $262,000 and
$603,000 was realized upon the terminations of the agreements and was recorded in “Net investment income” in the
Consotidared Staterments of Income. ‘

In 2004 and 2C03, the Company entered into one-month swap agreements with Deutsche Bank and Morgan Stanley to hedge
the change in value of a portion of its investments in certain Summit Mutal Fund, Inc. mutual funds, (See Nite 2 for
further detail of the Company’s investments in these funds.) The notional amount of the swap agreements is set based on the
amount of the Company's investments in the mutial funds that it determines to hedge. Under the swap agreements, the
Company pays or receives the total return of the associated indexes during the term of the swap agreements, and receives
interest income on the notional amount of the swap agreements that approximates prevailing short-term rates. The Company
records the change in value of its swap agreements and investments in the unconsolidated hedged Summit mutuai fuds in
earnings. The swap agreements were designated and qualified as fair value hedges,

For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the swap agreements offset unrealized gains of $301,000 and 50,
respectively, and pre-tax realized gains of $440,0C0 and $2,138,000, respectively, that the Company incurred in the hedged
mutal funds. Swap agreéricnts with a notionial value of 34,200,000 and 30 were outstanding as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

In 2004, the Company entered into intersst rate swap agreements with a notional value of $73,000,000 at December 31,
2004, with Morgan Stanley and Bank One. The swap agreements are carried at their fair value and are reflected in “Other
invested assets” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The purpose of the interest rate swap agreements was to hedge interest
rate risk associated with a pool of commercial morigage loans held for sale, Under the interest rate swap agreements, the
Company paid a fixed rate and received a floating interest rate. The objective of the interest rate swaps is to offset any
change in value due to market interest rate fluctuations of ihe pool of commercial mortgage loans prior to the sale. The loss
in fair value of the swap agreements of $1,153,000 and financing costs of $737,000 was recorded in *Net investment
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income” in the Consolidated Siatements of Income. The interest rate swap agreements were not designated as hedging
instruments.

The Company enters into loan commitments in association with originating commarcial mortgage loans that are held for sale,
The loan commitments are accounted for as derivative instruments. The loan comrmitments are marked to fair vaiue based on
esrimates of fluctuations in market interest rates for comparable mortgage loans from loan commitment dates. The loan
commitments are typically hedged with repurchase agreements.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

The costs of acquiring new business, principally commissions, certain expenses of the policy issuc and underwriting
department and certain variable agency cxpenses have been deferred. Deferrad policy acquisition costs are amortized
congistent with the methods described in "Policy Liabilities, Ravenues, Benefits and Expenses", Amortization of deferred
policy acquisition costs totaled $36,351,060 and $69,019,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively,
and were included in *Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expense” in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Deferred
policy acquisition costs are adjusted to reflect the impact of unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities,
Adjustments decreasing deferred policy acquisition costs related to unrealized gains and losses totaled $36,783,000 and
$40,765,000 at 2004 and 2003, respectively.

In 2004 and 2003, the Company tevised its estimates of future gross profits, and as a result amortization of deferred policy
acquisition costs included in "Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expense” in the Consolidated Statements of Income
increased (decreased) ($3,969,000) and $2,563,000 fot the years ended 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is valued at historical cost fess accumulated depreciation in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. It
congists primartly of Union Central's home office, fumiture and fixtures and electronic data processing equipment.

Depreciation is computed with the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, not to exceed 10
yoars for office fumiture and 3 years for electronic data processing equipment. Depraciation is computed for leasehold
improvements with the straight-line method over the shorter of the remaining lease term or usefut fife of the improvements.

Capitalization of Software Costs

Software development costs of $3,891,000 and $3,352,000 were capitalized in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Amartization
expense of 4,204,000 and §5,283,000, respectively, was recorded to “Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expense” in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in 2004 and 2003. Depreciation is computed with the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the software, not to exceed 5 years.

Deposit Funds

The liability for deposit funds is generally established at the policyholders' accumnulated cash valyes plus amouats provided for
guaranteed interest,

Policy Claim Reserves

Policy claim reserves reprasent the astimated ultimate net cost of all izported and unreported claims incutred. In addition, a
claim adjustment expense reserve is held to account for the expenses associated with administering these claims. The reserves
for unpaid claims are estimated using individual case basis valuations and statistical analyses. The claim adjustment expense
reserve is estimated using statistical analyses. These estimates ars subject to the effects of trends in claim severity and
frequency. Although some variability is inherent in such estimates, management believes that the reserves for claims and claim
related expenses are adequatz. The estimates are reviewed and adjusted as experience develops or new information becomes
known and such adjustments are included in current opecations.



THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TQO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

Dividends to Policyholders

The Company's dividend liability is the amount estimated to have accrued to policyholders' as of each year-end. [nsuranca in
force receiving dividends accounted for 6.19% and 5.63% of total insurance in force at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

Separate Accounts

Separate account assets and liabilities reported in the accompanying financial statements (excluding seed money provided by the
Company) represent funds that are separately administered for the individual annuity, group annuity and variable universal life
lines of business, and for which the contract holders rather than the Company bear the investment risk. Separate account
contract holders have no claim against the assets of the general account of the Company. Separate account investments are
carried at market value. Investment income and gains and losses from these accounts accrue directly to contract halders and are
not inctuded in the accompanying financial statements. Union Central derives certain fees for maintaining and managing the
separate accounts, but bears no investrment risk on these assets, except to the extent that it participates in a particular separate
account. On assets transferred to the separate accounts, the Company recognized interest income of $37,846,000 and
$22,455,000 and investment gains of $172,762,000 and $327,660,000 for the years ending December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The interest income and investment gains were offset by the increase in separate account liabilities within the
same line item in the Consolidated Statéments of Income.

The Company issues variable annuity contracts through the separate accounts whers the Company contractually guarantees to
the contract holder total deposits made to the contract less any partial withdrawals. This guarantee only includes benefits that
are payable in the event of death. The total separate account assets and liabilities for policies with a minimum guaranteed death
benefit were $365,042,000 and $335,182,000 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and were composed of mutual
funds. Death claims incurred and paid as a result of the minimum guaranteed death benefit totaled $146,000 and $325,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company had $15,649,000 of net amount at risk involving the
minimam guaranteed death benefit on variable annuities as of December 31, 2004. The weighted average attained age for
contract holders with a minimum guaranteed death benefit was 57 years old as of Decemnber 31, 2004,

Policy Liabilities, Revenues, Benefits and Expenses
Traditional Insurance Products

Traditional insurance products include those products with fixed and guaranieed premiums and benefits and consist primarily of
whole life insurance policies, term insurance policies and disability income policies. Premiums for traditional products are
recognized as revenue when due,

The liability for future policy benefits for participating traditional life is computed using a net level premium method and the
guaranteed mortality and dividend fund interest. The mortality and interest assumptions are equivalent to statutory assumptions.
The liabilities for future policy benefits and expenses for nonparticipating traditional life policies and disability income policies
are generally computed using a net level premium method and assumptions for investment yields, morbidity, and withdrawals
based principaily on experience projected at the time of policy issue, with provision for possible adverse deviations. Interest
assurnptions for participating traditional life reserves for all policies ranged from 2.3% to 6.0% for the years ended 2004 and
2003.

The costs of acquiring new traditional business, principally commissicns, certain policy issuc and underwriting expenses (such
as medical examination and inspection report fees) and certain agency expenses, all of which vary with and are primarily related
10 the production of new and renewal business, are deferred to the extent that such costs are deemed recoverable through future
gross przmiums. Such non-participating deferred acquisition costs are amortized over the anticipated premium paying period of
the rzlated policies, generally not to exceed the premium paying lifetime of the policies using assumptions consistent with those
used to develop policy benefit reserves. For participating life insurance products, deferred policy acquisition costs arz
amortized in proportion 1o estimated gross margins of the related policies. Gross marging are determined for each issue year
and are equal to premiums plus investment income less death claims, surrender benefits, administrative costs, policyholder
dividends, and the increase in reserves for future policy benefits. The future investment yields are assumed to range from 5.7%

10
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to 8.2% and from 6.1% to 8.3% for the years ended 2004 and 2003, respectively, Changes in dividend payouts are assumed
with changes in yields.

jversal Li d Other Intersst Sensitiv dugt:

Interest sensitive products include universal life, single premium whele life and annuity products. They ars distinguished by the
existence of a separately definabie fund that is credited with interest and from which any policy charges are taken. Revenues for
these products consist of policy charges for the cost of insurance, policy administration charges, and surrender charges that have
been assessad against policyholder account balances during the period. '

Benefit reserves for universal life and other interest sensitive products are computed in accordance with the retrospective
deposit method and represent policy account balances before applicable surrender charges. Policy benefits that are charged to
expense inciude benefit claims incurred in the period in excess of related policy account balances and interest credited 1o
account balances. Interest crediring rates ranged from 2.8% to 7.0% and from 4.5% to 6.5% for the years ended 2004 and 2003,
respectively, . -

The cost of acquiring universal life and other interest sensitive products, principally commissions, certain policy issue and
underwriting expenses (such as medical examination and inspection report fees) and certain agency expenses, all of which vary
with and are primarily related to the production of new and renewal business, are deferred to the extent that such costs are
deemed recoverable through future estimated gross profits. Acquisition costs for universal life and other interest sensitive
products arc amostized over the life of the policics in.proportion to the present value of expected gross profits from surrender
charges and investment, mortality and expense marging. The amortization is adjusted retrospectively when estimates of current
or future gross profits {including the impact of investment gains and losses) to be realized from a group of products are revised.

Amounts assessed policyholders that represent revenue for services to be provided in future periods are reported as uneamed
revenue and recognized in income over the life of the policies, using the same assumptions and factors as are used to amortize
deferred acquisition costs. These charges consist of policy fees and premium loads that are larger in the initial policy years than
they are in the later policy years. Amortization of uncarmed revenue totaled $15,341,000 and $10,558,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and was included in "Universal life policy chargss” in the Consolidated Statements
of Income.

[n 2004 and 2003, the Company revised its estimates of future gross profits, and as a result amortization of unearned revenue
included in "Universal life policy charges" in the Consolidated Statements of Income was increased by §3,396,000 and
83,161,000 for the years anded 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Siroup Products

Group products censist primarily of group life insurance, and group long and short term disability income products. Premiums
for group insurance products are recognized as revenue when due,

The labilities for future policy benefits and expenses for group life and disability income products are computed using statutory
methods and assumptions, which approximate net level premium reserves using assumaptions for investment yields, mortality,
and withdrawals based principally on company experience projected at the time of policy issus, with provisions for possible
adverss deviations. Interest assumptions are based on assumed invesiment yields that ranged from 6.5% to 8.3% and 7.5% to
8.3% for the years ended 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Pepsion Products

Pension products include deferved annuities and payout annuities, Revenues for the deferred annuity products consist of
investment iccome on policy funds, mortality and expense charges, contract adminiatration fees, and surcender charges that have
been assessed against policyholder account balances. Expenses for deferred annuity products include the interest credited on
policy funds and expenses incurred in the administration and maintenanes of the coniracts. For payout annuities, premiums are
recognized as revenue when dus while expenses exclude the interest credited on policy funds.
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Benefit resceves for the deferred anouity contracts represent the poticy account balances before applicable surrender charges.
Interest assumptions on payout annuities arc based on assumed investment yields that ranged from 2.0% to 8.0% for the years
ended 2004 and 2003.

Comemissions and other rslated costs of acquiring annuity contracts that vary with and are primatily related to the production of
new and renewal business are deferred to the extent that such costs are deemed recoverable through future estimated gross
profits. Acquisition costs are amortized over the life of the contracts in direct proportion to the present value of expected gross
profits from surrender charges and investment and expense margins. The amortization is adjusted retrospectively when
estimates of current or future gross profits (including the impact of investment gains or losses) to be realized on a group of
contracts are revised.

1
5
=%

Reinsurance

Reinsurance premiums and claims are accounted for on bases consistent with those used in accounting for the original policies
issued and the terms of the reinsurance contracts. Premiums and benefits are teported net of reinsured amounts.

Federal Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method for financial accounting and reporting of income taxes.
Under this method, deferred income taxes are recognized for the.tax consequences of "temporary differences” by applying the

applicable tax rate to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets and
liabilities.

Reclassifications

Previously reported amounts for 2003 have in some instances been reclassified to conforin to the 2004 presentation.
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NOTE 2 - INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale securitisg are summarized as follows:

Decembe 4;

U.S. treasury securities and obligations
of U.S, government corporations
and agencies

Corporate securities and other

Mortgage-backed securities,
collateralized mortgage obligations and
other structured securities
Subtotal

Equity securities
Total

ecemb 2003
U.S. treasury securities and obligations
of U.S. government corporations
and agencies
Corporate securities and other
Mortgage-backed securities,
collateralized martgage obligations and
other structured securities
Subtotal

Equity securities
Total

JAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

Cost or Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Cains Losses Valug
(in thousands)
5 34,931 $ 171 § (154 5 34,948
2,386,810 86,339 (5,939) 2,467,210
943,542 10,864 (1,792) 946,614
3,365,283 97,374 {13,385) 3,448,772
16.681 856 [(-2)] 17,475
$3,381.564 598,230 $ _(13.47 $3.466.247
Cost or Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Yalug
(in thousands)
$ 40,314 3 354 $ -- $ 40,668
2,045,679 97,063 (11,937) 2,130,305
1279156 16,882 (18.579) _1.277.439
3,365,149 114,295 (30,516) 3,448,932
39,810 3,616 (349} 63,077
53,424,959 5 117,915 3...(30,863) 33513009

Fixed maturity available-for-sale securities, at December 31, 2004, ars summarized by stated maturity as follows:

Due in one year or less

Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years

Due after ten years
Subtotal

Mortgage-backed securities

Other securities with multiple repayment dates

Total

Amortized Fair
105t Yalue
(in thousands)
$ 44,604 $ 45380

332,600 346,360
1,151,657 1,192,823
— 727,189 135,260
2,256,050 2,329,823
943,601 946,679
165.632 172270
£3.193.243 33448772
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Significant components of the unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities included in "Accumuiated other comprehensive
income" in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Shects are as follows:

Gross unrealized gain on available-
for-sale securities
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs
Deferred tax liability
Net unrealized gain on available-
for-sale securities

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003

(in thousands)

$ 84,283 $ 87,050
(36,783) (40,765)
(16.62%) (16.199)

$--0.873 1..20.086

A summary of available-for-sale sccuritics with unrcalized losses along with the related fair value, aggregated by the length
of time that investments have been in a continuous loss position, is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2004

fL.ess than Twelve Months
Twelve Months or Mors Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Uareatized
Value Losses Yalue Losses Value Losses
Fixed maturity securities § 932,256 3 (10,548) $ 208,180 $ (3,337 51,140,436 3 {13,385
Equity securities 33 {15 1.860 (47} 1,893 (62)
Total £.232.289 § (10,560 £.210.040  5__(3.334) SL142.33% 2 (13947
December 31, 2003
Less than Twelve Months
Twelve Months or More Total
Cross Gross .Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses VYaiue Losges Value L.osses
Fixed maturity securitics $ 905114 § (22451 § 107960 3 (8,065) 51,013,074 $§ (30,518)
Equity securities 74 (4) 347 (343%) 471 (349N
Total 2205088  R.(2241D 5.08307 i..3.4l00 SLOI3498  5_(30.365)

The unrealized losses in both 2004 and 2003 reported above were primarily caused by the effect of the interest rate environment
on certain securities with stated interest rates currently below market rates, and as such, are temporary in nature. Certain
securities also experienced declines in fair value that were due in part to credit-related considerations. Upon review of the
economic circumstances underlying these securities, the Company determined that such declines were temporary in nature.
Therefore, the Company does not believe the unrealized losses on available-for-sale investments represent an other-than-
temporary impairment as of December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003.

See MNote 9 for discussion of the methods and assumptions used by the Comgpany in estimating the fair values of avaitable-for-

sale securities.
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Investments in bonds on deposit with state insurance departments (0 satisfy regulatory requirements are carried at fair value
and totaled §3,325,000 and $3,498,000, at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, .

Proceeds, gross realized gains, and gross realized losses from the sales and maturities of available-for-sale securities follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 . 2003

(in thousands)

Proceeds 52,415,601 $3,352,138
Gross realized gains 35,895 69,271
Gross realized losses 16,064 28,000

In 2004, the Company completed the sale of mortgage-backed securities with a book value of $285,000,000 to a third party in
conjunction with a sezuritization transaction anticipated to occur in 2005,

A summary of the characteristics of the Company’'s mortgage portfolio follows:

ecember-31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Percent of Percent of
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
Amoyunt Amgunt Amount mount
. (in thousands)
Region
MNew England and Mid-Atlantic 3 42272 6.8% $ 31,354 5.9%
South Atlantic 134,944 21.83 97,623 18.5
Marth Centrat 114,050 18.4 102,113 19.4
South Central 56,338 9.2 46,756 8.9
Mountain 128,959 20.8 116,578 22.1
Pacific 142,709 23.0 133,227 252
Total $. 619,312 . 100.0% $_527.631 A00.0%
Apartment and residential $ 357112 5.8% § 35,805 6.8%
Warchouses and industrial 135,800 21.9 110,028 20.8
Retail and shopping center 209,921 339 178,264 33.3
Office 166,510 26.9 149,828 284
Other 11,308 113 — 33,728 102
Total $.-619.212 ~-1000% 5. 527,651 .~.100.0%

in 2002, the Company sold commercial mortgage loans with a book value of $186,686,000 1o Morgan Stanley. Relative to
the sale, the Company has agreed to repurchase mortgage loans which ars secured by properties that do not have terrorism
insurance in place, in the event the properties are subjected to a terrorist attack resulting in a loss. As of December 31,
2004, the maximum potential exposurs to the Company is $3,400,000. It is management's opinion that the probability of
loss related to this commitment is rerote due ta the nature and location of the properties.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, an interest-only strip asset of 31,387,000 and $2,085,000 was rscorded in
"Other invested assets” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. During 2004, the Company recognized a pre-tax realized loss of
3303,000 recorded in "Net realized gains (logses) on investments” in the Consolidated Statements of Incorne and a reduction
of the inerest-only strip asset of $303,0C0 due o the prepayment of mortgage loans previously sold to third parties. The
realized loss and reduction of the Interest-only strip asset represented the present value of compensation related 10 morigage
loans previously sold to third parties that the Company would have received over the life of the mortgage loans.
Amortization expense of $393,000 and $518,000 was recorded in *Net investment income” in the Consolidated Statements of
Income for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively,
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In 2004 the Company recorded a pre-tax realized loss of 5335,000 representing the difference between net collateral value
and book value on two mortgage loans held for investment with a book value of $1,637,000. The Company recognized and
collected interest totaling $161,000 during 2004 on the two mortgage loans.

The Company has a $100 million warehouse finance facility from & bank, This facility bears interest at prime (5.25% at
December 31, 2004 and 4.00% at December 31, 2003} or LIBOR (2.56% at December 31, 2004 and 1.12% at December 31,
2003) plus 1.00%. $84,565,000 and $18,970,000 was autstanding under shis facility at December 31, 2004 and December 31,
2003, respectivety, and was recorded in “Other liabilities” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Outstanding borrowings on the
Company’s warehouse finance facilities are collateralized by commercial mortgage loans held for sale. Upon the sale of these
loans the borrowings under the facility are repaid.

Real estate consists of investment real estate under lease and foreclosed real estate. The investment real estate under lease is
depreciated over 40 years. The cost of the property totaled $1,755,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and accumulated
depreciation totaied $1,408,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, The book value of foreclosed real estate was $9,709,000 and
§10,926,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. '

In 2000, the Company commenced the development of a 123-acre business park (the Park), which included the installation of
infrastructure and a roadway. To fund' the cost of the infrastructure and roadway, the municipality in which the Park is
located issued $2,800,000 of municipal bonds. The municipal bonds will be paid off through tax increment financing (TIF).
TIF is an economic development tool that allows a local government 1o use Increases in real property tax revenues to finance
public infrastructure improvements. Tius, the development of the Park will result in increased real property tax revenues,
which will be directed to pay off the municipal bonds. If increases in real propecty tax revenucs from the Park are not
sufficient to service the municipal bonds, the Company must fund any shortage. The maximum estimated potential exposure
1o the Company is $2,800,000. Based upon current projections, the Company anticipates the increased property tax revenues
will be sufficient to fully service the municipal bonds.

NOTE 3 - REINSURANCE

In the ordinary course of business, the Company assumes and cedes reinsurance with other insurers and reinsurers. These
arrangements provide greater diversification of business and limit the maximum net ioss potential on large or hazardous risks.
Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders. Reinsurance ceded is recorded in
"Other assets” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company remains liable te its policyholders for the portion reinsured to
the extent that any reinsurer does not meet its obligations for reinsurance ceded ta it under the reinsurance agreements. Failure
of reinsurers 1o honor their obligations could result in losses to the Company; consequently, allowances would be gstablished for
amounts deemed or estimated to be uncollectible. To minimize its exposure to sigaificant losses from reinsurance insolvencies,
the Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar
geographic regions, activities, or economic characteristics of the reinsurers. No losses are anticipated, and, based on
management's evaluation; there are no concentrations of credit risk at December 31, 2004 and 2003. The Cornpany retains the
risk for varying amounts of individual or group insurance written up to a maximurm of $1,000,000 on any one life or $4,000 per
month disability risk and rsinsures the balance.
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Reinsurance transactions with other insurance companies for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized as
follows:

December 31, 2004
Direct Assumed (Ceded) Net
(in thousands)
Life insurance in force $ 34864605 § 125463  §20.855.818) 47
Premiums and other - £14134253
considerations:
Traditional insurance premiums

and universal life $ 3957713 % 5,365  § (225,676) $ 175462
Annuity — 32336 - - _32.336
Total A d2B109 B 5365 § (225676) & 207798
December 31, 20023
Direct Assumed {Ceded) Net
(in thousands)
Life insurance in force S3LI33542 B 41861 §UTGEISR4T  §13.859.356
Premiums and other
considerations:
Traditional insurance premiums
and universal life 3 3473834 3 5838 § (173,146) $ 130576
Annuity .. J31.854 —31.854

Total .. 379.688 L—..}Jﬂg L.IJZLL“.EI 212430

Benefits paid or provided were reduced by $16,836,000 and $21,521,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, for
estimated recoveries under reinsurance treaties,

The Company nor any of its related parties control, either directly or indirectly, any reinsurers jo which the Company conducts
business. No policies issued by the Company have been reinsured with a foreign company, which is controlled, either directly
or indirectly, by a party not primarily engaged in the business of insurance. The Company has not entered into any reinsurance
agreements in which the reinsurer may unilaterally cancel any reinsurance for reasons other than honpayment of premiums or
other similar credits,
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NOTES TO COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED
NOTE 4 - FEDERAL INCOME TAX

Deferred income taxos reflect the net tax effects of temporary differsnces between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company's
deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follows: .

December 31,
2004 2003

(in thousands)

Deferred tax liabilities:

Deferred policy acquisition costs $ 142452 $ 141,452
Unrealized gains — FAS 115 16,625 16,119
Capitalization of software 4,581 5,245
Other 662 31t

Total deferred tax liabilities 164320 163,127

Deferred tax assets:

Policyholders' dividends 2,864 1,611
Future policy benefits 66,741 73,501
Basis differences on investments 17,823 20,405
Premium - based DAC adjustment 35,207 37,308
Retirement plan accruals 20,289 17,474
Investment income differences 358 787
Other 4018 3,113

Total deferred tax assets 147,300 154,199

Net deferred tax liabilities 517020 380923

Significant components of the provision for income tax expense atiributable ta continuing operations are 2s follows:

2 nded December 31

2004 2003
(in thousands)

Current 7.3 $ 10,350
Deferred 2002 — 370
Total $...16,136 $..16,051

Federal income tax expense is calculated based on-applying the statutory corporate tax rate to taxable income, and adjusting this
amount for permanent differences between deducticns allowed for financial statement purposes versus federal incoms tax
purposes. Significant differences are due to adjustments to prior years' tax liabilities and the release of tax contingency
reserves.

NOTE § - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

L.euses

The Company leases office space for various field agency offices with lease terms that vary in duration from 1 to 15 years.
Some of these leases include escalation clauses that vary with levels of operating expense. Rental expease under these operating
_leases totaled 53,508,000 and $3,835,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Cotnpany leased equipment through a series of
arrangements in 2004 and 2003, Rental expense under these agresments totaled $158,000 and $121,000 in 2004 and 2003,
respectively.
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At December 31, 2004, the future minimum lease payments for 2!l noncancelable operating leases are as follows:

Year Amount
(in thousands)
2005 S 2,860
2006 2,212
2007 1,013
2008 764
2009 526
Afier 2009 1.808
Total } 9,183

Other Commitments

At December 31, 2004, the Company had outstanding agreements to fund mortgages total;ng $£38,065,000 in early 2005. In
addition, the Company has committed to invest $11,241,000 in equity-type limited partnerships during the years 2005 to 2011,
These mansactions are in the normal course of business for the Company.

Litigation

In the normal course of business, the Company is party to various claims and litigation primarily arising from claims made under
insurance policies and contracts. Those actions are considered by the Company in estimating the policy and contract liabilities,
The Company's management believes that the resolution of those actions will not have a material adverse effect on ithe
Company's financial position or results of operations.

Guaranty Fand Assessments

The economy and other factors have caused an increase in the number of insurance companies that are under regulatory
supervision. This circumstance is sxpected to result In an increase in assessments by slate guaranty funds, or voluntary
payments by solvent insurance companies, to fund policyholder losses or liabilities of insurance companies that become
insolvent. These assessments may, in certain instances, be offset against future premium taxes. For 2004 and 2003, the charge
to operations related to these assessments was not significant. The estimated liability of $796,000 and $860,000 at December
31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, was based on data provided by the National Organization of Life and Health Insurance
Guaranty Associations and was included in "Cther liabilities" in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

NOTE 6 - STATUTDRY SURPLUS AS REPORTED TO REGULATORY AUTHORITIES

Union Central files statutory-basis financial statements with regulatory authorities. Union Central's statutory-basis financial
statements are prepared in conformity with accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the Department of Insurance of
Ohio, Union Central's state of domicile. Effective January t, 2001, the State of Ohio required that insurance companies
domiciled in the State of Ohio prapare their statutory basis financial statements in accordance with the NAIC Accounting
Practices and Procedurss Manual subject to any deviations prescribed or permitted by the State of Ohio insurance
commissioner. Surplus as reflected in the statutory-basis financial statements was as follows:

Year ended Pecember 31

—2004 2003
(in thousands)
Capital and surplus £.337.730 241308
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THE UNION CENTRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
NOTE 7- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company has pension plans covering substantially all of its employees. Pension expense and funding was determined
according to regulations as specified by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and subsequent
amendments. Benefits are based on the average of the employee's compensation over their career.

In addition to pension benefits, the Company provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for its eligible retired
employees (“Other Postretirement Benefits™). Substantially all of the Company's employess may become eligible for these
benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Company.

The measurcment date for the Company’s pension benefits was December 31. The measurement date for Other
Postretitement Benefits was October 1, A summary of the assets, obligations and assumptions are as follows:

Other

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
2004 2003 2004 2003
(in thousands)
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 140,852 3 128666 % 25,596 3 23,353
Projected benefit obligation : $ 143,022 § 130803 § - 8 --
Plan assets at [zir value $ 109,540 $ 113,692 § 10,278 3 8,131
Funded status $ (33,483 $ (16911) § (15318 §  (15,224)
Accrued liabilities 5 31,312 5 14975 5 14,546  § 15,243
Employer contributions $ - & 4,855 & 2,575 & 2,4C0
Plan participants’ contributions ] - 5 - 3 351 8 242
Benefits and administrative expenses paid 3 6,014 % 6354 § 2281 $ 1,927
Componeunts of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost 5 2,597 8§ 3711 § 845 $ 731
Interest cost 8,181 7,562 1,464 1,336
Expected remurn on plan assets (B,746) (8,075) {709) (5CH)
Transition obligation/(asset) amortization (41} 410 - .-
Amount of recognized (gains)/losses 3,529 4,734 - -
Amount of prior service cost recognized (1,050 {1.070) 178 1,142
Total net periodic benefit cost $ 5470 §&....7221 §.__.LJ7718 ... 2705
Other
Pension Postretirement
Benefits Denefits
2004 2003 2008 2002
Weighted average assumptions:
Discount tate 6.00% 6.50% 6.00% 6.50%
Expected compensation increase 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Expected return on plan assets 3.50% 8.50% 8.50% 3.50%
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Other
Pension : Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
Expected Benefit Payments: (in thousandy)

2005 3 7.567 § L1562
2006 7,898 1,610
2007 2,376 1,663
2008 8,984 1,716
2609 9,7C0 1,765
2010 - 2014 61,718 10,202

Also, $2,631,000 and $3,071,000 (net of tax) was charged directly to policyholders' equity in 2004 and 2003, respectively, as a
resuit of recognizing an additional minimum pension liability adjustment under Staternent of Financial Accounting Standard Mo,
87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions”, and was included in "Minimum pension liability adjustment” in the Consolidated
Statemnents of Equity.

Plan assets of the pension and other postretirement benefit plans are composed of affiliated and unaffiliated mumal funds and
a portfolio of actively managed equity securities. As of their respective measurement dates in 2004 and 2003, $89,955,000
and $93,060,000 was invested in affiliated mutual funds.

The expected long-term rate of return for the Company’s benefit plans is currently 8.5%. In developing this assumption, the
Company pericdically monitors investment yields on the assets in the plans to determine if the current expected rate of return
is reasonable given the current investment performance. Historical and projected returns are also reviewed for
appropriateness of the selected assumption. The Company believes its assumption of future returns is reasonable,

The primary investment objectives of the Company’s benefit plans is to provide sufficient assets and liquidity to meet the
distribution requirements of the Plans through capital appreciation of the Plans’ assets and levelized funding. To accomplish
this objective, Pension Plan assets are invested in affiliated and unaffiliated murual funds and assets of the Other
Postretirement Benefit Plans are invested in a diversified pool of equity securities, affiliated mutual funds and cash. The
Company's investment strategy for the Pension Plan i3 generally a iarget investment mix of 60% equities and 40% bonds.
The Company's invesiment strategy for Other Postretirement Benefit Plaps is a target investment allocation consisting
primarily of equities with the remainder in bonds and casii. The actual allocation of plan assets by investment category for
the year ending December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

Other
Pension Postretirement
Benefits B
2004 2003 2004 2003
Equity securities:
Domestic equities 52.3% 51.6% 82.6% 37.0%
Foreign equities 9.6 9.2 9.4 3.3
Bonds 381 39.2 5.8 -
Cash _— - 2.2 9.2
Totl D00 % w1000 % - J00.0% -L000%

The Company’s current funding strategy for its benefit plans is to fund an arooumt at least equal o the minimum required
funding as determined under. ERISA with consideration .of. factors. such as. the. minimum pension lability requirsment. for
Pension Benefits and the maximum tax deductible amounts for both Pension Benefits and Other Postretirement Benefits. The
ultimate amount of the Company’s funding may be adjusted based on changes in the fair value of plan assets and changes in
related assumptions. For the year ending December 31, 2004, the Company does not expect any requirsd coniributions
under ERISA for the Pension Pians and will fund Other Postretirement Benefits Plans to mest their liquidity needs.
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The health care cost trend rate was 12.1% graded to 5.0% over 10 years for 2004. The health care cost trend ra
assumption has an iosignificant effect on the postretirement benefit obligation, the lnterast cost and estimated eligibility cos
components of the net periodic postretirement benefit cost as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004.

The Company did not adjust its projection of the liability for Other Postretirement Benefits to consider

the impact of the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 as the impact wag immate

tial.

The Company has two contributory savings plans for home office employees and ageats meeting certain service requirements
which qualify under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. These plans allow eligible employees to co
certain prescribed limits of their pre-tax compensation. The Company will match 50% of the fi
contributions for the Employees Savings Plan and the Agents Savings Plan. The Company's matchin 1
plans were $1,846,000 and $1,820,000 for 2004 and 2003, respectively. The value of the plans' assets wers $95,318,000 and
$83,287,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The assets are held in the deposi

accounts of 2 group annuity policy. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, $31,960,000 and $28,994,
in affiliated mutual funds.

ntribute up to
rst 6% of participants’

NGTE 8 - FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial
instruments:

-t inv : The carrying amounts reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for these instruments
approximate their fair values.

Investment securities; Fair values for bonds are based on quoted marke: prices, where available. If quoted market prices
are not available, fair values are estimated using values obtained from independent securities broker dealers or quoted
market prices of comparable instruments. The fair values of common stock in Company sponsored mutual funds are based
on quoted market prices and are recognized in "Equity securities available-for-sale at fair value”, “Other fixed maturities™
and “Other equity securities” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The fair values for limited partnerships are based on the
quoted markst prices of the investments underlying the limited partnership portfolios.

Mortgage loans: The fair values for commercial mortgages held for investment in good standing are estimated using
discounted cash flow analysis using interest rates curcently being offered for similar loans to borrowers with similar credit
ratings in comparison with actual interest rates and maturity dates. Fair values for mortgages held for investment with
potentia! loan losses are based on discounted cash flow analysis of the underlying properties.

The estimate of fair values for commercial mortgage leans held for sale is based on current pricing of whois loan
transactions that a purchaser unrelated to the seller would demand for a stmilar loan.

Warehouse Fipance Facility; The warehouse finance facility is offered with interest at markst interest rates, and therefore,
the carrying value of the warehouse finance facility is a reasonable estimation of fair value. ‘

Policy loans: Management is unabie to ascertain the estimated kife of the policy loan portfolio. Due to the excessive costs
that would be incurred to determine this ‘information, management considers the estimation of its fair value to be
impracticable, The naturz of a policy loan insures that the outstanding loan balance will be fuily recoverable because the
balanee owed to the Compary is always equal to or lowsr than the cash value of the insurance policy owed to the
policyholder. Policy loans are stated at their aggregate unpaid balance in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Investment contracts: Fair values for the Company's iiabilities under investment-type insurance contacts are estimated
using discounted cash flow calculations, based on interest rates currently being offzred for simitar contracts with maturities
consistent with those remaining for the contracts being valued,

Surplys notes; Fair value for the Company’s surplus netes liability was estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation
based on current inferest rates consistent with the maturity of the surplus notes,
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Repurchase Agreements: The fair value of repurchase agreements are based on quoted market prices.

In t Rate Swal reements: The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount the Company would receive
or pay to terminate the agreements based on current market interest rates.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's mortgage loans are as follows:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

(in thousands)

Mortgage loans § 612312 § 836724 $£.527631 E.STL332

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s liabilities for investment-type insurance contracts are as follows:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Yalue Amount Value
(in thousands)
Diract access $ 61,072 $ 61,072 $ 63,208 $ 63,208
Traditional annuities 35,157 38,324 34,896 38,838
Supplementary contracts 9,855 9,907 10,919 11,073
GPA not involving life 539 584 719 785
Dividend accumulations 5,830 5,830 5,846 5,846
Premium deposit funds 662 662 664 664
Total $.11301s S 6379 £ 116232  £..20414
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's tiability for surplus notes is as follows:
December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Yajue

{in thousands)

Surplus notes I 49810 § 36034 § 40801 535037

The Company's other insurance contracts are excluded from disclosure requirements, However, the fair values of liabilities
under all insurance contracts are raken into consideration in the Company's overall management of interest rate risk, which
minimizes exposure to changing intergst rates through the matching of investment maturities with amounts due under insurance
centracts. Additional data with respect to the carrying value and fair value of the Company's investments is disclosed in Motz Z.
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NOTE 9 - LIABILITY FOR UNPAID CLAIMS AND CLAIM ADJUSTMENT EXPENSZS

Activity in the liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expense is summarized as follows: -

December 31,
2004 . 2003
(in thousands)

Balance as of January i 3 176,655 3 161,037
Incurred related to:

Current year ’ 83,105 91,352

Prior years 11,451 6,927
Total incurred 94,5356 98.789
Paid related to :

Current year 45,940 52,342

Prior years 39.023 30,829
Total paid 84,963 83.17M
Balance as of December 31 £ 186,248 S 176,655

The balance in the liabitity for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses is included in "Futurs policy benefits" and "Policy
and contract claims” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets,

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events in prior years, the provision of claims and claim adjustment expenses
increased by $11,451,000 and $6,927,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Amounts related to incurred claims related to prior
years’ resulted from prier year claims being settled for amounts greater than originally estimated. Included in the above
balances are reinsurance recoverabies of $2,6135,000 and $4,037,000 at 2004 and 2003, respectively.

NOTE 10 - SURPLUS NOTES

On November 1, 1996, Union Centrai issued $50,000,000 of 8.20% Surplius Notes (Notes). The Notes mature on November 1,
2026 and may not be redeemed prior to maturity. The Notes are unsecured and subordinated to all present and future policy
claims, prior claims and senior indebtedness. Subject to prior written approval of the Superintendent of the Ohio Insurance
Department, these Notes pay interest semi-annually on May | and November 1. Ingerest expense of $4,100,000 was incurred in
2004 and 2003, and was recorded as a reduction of "Net investment income” in the Consolidated Statements of Income. In
connection with issuing the Notes, Union Central incurred and capitalized $765,000 of issuance cost. This cost is recorded in
"Other assets” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and totaled $562,000 and $587,000 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, Issuance cost of $26,000 was amortized in 2004 and 2003, respectively, and recorded to "Underwriting,
acquisition and insurancs expense” in the Consolidated Statements of [ncome. Additionally, the Notes have an original issue
discount of $260,000, which is deducted from the balance of the Notes. Issuance costs and original issue discount will be
amortized under the straight-line method over the term of the Notes. Amortization relating to original issue discount of $9,000
was recorded in 2004 and 2003 in "Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expense” in the Consolidated Statements of [ncome.
Unamortized original issue discount of $190,000 and $199,000 was deducted from the balance of the Notes as of December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively.

NOTE 11 - COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

" Statement of Financial Accounfing Standards No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income” (FAS 1{30) establishes the
requirement for the reporting and display of comprehensive income and its compopents in the financial statements,
Comprehensive income is defined by the FASB as all changes in an enterprise’s equity during a period other than those
resulting from invesiments by owners and distributions to owners. Comprebensive income includes net income and other
comprehensive income, which includes all other non-owner related changes to equity and includes unrealized gains and losses
on available-for-sale debt and equity securities and minimum pension liability adjustments. FAS 130 also requires separate
presentation of the accumulated balance of other comprehensive income within the equity section of a staternent of financial
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Following are the FAS 130 disclosures of the related tax effects allocated to each component of other comprehensive income

; HE UNION _CEMRAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

position. The Company has presented the required displays of total comprehensive income and its components, along with
the separate presentation of the accumulaied balance of other comprehensive income within the Consolidated Statements of

and the accumulated other comprehensive income balances required by FAS 130,

Linrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized gains arising during 2004

Less: reclassification adjustments
for gains realized in net income

Net unrealized gains
Minimum pension liability adjustment

Other comprehensive loss

Unrealized losses on securities:
Unrealized gains arising during 2003

Less: reclassification adjustments
for gains realized in net income

Net unrealized losses
Minimuem pension liability adjustment

Other comprehensive loss

Year Ended December 31, 2004

Before-Tax Tax Net-of-Tax
Amount Exgense/{Beneﬁq Amount
(in thousands)

S 22,694 b 7,943 $ 14,751

(21.430) {7.518) (13.962)
— 1214 — 425 _— 739
4.04 417 (2631
(2834 & (9% E_(1.842)
¥ear Ended December 31, 2003
Before-Tax Tax Net-of-Tax
Amount Expense/(Benefit) Amount
{in thousands)
$ 20,561 3 7,196 5 13,365
{25316} (8.861) (16.455)
(4,755) 1.665 (3.090)
— (4725) — (1654 —(3.071)
& (9.480) $(G.31% i (6,J81)

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT (UNAUDITED)

In January 2C03, the Board of Directors of the Parent and the Ameritas
The target date for. the comsolidation is. the .end. of 2005. Me

-holding company  level,
companies must approve the transaction.

In addition, a number of regulatory approvals musi be

from the Depariment of Insurance in Nebraska and Ohio.

o
wn

Acacia Companies voted to combine at the mutual
mbers. and. policyholders of the
met, including approval



The Union Central Life Insurance Company

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2005 AND 2004



Assels 3
Fixad incoms securities

Equity securities

Mortgage loans
Other invested assets

Total investad asaals
Other general account assets

Total genaral account asssis
Separate account asseis

Total Assets

Liabilities and Equity
Future pelicy benefits and claims
Other general account liabilities

Total genaral account liabilities
Saparata account lHabllities
Total Liabilities

Equity

Total Liabliities and Equity

The Union Central Life insurance Company
Consolidated Balanca Sheets
GAAP Basis of Accounting

(in thousands)
Unauditad

Decambaer 31,
2004

3,482,008
21,475
619,312
273,018

March 31,
2005

<3

3,398,383
18,882
543,123
245,011

4,375,814
569,842

4,203,434
923,691

5,345,658
2,095,843

3,127,175
2,053,150

7,441,504

4,181,013
513,783

7,180,325

4,210,853
278,585

4,584,758
2,095,848

4,489,218
2,053,180

8,790,614
650,890

6,542,368
837,357

7,441,604

7,180,325




The Union Central Life Insuranca Company

Consolidated Stataments of Income and Changes in Policyholders' Equity
GAAP Basis of Accounting

Revanue

Insuranca ravenue

Net investment income

Neat realized gains on invastmants
Other revenue

Total Ravenue

Banefits and Other Expenses
Benefits paid or credited o
policyowners or beneficiaries
Underwriting, acquisition and
insurance expensas

Total benefits and other expensas

Gain before federal income tax
Faderal income tax expense

Nef lncome

Change in unrealized capital gains (loss2s)

Increasa (Decraase) in Equity
Equity at the beginning of the pericd
Equity at the snd of the pariod

{in thousands)
Unaudited

Thras Month Paried Ending

March 31, March 21,
2004 2005
52,735 53,083
60,178 52,291
13,502 10,9635
5,122 12,029
131,557 128,338
86,423 64,385
46,459 45,338
112,882 106,723
13,875 18,815
6,519 8,748
12,156 11,888
19,567 {24.798)
31,723 {12,833)
806,211 650,880
540,934 837,957




EXHIBIT A

Acn Consulting

8182 Maryland Avenue, Suite 530
St. Louis, MO 63105

phone: 314.719.3803

'Aon Consulting.
gy 15,2008
The Board of Directors

Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company
5900 ‘O Street

Re: Proposed Merger of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company and The Union Central Life
Insurance Company

STATEMENT OF ACTUARIAL OPINION

Subject of This Opinion

This opinion relates to the fairness to the members of Ameritas Acacia Mutuai Holding Company, from an actuarial point of
view, of the proposed merger of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Hoiding Company and The Union Central Life Insurance Company
Compdnies, as described in the “Agreement and Plan of Merger Between Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company and The
Union Central Life Insurance Company”, dated as of January 28, 2005 (this proposed transaction is referred to as the
“Proposed Mearger™).

Qualifications

1, Abrakam Geotzeit, am associated with the firm of Aon Consulting (“Aon™), and ama Member of the American Academy of
Actuaries, qualified under the Academy’s Qualification Standards to reader the opinion set forth in this letter.

Reiiance

In forming my opinion set froth in this letter, I have received, under the supervision of Richard W. Vautravers, F3A, MAAA,
Senior Vice President & Corporate Actuary of Ameritas Lifz Insurance Corp., extensive information concerning
Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company (“AAMFIC”), The Union Central Life Insurance Company (“UCLIC"), and their
insurance-related subsidiaries and affiliates. This information includes:

» Agreement and Plan of Merger between Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company and The Union Central Life
Insurance Company, dated as of January 28, 2605;

. Ameritas Life Insurance Company Closed Block Memorandum filed with the State of Nebraska Depariment of
Insurance, July 8, 1993;

» Review of the Operation of the Closed Block in Ameritas Life Insucance Corp. for the Three Years Ending
September 30, 2001, dated December 28, 2001;

»  Ameritas Lifs Dividend Recommendations and Resolutions for 2003;

» Letter to Department of Insurance & Securities Regulation, District of Columbia Government, regarding policyholder
dividends for Acacia Life Insurance Company, dated November 10, 2004,

Aon Consulting



The Board of Directors
Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company
July 15, 2005

o Closed Block Memorandum for the Union Central Life Insurance Compary (draft), dated March 25, 2005, and
supporting break-down of Union Central’s Insurance Liabilities;

. Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company Members Information Statement dated July 15, 2003; and

» Business Plan Information reviewed by the Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company Board of Directors in
assessing the proposed Plan of Merger.

To the best of my knowledge, 1 was provided all information requested to the extent it was available or could reasonably be
developed. I made no independent verification of this information, although I reviewed it to the extent practicable for general
reasonableness and internal consistency.

In forming my opinion, I have read and retied upon the material received. My opinion depends on the substantial accuracy of
the material.

Opinion

For purposes of this opinion, the term “Fair” is used solely in an actuarial context, and the Proposed Merger will be
characterized as being Fair in this context if the following conditions exist:

» The Proposed Merger does not reduce the policyholder benefits specified in policies issued by insurance subsidiaries
of AAMHC,

+ The Proposed Merger does not reduce the reasonable dividend expectations of holders of participating policies of
insurance subsidiaries of AAMHC,

+ The Proposed Merger does not reduce the membership interssts of AAMHC members, and
. The risks of the Proposed Merger ars reasonable in relationship to its benefits to the members of AAMHC.

In my opinion, the Proposed Merger of AAMEC and UCLIC is Fair to the members of AAMHC from an actuarial point
of view.

Discussion
The conclusions supporting my opinion are:

«  All policy terms remain unchanged by the terms of the Proposed Merger Agreement; therefore, the benefits specified
in policies issued by insurance subsidiaries of AAMHC are not affected by the Proposed Merger.

s AAMHC's subsidiary lifs insurance companies have adopted arrangsments under which assurances are provided to
certain of their policyholders concerning the declaration of policyholder dividends in the future. These arrangements
are not changed by the Proposed Merger. UCLIC is adopting its own arrangsments for providing assurances to its
policyholders, generally using a Closed Block. The Proposed Merger is not expected to weaken, and in the long run
coutd strengthen, the solidity of AAMHC's insurance subsidiaries. Hence, in my view, the Proposed Merger does not,
in this aspect, weaken the future dividend expectations of holders of participating policies of insurance subsidiaties
of AAMHC. Dividends, of course, will continue to depend upon the future financial experience of the various
dividend classes, as they do today.

» Members of AAMHC become members of the merged mutual holding company upoa completion of the Proposed
Merger, and have voting rights in the merged mutual holding company substantially equivalent to those they curtently
hold in AAMEC, The Proposed Merger brings together the interests of AAMHC and UCLIC members, and introduces
no other significant economic interests or “voting blocks” AAMHC members retain the right to their share of the
estate of the merged mutual hoiding company in the event of liquidation.

Aon Consulting



' The Board of Directors ‘
.. Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company
©July 15,2005

+ The Proposed Merger contemplates that, for a period of six years following the effective date of the proposed merger,
2 majority of the directors of the Board of the merged mutual holding company will be persons who are nominated
as “Ameritas Acacia” directors. There can be no absolute assurance as to the election of such a majority, and in any
event, all Qf the dirsctors will have the obligaticn to act in the interest of the members as a whole (including the former
members of UCLIC who will become members of the merged mutual holding company). Nevertheless, the
arrangement provide reasonable assurance that the legitimate interests of the current and continuing members of
AAMHC will be appropriately taken into account.

+ Management projects a reduction in unit expenses as a result of consolidation of some administrative functions
following the Proposed Merger. The present value of futurs cost savings projectsd by management exceeds the
one-time cost of the Proposed Merger. The Proposed Mearger would also incrsase the diversification of asset and
business risks. I conclude that the costs and risks to AAMHC members from entering into the Proposed Merger are
reasonable in relationship to its benefits.

Limitations and Restrictions

In connection with the Proposed Merger, I have been engaged to issue this opinion to AAMHC's Board of Directors. My
analysis and conclusions are solely from an actuarial point of view. [ make no representations regarding questions of legal
interpretation; nor do I provide any assurance as to AAMHC's or UCLIC’s solvency, adequacy of capital, or ability to meet
financial obligations. This opinion should not be taken to supplant any additional inquiries that the Board of Directors should
undertake in its consideration of the Proposed Merger.

In forming my opinion, I have not performed a review, examination or audit (as defined under generally accepted auditing
standards as promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants) of any projected financial statements or
financial information provided by AAMHC or UCLIC, The information I considered in forming my opinion was limited to
that contained in the documents listed above. I do not express an opinion on any historical or projected financial information
of AAMHC or UCLIC, or their subsidiaries and affiliates.

This opinion is rendered to assist the Board of Directors of AAMHC in connection with its review of certain aspects of the
Proposed Merger and should not be relied upon for any other purpose. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution
of this opinion, which upon acceptance by AAMHC"s Board of Directors, may become a matter of public record.

I have been informed that there is no intention on the part of AAMHC or UCLIC to demutualize in the immediate future. In
forming this opinion, I have not considered any effect that the Proposed Merger may have on any consideration which might
be received by members if the merged mutual holding company wers to demutualize in the future.

I have 1o tesponsibility to update this opinion for events and circumstances occurring after the issuance of this opinion.

%/%éz/
Abraham Gootzeit, FSA, MAAA
Consulting Actuary

Aon Consuliing
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BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE JUL 18 2m3
STATE OF NEBRASKA
IN THE MATTER OF: ) ORDER APPROVING MERGER
)
THE APPLICATION OF AMERITAS ) CAUSE NO.: C-1524
ACACIA MUTUAL HOLDING )
COMPANY FOR THE APPROVALOF )
THE PROPOSED AGREEMENT AND )
PLAN OF MERGER )

Pursuant to Neb Rev. Stat. §44-224.07 and §44-6125, Ameritas Acacia Mutual
Holding Company, a Nebraska mutual insurance holding company (“AAMHC”) has
applied to L. Tim Wagner, Director of Insurance (“Director”) for approval to merge with
Union Central Life Insurance Company (“Union Central™), an Chio domestic mutual life
insurance company, which has provided notice to the Ohio Department of Insurance of its
intent to convert into a stock insurance company subsidiary of a mutual insurance holding
company on February 7, 2005. If approved by the Chic Department of Insurance and
Union Central policyholders, Union Central will become 2 stock insurance company
subsidiary of a mutual insurance holding company, to be known as Union Central Mutual
Holding Company, (“UCMFIC™). The Ohic Department of Insurance is currently
reviewing preliminary information provided by Union Central regarding such transaction.

AAMHC filed the Agreement and Plan of Merger (“Plan™) with the Nebraska
Department of Insurance on March 11, 2005, and subsequently supplemented the filing.

After review of the Plan with all disclosures and exhibits filed with the Director, the
Director approves the Agreement and Plan of Merger and FINDS, CONCLUDES AND

ORDERS as follows:



FINDINGS OF FACT
1. AAMHC was created effective January 1, 1999, pursuant to a merger of
Ameritas Mutual Insurance Holding Company and Acacia Mutual Holding Corporation,
a District of Columbia domiciled mutual insurance holding company, previously
approved by the Nebraska Department of Insurance in Cause No.: C-1064.

2. Ameritas Holding Company, a Nebraska domiciled intermediate stock
holding company (“AHC”), was created effective January 1, 1999, pursuant to a merger
of Ameritas Holding Company and Acacia Financial Group, Ltd., a District of Columbia
domiciled intermediate stock holding company, previously approved by the Nebraska
Department of Insurance in Cause No.: C-1064.

3. On January 26, 2005, the AAMH and AHC Boards of Directors
approved the Agreement and Plan of Merger. Likewise, on January 28, 2003, the Union
Central Board of Directors approved the Agreement and Plan of Merger.

4. On March 11, 2005, AAMHC filed the Agreement and Plan of Merger
pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. §44-224.07 and §44-6125 with the Department.
Subsequently, 2 number of supplements wers filed as a result of discussions with the
Department during the review process. In addition to the Agreement and Plan of Merger,
the Department reviewed and provided comment on the Members Information Statement,
reviewed the financial reports for AAMHC and Union Central, and the actuarial opinion.

s. The Plan proposes that UCMHC will be created in Obio. This company
will be created as a result of 2 conversion of Union Central into the mutual holding

company form if approved by the Ohio Department of Insurance and Union Central

policyholders. The Plan proposes the separate existence of UCMHC will cease and it



will merge with and into AAMHC as the surviving company. The surviving company
will be renamed UNIFI Mutual Holding Company (“UNIFI”) and remain domiciled in
Nebraska. At the effective time, the capital stcck of Union Central acquired by UNIFI
will be contributed by UNIFI to its subsidiary, AHC, which will result in Union Central
veing an indirect subsidiary of UNIF] and a direct subsidiary of AHC along with
Ameritas Life Insurance Cofp. and Acacia Life Insurance Company. A Special Meeting
of Policyholders of Uﬁon Central is scheduled for September 1, 2005, to vote on the
conversion to a mutual insurancs holding company resulting in both the formation of
UCMHC and the merger of UCMHC with and into AAMHC.

6. The UCMHC conversion does not require the creation of an intermediate
stock insurance holding company. Therefore, AHC will continue unchanged as the
intermediate stock insurance holding company subsidiary of UNIFI and remain domiciled
in Nebraska.

7. The Plan contains many reasons in support of the merger with the most
significant being the anticipated improvement in revenue growth by expanding the scope
of products and distribution channels and enhanced financial strength as a result of the
larger organization.

8. The Plan provides that all current AAMHC subsidiaries wiil continue to
exist as separate corporate entities after the effective date of the merger.
9. The Plan provides that all UCMHC subsidiaries will continue to exist as
separate corporate entities after the effective date of the merger.
10.  The Plan provides that after the effective date of the merger and fora

period of six years after the effective date of the merger, 2 supermajority vote {80%) of



the Board of Directors of UNIFI and AHC is required before any of the following actions
can occur: change of domicile of UNIFI or AHC from the State of Nebraska; redomicile
any of UNIFI's subsidiaries from their current state of domicile; change of any
subsidiary’s name; material change to UNIFI’s capital structure; sale of any subsidiary;
sale of or disposal of substantially all or ali of the assets of UNIFI or any of its
subsidiaries; corporate reorganization of UNIF]; raising capital through debt or equity of
UNIFI; merger or consolidation, dernutualization, liquidation, or dissolution of UNIFT; or
modification, amendment or waiver of certain provisions of the Merger Agreement.

11.  Onor about June 29, 2003, the Departmert approved an exemption
request from AAMHC from a requirement to file a Form A acquisition statement
pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. §44-2128 (2). See Department Cause No.: C-1522. The
exemption was granted on the basis that this transaction is not made or entered into for
the purposes and does not have the effect of changing or influencing the control of
AAMHC, AHC, or Ameritas Lifs Insurance Corp. In that Order, the Department
acknowledged the exemption and noted that nothing contained in the Order shall be
construed to restrict the Director from considering the issue of control of the Nebraska
domestic insurer and its mutual insurance holding company at a later date if warranted.

12.  The Plan provides that on the effective date of the merger, existing
members’ rights and interest in UCMIC shali be transferred to AAMHC and shall

become member rights and interests in AAMHC whose narne shall, upon merger, be
changed to UNIFL
13.  The Plan provides that all policies issued by Ameritas Life insurance

Corp. and Acacia Life Insurance Company befors the sffective date of the merger will



remain in effect and all policy (contractual) rights will remain the same. In addition,
policy dividends on participating policies, whether issued before or after reorganization,
will be paid in accordance with each insurers past practices although amounts may vary
from year to year.

14.  The Plan provides that all policies issued by Union Central Life Insurance
Company befors the effective date of this merger will remain in effect and all policy
{contractual) rights will remain unchanged. In addition, policy dividends on participating
policies will be paid in accordance with Union Central’s past practices although amounts
may vary from year to year.

15.  The Plan provides that all existing policyholders of Union Central will
receive immediate member rights in AAMHC/UNIFI and all future policyholders of the
converted insurer will acquire member rights in UNIFI as they become policyholders of

the converted insurer.

16. AAMHC received an actuarial faimess opinion from Abrabam Gootzeit,
an actuary with AON Consulting, in which Mr. Gootzeit opined that the merger was fair
to the members of AAMHC from an actuarial standpoint.

17.  The Plan requires that AAMHC and UCMHC receive a joint Legal
Securities Opinion from counsel and requires UCMHC to request an IRS Private Letter
Ruling. Once the IRS Ruling is received, AAMHC will obtain a tax opinicn from
counsel. To date, these opinions have not been received by AAMHC.

18.  During the initial Ameritas Life Insurance Corp. reorganization (Cause
No.: C-1018) and the subsequent merger with Acacia Mutual Heiding Company {Cause

No.: C-1064), various commitments wers made by the companies to the Department of



Insurance. The Department has re-evaluated these commitments and the following
commitments remain in effect:

a. Departmental approval prior to issuance of stock to the public;

b. Protection of participating individual policyholders by
establishment of 2 closed block or a comparable means for
protection of participating individual policyholders prior to the
issuance of stock to the public;

c. Departmental approval prior to issuance of stock to officers,
directors, or employees of UNIFI, AHC or Ameritas Life
Insurance Corp. or other insurer subsidiaries in advance of a public
offering;

19.  The Plan provides that after the effective date there is no present plan to
issue stock by UNIFI, AHC or any of the insurance subsidiaries.

20.  The Special Meeting of Members for AAMHC to consider and vote upon
the proposed Plan is scheduled for August 31, 2005, at 10:00 a.m., Central Daylight
Time, at the offices of Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company, 5900 “O” Street,
Lincoln, Mebraska 638510.

21.  The Plan provides that the effective date of the merger will be no later
than December 31, 2005, although AAMHC advises that the anticipated effective date

will be November 1, 2005 at 12:01 a.m. Ifthe affective date shall not have occurred on

or before December 31, 2005, the Plan may be abandoned.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. The Department has jurisdiction over the subject matter and parties to this

proceeding as authorized under Neb. Rev. Siat. §44-224.07 and MNed. Rev. Siat. §44-6123.

oh



2, AAMHC has filed all the required documents with the Department
including the Agreement and Plan of Merger, Board resolutions, financial statements,
along with all exhibits and disclesures.

3. On the basis of the information filed with the Department, there is
sufficient reason to find that the interests of the poiiéyholders of Ameritas Life Insurance
Corp. and the members of AAMHC will be protected under the proposed merger and the

Plan should be approved.

ORDER

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the Agreement and Plan of Merger is hereby
approved subject to the following conditions:

a. Issuance of an Order approving the recrganization of Union Central into a
mutual insurance holding company structurs and approval of the Agreement and Plan of
Merger with and into AAMHC by the Ckio Department of Insurance;

b. Approval by two-thirds majority of the votes cast by the eligible members
as defined in the Plan of AAMHC at the Special Meeting on August 31, 2005;

c. Approval by a majority of the votes cast by eligible members as defined in
the plan of consolidation and Agreement and Plan of Merger of Union Central at the
Special Meeting on September 1, 2005;

d. Receipt by the Department of the Articles of Merger;

€. Receipt by the Department of a copy of the AAMHC tax opinion from

counsel.

~a



Dated this /14n__ day of July, 2005,

Nebraska Department of Insurance

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Tracy Gruhn, hereby certify that the foregoing copy of the Order Approving
Merger was served upon Ameritas Acacia Mutual Holding Company by mailing a copy
of same to Robert-John H. Sands, Senior Vice President and General Counsel, Ameritas
Acacia Mutual Holding Company, 7315 Wisconsin Avenue, Bethesda, MD 20814 by
first class U.S. mail, postage prepaid on this day of July, 2005.
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